
 

FRANKLIN COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING 

COURTHOUSE ANNEX, COMMISSION MEETING ROOM 

DECEMBER 15, 2020 

9:00 AM 

AGENDA 

The Board of County Commissioners asks that all cell phones are turned off or placed on silent (vibrate) mode.  Any 
handouts (information) for distribution to the Commission must be submitted to the Board Secretary (Clerk’s 
Office) or to the County Coordinator on or before the Thursday prior to that Tuesday’s meeting.  Failure to do so 
will result in your removal from the agenda or a delay of any action relating to your request until a future 
meeting. 

Call to Order 

A. Public Notice 

To comply with CDC and Government social distancing requirements, the general public will not 
be allowed in the commission meeting room for this meeting; therefore, this Board of County 
Commission regular meeting will be conducted via livestream and Zoom.  Those wanting to 

view the meeting can use the livestream link (https://facebook.com/forgottencoasttv/) 
or go to Forgotten Coast TV's Facebook Page. The livestream feed will promptly start 5 minutes 

before the meeting commences.  You do not need a Facebook account to view Facebook 
live. Those wanting to participate during “Public Comments” should use the Zoom log-in/call-in 
information provided below. There is a link to a list of videos and Getting Started Resources on 

the main "Agenda and Minutes" webpage for those unfamiliar with Zoom. If you are 
experiencing any issues with the livestream or Zoom, call (850) 653-9783 extension 373 for 

assistance.  

Any person who wishes to appeal a decision made by the Franklin County Board of County 
Commissioners, with respect to any matter considered at the meeting, must have a record of the 
proceedings.  He or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made. 

B. This meeting is being held via Zoom and all attendees are muted by default. To join via 
computer, use the link on the meeting date and time: https://zoom.us/j/91245430887 

If you do not have speakers or a microphone on your computer or prefer to call, you can dial 
in for audio. Call (301) 715-8592 or (312) 626- 6799 or (929) 205-6099 and enter ID 912 
4543 0887#. 

If you would like to speak during the public comment portion of the meeting, you have the 
following options: 

Online - select the "raise your hand" icon. 

Phone - press *9 to raise your hand, *6 to unmute to submit verbal comments. 

Public engagement is important to us, and meeting remotely is still a new process. We 
appreciate everyone’s understanding. 

1



Prayer and Pledge 

Recognition of Clerk of Courts Marcia M. Johnson 

Approval of Minutes 

C. Approval of December 1, 2020 Meeting Minutes 

Payment of County Bills 

Public Comments 

This is an opportunity for the public to comment on agenda or non-agenda items.  When you are recognized to be heard 
by the Chairman, please sign the speaker’s log and adhere to the time limit.  An individual will be allowed to speak for 
three minutes whereas a designated representative of a group or faction will be allowed to speak for five minutes. 

Sheriff's Office -- Ginger Coulter -- Software Update 

Department Directors Report 

Superintendent of Public Works – Howard Nabors 

D. Road Department Board Report 

Information Items:  

1. Detail of Work Performed and Material Hauled by District (see attached documents) 

Solid Waste Director – Fonda Davis 

E. Solid Waste Directors Board Report 

Information Item: 

1. Right-of-Way Debris Pickup/Recycle Material Hauled (See Attached Document) 

Emergency Management Director – Pam Brownell 

F. Emergency Management Board Report  

Information Items:  

1. Digital Kiosks have been placed in their assigned locations within the County. 

2. EOC staff continue to put together COVID Care Bags and have begun to distribute them to 
the vulnerable populations in the County.  

3. Alligator Point dune walkovers have been obligated. 

4. EOC staff are scheduled to meet with DOH 12/15/20 to discuss COVID vaccinations.  

5. Message Boards have arrived and are in the process of getting tags for them in order to put 
them out in the community. 

6. EOC Staff continues to work Hurricane Sally from 09/12/20 and continues to work with 
FDEM and FEMA. 

7. EOC Staff continue to participate in the NOAA Tropical Weather Training.  

8. EOC has submitted our New LMS Plan and corrections to the state and are awaiting 
approval. 

9. EOC Staff along with our CERT Volunteers continue to distribute washable & reusable cloth 
mask throughout our community.  We have partnered with the City of Carrabelle and City of 
Apalachicola Chamber of Commerce along with the St. George Island & Eastpoint Visitor 
Centers to assist with distribution to local businesses and residents.  We will continue this 
effort as long as supplies are available.  

2



10. EOC Staff are working diligently with DOH Staff regarding the COVID-19 virus.  This 
includes hosting meetings with representatives from DOH, Sheriff’s Dept. Weems, EMS, as 
needed.  We also are assisting with Conference Calls, information distribution from DOH via 
Alert Franklin, Facebook and our EOC Website. 

11. EOC Staff continue to participate in conference calls with State DEM, Region 2, DOH, 
FEMA, etc. regarding COVID 19.  We also continue to update WebEOC with Local State of 
Emergency and SitReps. 

12. EOC Staff continue to work on FEMA reimbursement claims from Hurricane Michael. This 
includes working with FEMA staff regarding mitigation of damaged parks, roads, 
etc. Mitigation takes some time but EOC Staff continue to work diligently with FEMA Staff on 
the most beneficial repairs for Franklin County.  We are in contact with our PDMG regularly 
regarding these projects and will update the Board as soon as the State Review is completed. 
EOC Staff has also began the FEMA reimbursement claim process for COVID-19 and 
Hurricane Sally. 

13. Below is a copy of the DOH Dashboard regarding COVID-19 Cases in Franklin County as of 
12/15/20 at 1:30 pm. (see attached document) 

Extension Office Director – Erik Lovestrand 

G. Extension Board Report  

Informational Items  

General Extension Activities: 

1. During this period, the Extension office assisted      citizens on the topics of a large oak with 
thinning canopy, home      landscaping questions, raccoon issues, citrus greening disease, 
more trees      attacked by pine beetles, damage to old cedar tree, minor fish kill in a      pond, 
and more. 

2. Extension Director transported an injured adult Bald      Eagle from St. George Island to the 
veterinary hospital in Tallahassee for      surgery. 

3. Extension staff collected 63 pounds of peanut butter      during the annual Peanut Butter 
Challenge this year.  This is matched each year by the North      Florida Peanut Producers and 
then donated to local food banks in the      County. 

Sea Grant Extension: 

4. Extension Director      participated in statewide Sea Grant discussion via Zoom to share 
project      work and discuss program needs. 

4-H Youth Development: 

5. Extension staff are working to initiate another 4-H club as      two new adult volunteers are 
going through the certification/screening      process with UF. 

6. One of the existing clubs is planning to begin a shooting      sports program, beginning with 
archery.  The Extension office is seeking donations for the purchase of start-up      sets, 
targets, etc.  All donations      are tax deductible as they are processed through UF fiscal 
procedures. 

 Family and Consumer Sciences: 

7. Family Nutrition      Program assistant, following school and UF Covid Phase III policies, is 
continuing      to conduct some in-person lessons in local schools.  

Agriculture/Home Horticulture: 

3



8. Assisted multiple property      owners in Apalachicola with oak species identification and 
issues      regarding potential risks to nearby structures. 

TDC Administrator – John Solomon – Report 

H. TDC Administrator's Board Report 

Information Items: 

1. Collections Report: September Collections were $140,186.24 Which is a 55.7% increase 
over September 2019. An increase of $50,134.67. This is the highest amount ever collected by 
the Franklin County TDC in the month of September. Also, in the past two years the 
September Collections has increased by 100% 2018 collections were $70,419.47. 

2. Fiscal Year Collections: The 2019-2020 Fiscal year collections was $1,432,091.48. Which is 
an increase of 2.17% over last years collections. Considering vacation rentals were closed for 
over 2 months this is a remarkable collection number for the year. 

3. Visit Florida Flagler Awards: “The Flagler Awards is an annual statewide competition 
recognizing outstanding Florida tourism marketing. The program was created by VISIT 
FLORIDA to honor the countless individuals and organizations that help position Florida as 
the No. 1 travel destination in the world. Each year the Flagler Awards pay tribute to the 
determined efforts of those who use their skill, resourcefulness, creativity and innovative 
spirit to market Florida to the world.” 

The Franklin County TDC won three Flagler Awards for the 2019-2020 year: 

Silver - Direct Marketing – Open for the Businesses of Peace & Quiet Villages Invitation 

Bronze - Resource /Promotional Materials Consumer – Franklin County Visitor Guide 

Bronze – Television Advertising – Discover the Forgotten Coast TV Show 

The Franklin County TDC also assisted Play Hard Florida in the production of the Explore the 
Forgotten Coast video. That video won the Henry for Rural County Marketing. 

I would like to express how proud I am of all of the TDC for their efforts in marketing Franklin 
County, these awards do not come easily and the level of competition is the best the state has 
to offer. 

4. Occupancy Statistics: Attached you will find two reports, they are comparing the year to 
date stats for 2020 as well as 2019. Both reports compare Franklin County with Northwest 
Florida and Florida in average Length of stay and occupancy percentage for the year. In the 
Average length of stay Franklin County was 8.7 days leading Florida by 2 days and Northwest 
Florida by 2.7 days. In Paid Occupancy for the year Franklin County increased in 2020 to 
62.2% versus 59.1% in 2019. Where Florida and Northwest Florida both had decreases in 
Occupancy. Florida had a 42.7% Occupancy and Northwest Florida had a 48% Occupancy for 
2020.  

5. Web Stats for Fiscal Year 2019-2020: Web hits to Floridasforgottencoast.com were 
434,053 which is a 10% increase over the previous year 85% was new visitors to the website. 
Visitor Guide mail out requests were 2,813 which was a 18% increase over previous year. 
The Franklin County Tourist development facebook page had over 3.6 Million Impressions in 
this past fiscal year. 

6. The Florida’s Forgotten Coast Mobile app is now available for download on both Apple and 
Google platforms. 

Weems CEO -- David X Walker -- COVID-19 Vaccine Update 

Public Hearings 10:00 A.M. (ET) 

4



I. Due to unforeseen discrepancies with the advertisement of the Public Hearings that 
were to heard on Tuesday, December 15, 2020 we have had to reschedule them for 
Tuesday, January 19, 2021 

Land Use Change of 6.08 Acres- 10:30 AM 

Re-Zoning Change of 6.08 Acres- 10:35 AM 

Land Use Change of 10 Acres- 10:40 AM 

Re-Zoning of 10 Acres- 10:45 AM 

J. Consideration of a request for Land Use Change of a 6.08 acre parcel lying in Section 22, 
Township 6 South, Range 4 West, 2514 Highway 67, Carrabelle, Franklin County, Florida from 
Residential to Commercial. Request submitted by Jamey and Beverly Sapp, applicants. 

BOARD ACTION: To Approve, Table or Deny 

K. Consideration of a request to Re-Zone a 6.08 acre parcel lying in Section 22, Township 6 
South, Range 4 West, 2514 Highway 67, Carrabelle, Franklin County, Florida from R-2 Single 
Family Mobile Home to C-3 Commercial Recreation. Request submitted by Jamey and Beverly 
Sapp, applicants. 

BOARD ACTION: To Approve, Table or Deny 

L. Consideration of a request for Land Use Change of a 10 acre parcel lying in Section 22, 
Township 6 South, Range 4 West, 2536 Highway 67, Carrabelle, Franklin County, Florida from 
Agriculture and Residential to Commercial. Request submitted by Jamey and Beverly Sapp, 
applicants. 

BOARD ACTION: To Approve, Table or Deny 

M. Consideration of a request for a Re-Zoning of a 10 acre parcel lying in Section 22, Township 6 
South, Range 4 West, 2536 Highway 67, Carrabelle, Franklin County, Florida from A-2 
Forestry Agriculture and R-2 Residential to C-3 Commercial Recreation. Request submitted 
by Jamey and Beverly Sapp, applicants. 

BOARD ACTION: To Approve, Table or Deny 

Board of Adjustment – Amy Ham-Kelly – Report 

N. CONSIDERATION OF A REQUEST FOR A VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT A 100' X 8' ROCK 
REVETMENT ON THE SHORELINE OF THE APALACHICOLA RIVER AND 8' X 93' ALONG THE 
SHORELINE OF A PRIVATE CANAL ALONG AN EXISTING DILAPIDATED SEAWALL (SEAWALL 
TO BE REPAIRED IF IT CAN BE SALVAGED). THE ROCK REVETMENT WILL NOT BE ANY 
STEEPER THAT A RATIO OF TWO HORIZONTAL TO ONE VERTICAL (2/1 RATIO) AND WILL 
EXTEND 8 FEET FROM THE SEAWALL. PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS 11 BIG OAKS, 
APALACHICOLA, FRANKLIN COUNTY, FLORIDA. STATE AND FEDERAL PERMITS ATTACHED 
FOR THE 100' X 8' SECTION AND WILL BE CONTINGENT UPON RECIEVING THE STATE AND 
FEDERATL PERMIT FOR THE 93' X 8' PORTION.  REQUEST SUBMITTED BY GARLICK 
ENVIROMENTAL ASSOCIATES, AGENT FOR CLAY PALM, APPLICANT. 

BOA ACTION: TO APPROVE AS REQUESTED. 

BOARD ACTION: TO APPROVE, TABLE OR DENY. 

Planning and Zoning – Amy Ham-Kelly – Report 

O. Consideration of a request to construct a Single Family Private Dock located at 381 River 
Road, Carrabelle, Franklin County, Florida. The dock walkway will be 6' x 10' and the dock 
width is 12' x 16' with a 18' x 32' Boat Slip. The applicant has the DEP self-certification 
Request submitted by Craig Shearer, applicant. (House has been permitted) 

5



Planning & Zoning Recommendation: Unanimous vote to approve contingent upon 
receiving the State and Federal Permits. 

BCC ACTION: To Approve, Table or Deny 

P. Consideration of a request to construct a Single Family Private Dock located at 1927 Indian 
Harbor Road, Lot 7, Indian Bay Village, St. George Island, Franklin County, Florida. The 
application will be contingent upon receiving State and Federal Permits. The dock walkway 
will be 176' x 4' and 61' x 4' with a 6' x 26' terminal platform. Request submitted by Garlick 
Environmental Associates, Jared Orciani, applicant. (Proposed House) 

Planning & Zoning Recommendation: Unanimous vote to approve contingent upon 
receiving the State and Federal Permits. 

BCC ACTION: To Approve, Table or Deny 

Q. Consideration of a request to construct a Single Family Private Dock at Lot 3 Egret Landing, 
2514 Egret Lane, West of Apalachicola, Franklin County, Florida. The dock will be 250' x 4' 
with a 6' x 20' terminal platform with a 2' step down. The applicant has all State and Federal 
Permits. Request submitted by Garlick Environmental Associates, agent for Dan Guild, 
applicant. 

Planning & Zoning Recommendation: Unanimous vote to approve this item. The applicant 
has all the State and Federal Permits. 

BCC ACTION: To Approve, Table or Deny 

Sketch Plat Approval 

R. Consideration of a request for Sketch Plat Approval of a 5.66 acre parcel of land lying in 
Section 36, Township 8 South, Range 7 West, Eastpoint, Franklin County, Florida. The 
subdivision will be named "The Bluffs of North Bayshore" and will consist of 5 lots over 1 
acre each. Request submitted by Andy Durham, agent for LMKS, LLC.  

Planning & Zoning Recommendation- Unanimous vote to approve this Sketch Plat with the 
applicant numbering the lots. 

BOARD ACTION: To Approve, Table or Deny 

Land Use & Re-Zoning Public Hearing Request 

S. Consideration of a request for a Public Hearing to re-zone a 20 acre parcel lying in Section 30, 
Township 6 South, Range 7 West, North of Eastpoint, Franklin County, Florida fromR-6 Rural 
Residential to R-1 Single Family Residential. Request submitted by Thomas M. Shuler, 
applicant. 

Planning & Zoning Recommendation: Unanimous vote to approve this request for go 
forward with a Public Hearing. 

BOARD ACTION: To Approve, Table or Deny request for a Public Hearing 

T. Consideration of a request for a Public Hearing for a Large Scale Land Use Change for a 41.64 
acre parcel lying in Section 10, Township 6 South, Range 3 West, located at 471 McIntyre 
Road, West of the Ochlockonee River from A-1 Forestry Agriculture to C-3 Commercial 
Recreation. Request submitted by Gary West and William McKinney, agents for BB&G 
Resorts, LLC, applicant. 

The County has received letter of opposition concerning this project. 

Planning & Zoning Recommendation: Unanimous vote to deny the request to go forward 
with a Public Hearing based on:  

a. Spot Zoning- although it is not illegal, it is not good practice. 

6



b. Historical Features- The Florida Master Site File shows that the McIntyre area has been 
captured by "Camp Gordon Johnston" along with undocumented site called "McIntyre Saw 
Mill Site". 

c. Traffic-  

i- The County has not performed any traffic counts for McIntyre Road and the number of RV 
and Primitive Camping lots would be a good indicator of the new traffic pattern. At this time 
there are 32 proposed RV lots an undisclosed number of primitive lots and would definitely 
increase the traffic on that road.  

ii- The County has an Ordinance #92-3 states the prohibited uses of McIntyre Road limiting 
the number of axles to no more than 2 axles and no driving, operating or pulling any trailer 
having a load of over 5,000 pounds on McIntyre Road. 

d. Wetlands: The National Wetlands Inventory Map shows the area within possible wetlands. 
If there are any jurisdictional wetlands the setback from them would 50 feet. If they are non-
jurisdictional wetlands you would have to have state and federal permits to fill them and 
would require a variance or build up to them, but not within them. At this time a detailed 
wetlands study has not been conducted. 

e. Water & Sewer- Water and Sewer is not available to this area. A potable water well for this 
project would have to be approved and permitted by DEP and the Northwest Florida Water 
Management. Septic Source- would be required to be approved by the Department of Health. 

Planning & Zoning Recommendation- Unanimous vote to deny this request based on the 
information stated above to not send this request to a Public Hearing. 

BOARD ACTION: To Approve, Table or Deny 

CDBG Administrator – Report (Deborah Belcher) 

U. CDBG Administrator Board Report: 

Action Items: 

1. The County is eligible to apply for Hurricane Michael CDBG Disaster Recovery funds, in the 
Hometown Revitalization Program.  Applications are due February 16, 2021, and can be for a 
minimum of $250,000 and up to a maximum of $15,000,000, with more than 1 application 
allowed per applicant.  This is a commercial revitalization program for business areas that 
were damaged by Hurricane Michael.  Money does not go directly to the business, but the 
grant funds demolition and rehabilitation of buildings, building fascade improvements, and 
infrastructure repairs/replacement, etc. relating to storm damage. The project must specify a 
commercial area with at least 3 adjacent businesses. The Eastpoint zip code was identified by 
HUD as a most-impacted area, and I think we might come up with one or more projects that 
would fit the program.   

Requested Action:  Provide direction regarding pursuing one or more applications for the CDBG-
DR Hometown Revitalization Program. 

2. DEO is finalizing an application process for another type of CDBG grant, relating to COVID-
19.  Applications will probably be due within 3 months.  This money can be used for a variety 
of activities that prevent, prepare for and respond to the Coronavirus pandemic.  A list of 
eligible activities is attached.  Assistance to business, public services and public facilities 
might be appropriate for Franklin County to pursue.  

Requested Action:  Provide direction regarding pursuing one or more applications for the CDBG-
COVID Program. 

Information Items: 

7



3. The CDBG-DR grant application was submitted to DEO 11/30/2020, requesting funds for 
sand dune restoration on the County’s public beach on Saint George Island.  With agreement 
from Alan Pierce and Michael Morón, I put $5,000 in Restore Act funds into the CDBG-DR 
application as “leverage”.  This should result in the application receiving the optional 5 points 
for local leverage.  The application requests funding for dune replacement in the central 
business area, dune fencing to develop dunes in the remaining area, and planting (sea oats or 
other) to stabilize the dunes, as well as engineering and administration.  I appreciate the 
assistance provided by Alan Pierce, Mark Curenton, Michael Morón, Lori Hines and Clay 
Kennedy.  A summary of the grant application is attached.  It is possible that all, some, or 
none of the funding with be awarded, depending upon competition. 

4. The 7 Eastpoint Wildfire CDBG mobile home replacements in bid package #3 are now 
complete.  An additional 3 more mobile home replacement contracts and CDBG mortgages 
were executed 11/18/2020 (bid package #4).  The 4th proposed replacement will not occur 
because the homeowner (Daniel Walker) passed away in late November.  A late application 
was submitted by an elderly couple who appear to be eligible.  They had a nice double-wide 
home prior to the fire, and are insisting on a new double-wide as a replacement.  I am 
advertising for proposals for a double wide home of quality comparable to that of the single 
wide homes we have been purchasing through the CDBG program.  The couple already 
received a donated single wide home, which would have to be transferred to another needy 
household.  If we receive one or more proposals that appear reasonable, and the dealer can 
guarantee project completion by April 30, 2021 (the grant expiration date), I will bring those 
proposals to the Board for consideration in January, 2021.   

Clerk of Courts – Marcia M. Johnson – Report 

Special Projects Coordinator – Alan Pierce – Report 

V. Special Projects Coordinator Board Report  

Action Items: 

1. Board action on draft letter to USACOE.  The Corps has requested the Board send the letter 
to further confirm the county’s commitment to paying the non-federal share of costs related 
to dredging Eastpoint and Two Mile Channel.  While Mr. Shuler and I recognize the Corps is in 
control of the costs, the Corps has advised that any changes to the proposed language will 
delay the review and approval of the MOA that is still sitting in Atlanta.  In my conversations 
with Corps personnel I now realize part of the problem in getting this MOA out of the Corps is 
that it is not standard practice for the Corps to accept non-federal funds to complete 
projects.  Our project is about the second MOA the Mobile office has done in 10 years, so no 
one in the Corps is familiar or comfortable with what they need.  The concern for the Corps is 
that they are going to be signing the contract with the dredge operator, so they will have the 
legal requirement to pay the contract, not Franklin County. 

2. Board action to authorize the disposal of a 1988 Chevy S-10 Blazer and a 1994 GMC 
Jimmy.  In 2019, Mr. Ted Mosteller brought into the County Finance Office vehicle tags to two 
vehicles that had been used at the airport but had been deemed no longer road worthy.  He 
brought the tags in as evidence the vehicles would not be driven off the airport property.  He 
parked the vehicles under the Shade Hanger and left them there.  In March/April of 2020, Mr. 
John Collins, AVCON, was called by the contractor building the airport access road and was 
told there were two abandoned vehicles in the path of the road, and what did Mr. Collins 
want the contractor to do with the vehicles.  The contractor said his options were to charge 
the county for disposal of the vehicles as they were in the way, or to give the vehicles away if 
someone would move them at no cost.  One of the vehicles was a 1988 Chevy S-10 Blazer and 
the other vehicle was a 1994 GMC Jimmy. 

8



            Mr. Collins called me and asked me what to do.  Acting on the information that the 
vehicles did not have tags I assumed the vehicles had been abandoned and had no value.  I did 
not draw the connection to the vehicles still being owned by the county as there were no 
plates on the vehicles and they had been moved at some point from beneath the Shade 
Hanger.   I told Mr. Collins to get rid of the vehicles at the lowest cost, which in this case was 
for the contractor to give the vehicles away.   

            Now, in December, 2020, someone in Eastpoint has ended up with the 32 year old 
Chevy S-10 Blazer and needs the title.  Board action to acknowledge and authorize the 
disposal as junked surplus equipment both the 1988 Chevy S-10 Blazer and the 1994 GMC 
Jimmy during the airport road construction project in 2020.  The sprayer equipment that was 
mounted on the 1988 Chevy Blazer is missing and was not on the vehicle at the time it was in 
the path of the road.  Board action. 

Information Items:  

3. Provide Board with a status report of projects that Commissioner Boldt asked me to create. 

4. Inform Board that I have consulted with Bay County regarding the language they use for 
bidding out county roads being rebuilt with FEMA funds.  Bay County is in agreement with 
what Franklin County does.  Bay County uses similar language limiting qualified bidders to 
FDOT pre-qualified firms, but they do it by citing the appropriate Florida Administrative 
Code.  Dewberry and I are moving forward with re-advertising Alligator Drive. 

County Coordinator – Michael Morón – Report 

W. County Coordinator’s Board Report 

Action Items: 

1. Carrabelle Artificial Reef:  At your last meeting, Ms. Lorena Holley and Mr. Frank Gidus of 
Coastal Conservation Association (CCA) Florida asked the Board to consider applying for a 
FWC grant to construct an artificial memorial reef, in honor of Dr. Bart Carey, on the 
Carrabelle 10-mile reef. The Board asked that I meet with Ms. Holley and Mr. Gidus to verify 
that they would follow the same procedure as the group that is building the Buddy Ward 
artificial reef around the St. George Island area.  Chairman Jones and I met with Ms. Holley 
and Mr. Gidus and were informed that the CCA would act as the responsible party, agreeing to 
an MOU, assuming all project costs including permits and reporting. Mr. Gidus stated that 
since this memorial reef will be constructed on the Carrabelle 10-mile reef which is already a 
restricted area, so therefore there shouldn’t be any issues with shrimpers.  In addition, there 
have been discussions with those in the seafood industry to make sure there are no issues. I 
sent a copy of the MOU to Attorney Shuler for his review providing the Board authorizes 
proceeding with the grant application today.  Ms. Holley and Mr. Gidus are available this 
morning if the Board has any additional questions. 

Request: Board action to authorize Ms. Holley and Mr. Gidus to apply for a FWC grant to 
construct the Dr. Bart Cary memorial artificial grant.   

2. Animal Control Agreement: During the 2019 – 20 budget process Mr. Fonda Davis, your 
Animal Control Director, informed the Board that without additional staff his department 
could not continue to respond to calls in the unincorporated areas of the County and in both 
the City of Apalachicola and the City of Carrabelle.  The Board agreed to add the necessary 
staff to his department, but in order to reduce the burden of a tax increase to the residents 
residing in the unincorporated areas of the county, both cities would have to agree to share in 
the cost and other terms if they wanted continued response to animal complaint calls.  If not, 
the Board would remove both cities from the Animal Control service area by amending the 
Animal Control Ordinance. Both cities initially agreed to the terms and paid the first year’s 
cost, however the City of Apalachicola would like to meet to discuss and possibly renegotiate 

9



the agreement and the City of Carrabelle will not participate in any further cost sharing or 
other terms regarding animal control services.  Based on the information provided, is the 
Board ready to schedule a public hearing to amend the Animal Control Ordinance? 

Request: Board discussion and direction regarding the Animal Control Ordinance.  

3. Business Grant Approvals:  At your last meeting a partial list of CARES Act Business Grant 
applications in addition to food pantry applications were approved.  That same afternoon 
staff received additional approvals from Opportunity Florida, so for bookkeeping and 
auditing purposes, a complete list of approved applications along with the approved food 
pantries is before you for final approval.  Approval of a separate check run will also be 
requested.  I talked to Mr. Roy Baker of Opportunity Florida regarding the process used to 
review the applications, as questions regarding the denied applications will be posed to the 
Board and staff.  Mr. Baker explained that Opportunity Florida used the same model 
developed for Jackson County (first client) when reviewing similar applications and is using 
that model for all of their other counties.  That model was developed with the assistance of 
Jackson County’s Auditor, CARES Act Consultant, Administrative staff, and within the 
guidelines of the State’s available rules and regulations.  Mr. Baker is available to discuss this 
matter further at a future meeting if needed. 

Request: Board action to authorize payment of the final list of approved CARES Act Business 
Grant applications and authorize a separate check run for these payments. 

4. Public Comments Policy:  At your last meeting Chairman Jones discussed possible changes 
to the Board’s meeting public comment procedure.  Earlier, I emailed a draft copy of the 
proposed changes for your review and for today’s discussion.  Chairman Jones will review the 
document with the Board this morning. 

Request: Board discussion and possible action on the changes. 

5. Minimum Wage Salary Study: Towards the end of your December 1st meeting the Board 
discussed preparing for the mandatory $15 minimum wage increase.  After the meeting, Mrs. 
Erin Griffith forwarded a salary study that was done in 1995 by RES but never adopted by the 
County.  Would the Board consider authorizing staff to develop a Request for Qualifications or 
Proposals to have a similar study done that would include a plan to adjust county employee 
wages for the yearly mandatory increases to the minimum wage? 

Request: Board discussion and direction.  

6. H67 Sidewalk Change Order:  Franklin County has received Change Order No. 2 for the 
Highway 67 Sidewalk project.  This is the final change order to clean up all the loose ends on 
the project.  There is no change in the dollar amount of the project or the number of 
days.  The only change is in the scope of the project.  Some items are added, and some items 
are deleted.   

Request: Board action to approve Change Order No. 2. 

7. Alligator Point Multi-Use Path FDOT Agreement:  FDOT has sent the County the agreement 
for the construction of another phase of Alligator Point Multi-Use Path from Tom Roberts 
Road to Gulf Shore Boulevard.  We are negotiating with FDOT about what to do with the 
multi-use path in the area where Alligator Drive will be rebuilt.  It appears that FDOT will 
agree to take the area where the road will be reconstructed out of the multi-use path project 
with the understanding that Franklin County will provide a connection through this area for 
bicyclist and pedestrians. 

Request: Board action to approve the agreement for $369,773.00, and also approve a Resolution 
authorizing the chairman to sign the agreement. 

10



8. CR67:  FDOT has sent the County a Supplemental Agreement for the CR 67 SCOP Project 
(FPN 440644-1-54-01) that reduces the amount of the grant from $4,109,841 to 
$3,468,302.  This is because the CEI costs and the construction bid were lower than what was 
originally estimated.  This will still leave some contingency funds available in case something 
comes up during construction, but it will allow FDOT to fund other projects with the excess 
funds. 

Request: Board action to approve a Resolution authorizing the Chairman to sign the 
Supplemental Agreement and approve the Supplemental Agreement itself. 

9. CR30A Resurfacing Project:  FDOT has sent the County a Supplemental Agreement for the 
CR 30A SCRAP Project (FPN 440621-2-54-01) that reduces the amount of the grant from 
$1,376,018 to $1,312,301.  This is because the CEI costs and the construction bid were lower 
than what was originally estimated.  This will still leave some contingency funds available in 
case something comes up during construction, but it will allow FDOT to fund other projects 
with the excess funds.   

Request: Board action to approve a Resolution authorizing the Chairman to sign the 
Supplemental Agreement and approve the Supplemental Agreement itself. 

10. SCOP, SCRAP, CIGP Grants:  The Florida Department of Transportation has announced 
that the cycle for state funded transportation grants (Small County Road Assistance Program 
– SCRAP, Small County Outreach Program – SCOP, and County Incentive Grant Program – 
CIGP) opened yesterday and will close on March 12, 2021.  These are the grants the County 
has frequently used in the past to resurface various County roads.  If the Commissioners have 
any roads that might be eligible for one of these grants, please contact the Planning 
Department so they can start preparing the grant applications. 

Request: Board discussion and direction. 

11. CRF Fraud Case:  Mrs. Lori Switzer-Mills, administrator of your Coronavirus Relief Funds 
(CRF) program, notified me of a potential fraud case based on an application and supporting 
documentation that was submitted, approved, and received $2500 of program funds.  I 
suggested to Ms. Mills that she contact the Sheriff’s investigation unit and present the 
information for their review.  The investigator contacted Ms. Mills last week and stated that 
the applicant is would like to pay back the $2500 and asked if the County would consider 
dropping the charges.  Mrs. Mills has contacted Florida Housing (State) and is waiting for a 
response.  If the State defers to the County, will the Board accept full restitution and drop any 
charges or proceed with prosecution? 

Request: Board discussion and direction. 

12. Duck Hunting Issues:  You have received complaints regarding actions of out-of-town 
duck hunters that are negatively affecting certain grass beds and killing more ducks than are 
allowed based on FWC rules.  Commissioner Parrish is very versed on this situation and I will 
ask him to relay to the Board the same information he did to me last week.  Commissioner 
Boldt volunteered to contact FWC to find out what options the County has to help rectify this 
situation and would like to discuss those options with the Board.  I asked Attorney Shuler to 
look at what other counties have done that may have experienced this same situation. 

Request: Board discussion and possible action on this matter. 

13. FWC Commission Meeting:  The next FWC Commission meeting is scheduled for 
tomorrow Wednesday, December 16, 2020 and it is a virtual meeting.  The first action item 
on the agenda is the Final Rule on the Apalachicola Bay Oysters.  As the Board is aware, at the 
FWC Commission July 2020 meeting the FWC Commissioners supported restoration efforts in 
the Apalachicola Bay by approving draft rules to suspend harvest of wild oysters and prohibit 
on-the-water possession of tongs.  Commissioner Lockley, Chairman of the Board of County 

11



Commissioners at the time, spoke at that meeting and expressed his desire for the FWC to 
provide some type financial relief to the displaced oystermen, frequent reporting of the 
condition of the Bay to the County Commission, and a possible reduction of the closure from 5 
years to 3 years.  Chairman Jones plans on addressing the FWC Commission tomorrow 
morning to repeat those same requests along with any other concerns this Board will discuss 
today. 

Request: Board discussion. 

14. Legislative Delegation:  Franklin County’s Legislative Delegation with Representative 
Shoaf and Senator Ausley is scheduled at 5:00 pm this afternoon here in your meeting room.  
The agenda format is slightly different than it has been in the past so everyone, including 
elected officials, have to submit a request to speak by filling out a virtual speaker card.  
Chairman Jones has submitted a request. Do any other Commissioners plan on speaking or do 
you prefer the Chairman to present, at the meeting, all items discussed today. 

Request: Board discussion. 

15. Legislative Budget Requests:  Senator Ausley office sent out the Legislative Budget 
Request forms.  Below is last legislative session’s funding request, which included requests 
from both cities. This year’s legislative session begins on March 2nd, so the deadline to 
submit our funding request is Friday, January 15th, 2021.  I will have a list for your approval 
at the January 5th, 2021 meeting. 

Request: Board discussion. 

New Emergency Operations Center ($1,500,000) – County Project 

Fort Coombs Armory Fire Sprinkler Installation ($250,000) – County Project 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Repairs ($528,000) – City of Apalachicola 

Drinking Water and Facilities Planning and Design ($112,250) – City of Carrabelle 

Inflow and Infiltration Study and Repairs ($370,000) – City of Apalachicola  

Lift Station #4 Improvement and Repair Project ($492,000) – City of Apalachicola 

16. Armory Rentals:  To comply with CDC and Government COVID-19 safety 
recommendations, the Board suspended event rentals for the Fort Coombs Armory.  Staff has 
received a few calls inquiring about rentals for 2021. Will the Board continue this suspension 
policy until at least the end of March 2021? 

Request: Board discussion and direction. 

Special Information Item: 

17. Mrs. Amy Ham-Kelly Resignation:  It is with a heavy heart that I inform the Board that 
your Flood Plain Manager and Zoning Administrator, Mrs. Amy Ham-Kelly, submitted her 
resignation effective January 22, 2021.   Mrs. Ham-Kelly served the County faithfully for 20 
years.  She decided that it is time to use her skills in a different field of employment.  As you 
can imagine, Mrs. Ham-Kelly will be missed by the Building Department and Planning staff, 
this Board, the Planning and Zoning Commission members, the Board of Adjustment 
members, contractors, homeowners, and other residents that asked for her advice when 
considering building project, large or small.  Amy, we wish you the best, and we know that 
you may no longer be a part of this office, but this office will always be a part of you!  

County Attorney – Michael Shuler – Report 

X. Buddy Ward Artificial Reef Contract Discussion and Possible Action  

Commissioners’ Comments 

12



Adjournment 

13



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 1 of 33 

 

FRANKLIN COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR MEETING 

COURTHOUSE ANNEX, COMMISSION MEETING ROOM 
DECEMBER 1, 2020 

9:00 A.M. 
MINUTES 

 

Commissioners Present:  Ricky Jones-Chairman, Bert Bold, II-Vice-Chairman, Noah Lockley, 
Joseph Parrish, Jessica V. Ward 
 
Others Present:  Marcia M. Johnson-Clerk of Court, Michael Shuler-County Attorney, Michael 
Moron—County Coordinator, Lori P. Hines-Deputy Clerk to the Board.   
 

Call to Order 
A. Public Notice 

To comply with CDC and Government social distancing requirements, the general public 
will not be allowed in the commission meeting room for this meeting; therefore, this 
Board of County Commission regular meeting will be conducted via livestream and 

Zoom.  Those wanting to view the meeting can use the livestream 
link (https://facebook.com/forgottencoasttv/) or go to Forgotten Coast TV's 

Facebook Page. The livestream feed will promptly start 5 minutes before the meeting 
commences.  You do not need a Facebook account to view Facebook live. Those 
wanting to participate during “Public Comments” should use the Zoom log-in/call-in 

information provided below. There is a link to a list of videos and Getting Started 
Resources on the main "Agenda and Minutes" webpage for those unfamiliar with Zoom. 

If you are experiencing any issues with the livestream or Zoom, call (850) 653-9783 
extension 373 for assistance.  

Any person who wishes to appeal a decision made by the Franklin County Board of 
County Commissioners, with respect to any matter considered at the meeting, must have 
a record of the proceedings.  He or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 

proceedings is made. 
B. This meeting is being held via Zoom and all attendees are muted by default. To join 

via computer, use the link on the meeting date and time: 
https://zoom.us/j/94236348231 
If you do not have speakers or a microphone on your computer or prefer to call, you 
can dial in for audio. Call (301) 715-8592 or (312) 626- 6799 or (929) 205-6099 and 
enter ID 942 3634 8231#. 
If you would like to speak during the public comment portion of the meeting, you 
have the following options: 
Online - select the "raise your hand" icon. 
Phone - press *9 to raise your hand, *6 to unmute to submit verbal comments. 
Public engagement is important to us, and meeting remotely is still a new process. We 
appreciate everyone’s understanding. 

 

14

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 2 of 33 

 

Chairman Jones called the meeting to Order. 
 
Prayer and Pledge 
 
Commissioner Boldt said a prayer followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 

On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Boldt, and by unanimous 
vote of the Board present, it was agreed to approve the minutes from the meeting held on 
November 17, 2020.   
 

Payment of County Bills 
 
Commissioner Ward made a motion to approve payment of the County’s bills.  Commissioner 
Boldt seconded the motion.  Mr. Moron explained there will be a temporary approval for the 
payment to Roberts & Roberts until they get to an item on his report.  Motion carried; 5-0. 
 
Public Comments 
 
Mrs. Mel Kelly, a resident of Carrabelle, said she hopes they will allow an open meeting soon.  
She asked for an extension on the airport report because this issue is being rushed through and 
professionals from the airport group are not being considered.  Mrs. Kelly requested extra time 
for the report to be vetted by individuals chosen for the airport board that were not included in 
this report.   
 
Mr. Moron asked the Board if they would like him to respond to the comment about the airport 
report now or during his report later in the meeting.  The Board agreed to address this later in 
the meeting during his report.       
 
Department Directors Report 
 
Superintendent of Public Works – Howard Nabors 
 

C. Road Department Board Report 
 

Information Items  
1. Detail of Work Performed and Material Hauled by District (see attached documents) 
 

Mr. Nabors did not have a report for the Board.  Chairman Jones stated the contractor should 
be on North Bayshore Drive today or tomorrow and they will get this area fixed so the county 
will not have to worry about people continuing to steal the signs.  Mr. Nabors reported signs 
were placed in this location twice and they were stolen.  He stated he has a request from Mr. 
Moron for some signs on St. George Island but they put the signs up and then they are stolen.  

15

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 3 of 33 

 

Mr. Nabors explained pictures will be taken when the work is done on North Bayshore Drive as 
the county will need to document the work so hopefully they can get reimbursed from FEMA.   
 
Solid Waste Director – Fonda Davis 
 
Mr. Davis did not have a report for the Board.  Chairman Jones stated yesterday they were 
talking about Indian Creek and he will let him know about the availability of funds.  He said 
hopefully between him, Mr. Davis and the contractor they can come up with something to 
finish out this project because people are paying for a dock and do not have a place to dock.  
Mr. Davis stated one of the people has already looked at the supplies and one of the floating 
docks but he did not recommend using it.       
 
Emergency Management Director – Pam Brownell 
 
Mrs. Brownell did not have any action items.  She presented the care packages that were 
purchased with CARES money and will be distributed to the vulnerable population of the 
county.  She stated they will contact the 2 organizations that serve senior citizens and find out 
how many people they have to make sure everyone receives one of the packages.  She reported 
people on the special needs list will also be contacted and receive a package.  Mrs. Brownell 
said they will also distribute these to employees at businesses instead of giving the packages to 
the businesses to distribute to the public.        
 
Commissioner Boldt asked if Mr. Davis is working with Mrs. Brownell on construction ready 
plans for Island View Park.  Mrs. Brownell answered no and said a class was offered on 
procurement but she can assist with the scope of work, the language that must be included on 
the Request for Proposals (RFP) and the scoring sheets.     
 

D. Emergency Management Board Report 
Information Items  
1. Digital Kiosks were step-up and programed 11/24/20. 
2. Message Boards have arrived and are in the process of getting tags for them in 
order to put them out in the community. 
3. Items for the care bags for the venerable population are arriving and EOC staff and 
beginning to assemble them. 
4. EOC Staff continues to work Hurricane Sally from 09/12/20 and continues to work 
with FDEM and FEMA. 
5. EOC Staff continue to participate in the NOAA Tropical Weather Training.  
6. EOC has submitted our New LMS Plan and corrections to the state and are awaiting 
approval. 
7. EOC Staff along with our CERT Volunteers continue to distribute washable & 
reusable cloth mask throughout our community.  We have partnered with the City of 
Carrabelle and City of Apalachicola Chamber of Commerce along with the St. George 
Island & Eastpoint Visitor Centers to assist with distribution to local businesses and 
residents.  We will continue this effort as long as supplies are available.  
8. EOC Staff are working diligently with DOH Staff regarding the COVID-19 virus.  This 
includes hosting meetings with representatives from DOH, Sheriff’s Dept. Weems, 

16

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 4 of 33 

 
EMS, as needed.  We also are assisting with Conference Calls, information distribution 
from DOH via Alert Franklin, Facebook and our EOC Website. 
9. EOC Staff continue to participate in conference calls with State DEM, Region 2, DOH, 
FEMA, etc. regarding COVID 19.  We also continue to update WebEOC with Local State 
of Emergency and SitReps. 
10. EOC Staff continue to work on FEMA reimbursement claims from Hurricane 
Michael. This includes working with FEMA staff regarding mitigation of damaged 
parks, roads, etc.  Mitigation takes some time but EOC Staff continue to work 
diligently with FEMA Staff on the most beneficial repairs for Franklin County.  We are 
in contact with our PDMG regularly regarding these projects and will update the 
Board as soon as the State Review is completed. EOC Staff has also began the FEMA 
reimbursement claim process for COVID-19 and Hurricane Sally. 
11. Copy of the DOH Dashboard regarding COVID-19 Cases in Franklin County as of 
11/24/20 at 11:00 am (see attached document) 
 

Extension Office Director – Erik Lovestrand 
 
Mr. Lovestrand did not have any action items. 
 

E. Extension Director Board Report 
Informational Items  
General Extension Activities: 
1. NOTE: Short report this period due to the Agent using a week of Annual Leave. 
2. During this period, the Extension office assisted citizens on the topics of small 
beetles in house (drugstore beetle, Stegobium paniceum), plant disease, injured 
wildlife, biting insects and more. 
3. Extension Director attended Friends of the Reserve Board meeting. 
4. Extension Director continuing to work on annual report of accomplishments as 
required by UF/IFAS and due on December 4. 
Sea Grant Extension: 
5. Extension Director participated in discussions with other faculty regarding 
potential for a training program for new oyster aquaculture lease-holders in Franklin 
County. 
Family and Consumer Sciences: 
6. Family Nutrition Program assistant, following school and UF Covid Phase III 
policies, is resuming a few in-person lessons in local schools. 
 
Agriculture/Home Horticulture: 
7. Received diagnosis of plant disease for ligustrum hedges for client in Eastpoint 
(disease: Anthracnose). 

 

Library Director -- Whitney Roundtree 
 
Mr. Moron said Mrs. Roundtree is not present.  Chairman Jones stated they can direct 
questions to Mr. Moron and he can contact her.     
 

F. Library Director Board Report  
Information Items  

17

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 5 of 33 

 
1. December 18th- Attended virtual meeting with Emily Hart and Marian Deeney, of 
the Division of Library Information Services, regarding available state grant programs 
for libraries.  
2. Completed and submitted State Aide to Libraries Grant application November 30th, 
2020. 
3. November 30th is the deadline for applications for the vacant fulltime library 
assistant position. Pam Tullous, president of the Friends of the Franklin County Public 
Libraries, will be assisting the library director with conducting interviews. 
Library Events: 
4. December 2nd- Eastpoint Branch: Diabetes awareness class at 10:00 AM 
5. December 2nd- Eastpoint Branch: Book Chat at 1:30 PM 
6. December 4th- Carrabelle Branch: Book Chat at 1:30 PM 
7. December 8th- Carrabelle Branch: Anime Club (grades 6-12) at 4:00 PM 
8. December 10th- Eastpoint Branch: Anime Club (grades 6-12) at 4:00 PM 
9. December 16th- Eastpoint Branch: Writer’s Forum at 1:00 PM 
10. December 16th – Eastpoint Branch: Christmas Story Time (ages 1-6) 4:00 PM 
11. December 17th- Carrabelle Branch: Christmas Story Time (ages 1-6) 4:00 PM 
12. All branches will be closed December 24th, 25th and 26th, as well as January 1st, 
in observance of the Christmas and New Year’s holiday. 
 

RFP / RFQ / Bids Opening 
 

G. St. George Island Entry Landscaping: 
The Franklin County Board of County Commissioners will receive sealed bids from 
any qualified person, company or corporation interested in constructing: 

SAINT GEORGE ISLAND ENTRY LANDSCAPING 
The project is located along the SR 300 right-of-way where it enters St. George Island 
between Bryant Patton Bridge and West Bay Shore Drive. The project consists of 
miscellaneous landscaping and irrigation improvements within the SR 300 right-of-
way. 
Plans and specifications can be obtained by contacting Cortni Bankston, 
Administrative Assistant, at cortnib@franklincountyflorida.com or 850-653-9783 x-
180. The bid must conform to Section 287.133(3) Florida Statutes, on public entity 
crimes. 
 

Mr. Alan Pierce opened and read the bid, as follows: 
 
  Company   Location   Bid Amount 

 
Lawnscapes of Bay County, Inc.         Panama City, FL               $129,300.00 

 
 

A check was included in lieu of a bid bond.  Mr. Moron informed the Board this project does not 
have a 3 bid minimum requirement that most Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) 
projects have.  He said he will have to ask if there is a review committee.  Mr. Pierce explained 
they will need to refer the bid to Mr.  Mark Curenton, County Planner, to make sure the bid 
amount is within the budget.  Mr. Moron stated Mr. Curenton will come back with a 
recommendation at the next meeting.  Chairman Jones inquired if this project addresses one 

18

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 6 of 33 

 

side of the road or both sides of the road.  Mr. Moron said he will need to verify the area.  He 
requested a motion to turn the bid over to Mr. Curenton for review and a recommendation.  
Commissioner Lockley asked where this project was advertised because they only received one 
bid.  Mr. Moron reported it was advertised in The Apalachicola Times and on the county 
website which is the standard process.  On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by 
Commissioner Ward, and by unanimous vote of the Board present, it was agreed to send the 
bid to Mr. Curenton for review and a recommendation.   
 
Mrs. Roundtree appeared before the Board and said she has no action items.  She offered to 
answer any questions.  Chairman Jones stated the Board authorized her to advertise for a 
position and he inquired where they are in this process.  Mrs. Roundtree responded the 
advertisement closed yesterday and they had 12 applicants.  She stated Ms. Pam Tullous, 
Friends of the Franklin County Library, will be assisting her with the interviews.  
 
Mrs. Roundtree reported they are working with the new IT person, Mr. Kevin Ward, Eagle Tree 
Technologies, and he is doing a great job and has already fixed some things.   
 
Mrs. Roundtree said she has a retirement card for Ms. Pat Gilleland, Administrator for 
Wilderness Coast Public Libraries (WILD), if any of the Board members would like to sign it.  
Commissioner Boldt reported the WILD Board will meet a week from Monday at 1:30 p.m. at 
the Wakulla County Library and will be meeting in person for the first time in a long time.   Mrs. 
Roundtree agreed she is looking forward to meeting some of the people in person.  
Commissioner Boldt stated they will also be meeting Ms. Gilleland’s replacement that day.  
Mrs. Roundtree said she has already met her. 
 
Commissioner Boldt asked if they allocated some money for new computers at the libraries.  
Mrs. Roundtree said she has a meeting tomorrow and it was mentioned that there may be an 
allotment for some new computers.  She reported they need some staff computers.   She stated 
Mr. Ward is evaluating the computers at this time to see what is needed.  Commissioner Boldt 
said they will standby for a determination.   
 
Commissioner Lockley questioned how the job interviews will be conducted.  Mrs. Roundtree 
stated she and Ms. Tullous will interview all the applicants and Ms. Tullous will assist her with 
the process.  Commissioner Lockley asked what she means by all the applicants.  Mrs. 
Roundtree replied they will interview all the applicants that submitted applications within the 
time frame.  Commissioner Lockley stated they will not be using the applications they have on 
hand.  Mrs. Roundtree said no but she selected the best applicant out of the last group and 
unfortunately the person got a better job offer and decided to leave.  Commissioner Lockley 
explained the reason he asked is last time they advertised but went into applications they 
already had.  Mrs. Roundtree said they will not use the applications from the last round.  She 
reported one person applied after the deadline last time and she was told she could reapply 
this time but she does not know if the person submitted an application this time.  Chairman 

19

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 7 of 33 

 

Jones stated Mrs. Roundtree is not aware if the person reapplied.  Mrs. Roundtree replied that 
is correct and anyone was welcome to reapply.     
 
CARES Act Funds Consultant -- Traci Buzbee -- Update  
 
Mrs. Buzbee said they need to talk about the applications that came in, the next deadline and 
what they are faced with.  She reported to date there are 18 applications that were reviewed 
by Opportunity Florida and 8 applications were approved.  Mr. Moron distributed a list of the 
applications that were approved for business grants.  Ms. Buzbee said these business grants are 
being submitted to the Clerk’s Office and when Opportunity Florida sends back the approval 
and justification and the checks are cut then all of these items will be submitted as a package to 
the state because they will need to review all these items.  She reported the deadline for 
applications was November 16th and Opportunity Florida extended that another week because 
people did not turn in the backup documentation.  Ms. Buzbee stated they are working on 
some applications and additional applications were received yesterday but they are getting 
close to the end of the applications.  She offered to answer any questions.  Mr. Moron 
requested the Board approve the business grants presented, the food pantry distributions and 
a special run for the checks.  He explained they are trying to keep the Cares Act items 
separately for an audit that may follow in a year or two.  Commissioner Lockley stated they 
need to make sure they have all the food pantries.  Ms. Buzbee said there are 5 food pantries 
and that is the next thing she will address.  She explained she talked with the state and they 
have reviewers looking at the packages they are submitting because they want to make sure 
they are getting everything they need for backup documentation.  Ms. Buzbee said this is 
important because they want to make sure they have all the backup they need to prove why 
the expenditures were made.  She explained December 3rd is the last day for them to turn in 
their Request for Reimbursement (RFR).  She reported the state wants to see their entire 
allocation which is $2,115,720.00.  Ms. Buzbee explained this does not mean the line items 
above and beyond will not be there but on Thursday, December 3rd they can only submit that 
amount.  She said she is hearing rumors the deadline may be extended but they have to work 
on the December 30th deadline.  She stated there are a few items such as the items for the 
Property Appraiser and Tax Collector that will not be in until around December 14th and those 
will be expenditures but they will not have the checks yet.  Ms. Buzbee said once they have the 
spreadsheet to submit on December 3rd she will send it to Mr. Moron so the Board can see 
what is being turned in.  She reported they may not see everything on this spreadsheet because 
some of the other items may come out of another pot at the time.  She explained the state 
representative said to turn in more in case some of the items are not approved by the federal 
government even though it is approved by the Florida Division of Emergency Management and 
because there are other counties that have not spent their money.  Ms. Buzbee reported that 
will allow them 3 more weeks to request documentation or say they have more money.    
Chairman Jones questioned if the action items are approval of the business grants, approval of 
the money for the food pantries and a special check run.  Ms. Buzbee answered yes and asked 
what the Board’s meeting schedule is this month because they may have expenditures coming 
in that need checks before December 30th.  Mr. Moron explained the Board will meet on 

20

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 8 of 33 

 

December 15th and at that point she can provide an update and the Board can decide if they 
need a special meeting or a motion to allow the authorization.  Chairman Jones requested the 
Board have more documentation than just one page.  Ms. Buzbee asked if they want to see all 
the applications.  Chairman Jones clarified they want to know what all the other expenditures 
are and the dollar amounts.  Ms. Buzbee stated with the Thursday deadline they do not have 
this on paper yet but she will send it to Mr. Moron on Friday.  Mr. Moron reported Florida 
Attorney General Ashley Moody joined in with other states in petitioning to extend the 
deadline date.  Ms. Buzbee agreed there are different scenarios for extending the county’s 
current $2.1 million and she has also heard about additional money but it all depends on what 
Congress does.  She explained they are working on the current deadline because they do not 
want to leave any money on the table that must be returned.  She reported they will get to the 
current number but they want to include the additional so if they extend the deadline and give 
more funds the county could say they have these additional items.  Mr. Moron said Chairman 
Jones asked for the additional paperwork so everyone knows what the money is being spent 
for.  Commissioner Parrish made a motion to approve the business grant applications in front 
of them, distribution to the 5 food pantries and that these items be done as a special check 
run.  Commissioner Boldt seconded the motion.  Commissioner Parrish verified the December 
3rd deadline allows the state to see the expenditures the county has already made and see if 
some counties have not spent all their money and additional funds are left.  He stated in 
relation to Congress the CARES Act runs until December 31st just like the Payroll Protection Plan 
(PPP) and they go back and determine what is forgiven and what is owed back to the federal 
government.  He said everything is handled then unless this deadline is extended.  
Commissioner Parrish reported just like Chairman Jones he would like to see documentation of 
where this money has been spent.  He stated they need to be able to explain to constituents 
where all these funds have gone.  Commissioner Lockley said he wants to make sure they 
covered all the food pantries and that they do not leave anyone out.  Mr. Moron explained they 
started with 3 food pantries and then 2 additional groups applied for money and were 
determined to be food pantries so there are 5 food pantries.  He said unless someone submits a 
request they will not know about another organization.  Chairman Jones requested they read 
the list of food pantries.  Ms. Buzbee said the 5 food pantries are Eastpoint Food Pantry, 
Franklin Foods, Franklin’s Promise, Carrabelle Food Pantry and ECCC.  Commissioner Boldt 
suggested they reach out to the food pantries and see if they know about another food pantry.  
Ms. Buzbee stated she contacted Ms. Joe Taylor, Franklin’s Promise, and he provided the 
established food pantries.  Commissioner Lockley said he is satisfied as long as all the food 
pantries are covered.  Mr. Moron asked if they will let him know as soon as possible if someone 
comes to them with another food pantry.  Mrs. Griffith questioned if the $2 million going to the 
county includes the allocation to Weems Memorial Hospital.  Ms. Buzbee responded no, 
Weems Memorial Hospital received their own allocation.  Commissioner Boldt said they 
received $3.2 million.  Mr. Moron pointed out Weems Memorial Hospital has a March or April 
deadline for spending their funds.  Ms. Buzbee agreed they are not on the same deadline as the 
county.  She stated the CRS funds going through SHIP do not have the same deadline either.  
Motion carried; 5-0.   
 

21

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 9 of 33 

 

Clerk of Courts – Marcia M. Johnson – Report 
 
H. Clerk of Courts Board Report 

Board Matters 
 

Clerk Johnson introduced incoming Clerk Michele Maxwell that will take office on January 1, 
2021.  She stated Mrs. Maxwell will attend this meeting and the next meeting.  She reminded 
the Board of all the things the Clerk’s Office does on these projects such as the CARES Act 
funding and the extra checks runs they are asking for.  Clerk Johnson reported her staff checks 
all of these items for accuracy.  She stated all of the SHIP and CDBG expenditures are also 
audited by the Clerk’s Office and it is a lot of work and they are spending a lot of hours on these 
items.  Clerk Johnson read the following report: 

 
1.  Florida Statute 129.06(5) prohibits elected officials who are not seeking reelection from making any 
budget amendments, transferring funds between itemized appropriations, or expending in a single 
month more than one-twelfth of any itemized approved appropriation without approval of the Board of 
County Commissioners.  I have two employees who will be retiring or leaving employment at the end of 
the month and pursuant to the personnel rules, I will need to pay out for their unused leave balances.  
This payout will exceed 1/12 of the budgeted values in the month of December.  This should not affect 
the remaining portion of the year as the budget will be able to shoulder the payout stretched over the 
12 month period due to changes in personnel.   Action requested is Board approval to exceed 1/12 of 
my budget allocation for the month of December. 
 
Clerk Johnson said this item was also discussed with Mrs. Maxwell.  On motion by Commissioner 
Lockley, seconded by Commissioner Parrish, and by unanimous vote of the Board present, it was 
agreed to allow the Clerk to exceed the 1/12 budget allocation for the month of December.  
Commissioner Ward thanked the Clerk for all her office does.  Commissioner Boldt said he appreciates 
how much the legacy is she has brought to the County Clerk position and he encouraged her to stand by 
with her knowledge so Mrs. Maxwell can use that and as they may need to ask her some historical 
questions.  He stated they welcome her input when they can receive it.  Clerk Johnson said she 
appreciates it and will help Mrs. Maxwell all she can and will be there is anyone ever needs her.     
 

Special Project Coordinator -- Alan Pierce – Report 
 
Mr. Pierce read the following report: 
 

I. Special Projects Coordinator Board Report 
Action Item:  
1. Board action to rescind the motion awarding Anderson Columbia the Alligator 
Drive FEMA rebuild project.  Mr. Clay Kennedy has informed Anderson Columbia of 
my recommendation and they have told Mr. Kennedy that they have not expended 
any funds on the project.  While I do not like taking this step, after the Nov. 19 
teleconference with FEMA personnel specializing in procurement I realize the Board 
should re-advertise the project.  The issues at risk are: Anderson Columbia is not 
honoring their original bid so the Board is at risk with FEMA for awarding a higher 
amount to one contractor without giving other contractors the opportunity to revise 
their bids; the county uses the FDOT list of pre-qualified contractors as the only 

22

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 10 of 33 

 
contractors who can bid on a project and FEMA advises that the county cannot be so 
restrictive; and I cannot find any evidence where I sent the bid notice to minority 
owned businesses in the construction industry. 
Board action to re-advertise this project on a schedule that is consistent with 
FEMA guidelines and with the hope of opening bids at the January 19 BCC 
meeting. 
 

Mr. Pierce explained at the time he was trying to get a contract price and not trying to get a 
FEMA award so that is the reason these things were not done.  He requested the Board rescind 
the motion awarding the bid to Anderson Columbia for the Alligator Drive FEMA rebuild project 
and re-advertise the project on a schedule that is consistent with FEMA guidelines.  He 
explained the award was only verbal and they did not sign any documents.  He stated they hope 
to open bids at the January 19th meeting.  Commissioner Lockley made a motion to rescind the 
motion awarding the bid to Anderson Columbia for the Alligator Drive FEMA rebuild project 
and re-advertise the project on a schedule that is consistent with FEMA guidelines.  
Commissioner Boldt seconded the motion.  Commissioner Boldt stated this is positive because 
the money is obligated and the project will move forward.  He said once they fine tune the 
procedures the project will be stronger.  Commissioner Parrish stated when they re-advertise 
they need to provide a date the contractor must get started on the project and a completion 
date.  He explained penalties need to be included if the project is not finished on time and the 
project needs to move in a timely manner.  Commissioner Parrish said the bid advertisement 
should give a certain date that the contractor must start by.  Mr. Pierce said last time there was 
a 180 day time frame and there were penalties if the work was not completed on time.    He 
reported they do have a timeline for the project.  Commissioner Parrish said the Board does not 
see the bid documents but he wants to make sure these items are included.  Mr. Pierce stated 
they will contact Mr. Clay Kennedy, Dewberry, for the documents and he will discuss these 
items with him.  He reported most counties benefit from using the FDOT prequalified list of 
contractors because they know they will have a good competent contractor and they just have 
to determine the lowest best bid.  He said he thinks other rural counties are doing the same 
thing on FEMA road projects.  Mr. Pierce explained other counties did not have a separate 
scoring system and he has requested information from FEMA as they are requiring it now.  He 
said he also requested some samples from Ms. Buzbee.  Mr. Pierce explained normally the 
advertisement says the contractor must be FDOT prequalified to bid.  He said he wants the 
county to be treated fairly and to make sure this is not a new person at FEMA that is requesting 
this item.  Commissioner Parrish said if the contractor is not competent they will not be able to 
meet the deadlines and will not want to sign something agreeing to pay penalties.   
Commissioner Lockley asked if this is a hurry up and wait situation or if the money is in the 
bank.  Mr. Pierce stated the money is in the bank.  He explained as soon as the county has a 
qualified competent contractor and awards the bid, the contractor can start working and they 
can draw their money and the county can seek reimbursement.  Mr. Pierce stated any time he 
or Ms. Buzbee say obligated it means the money is in the bank such in the following projects: 
Alligator Drive, Island View, and the C.R. 30A shoreline stabilization project.  He explained it is 
the county’s responsibility to get a contractor and get moving on the projects.  Mrs. Griffith 
pointed out the money is in the state’s bank.  Mr. Pierce agreed as these are handled as 

23

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 11 of 33 

 

reimbursements.  Commissioner Boldt said the county has a $1 million reserve and that is the 
source the money is drawn down from to pay the invoice of the contractor and then they fill 
that with FEMA money that is obligated.  Mrs. Griffith agreed that is correct.  Commissioner 
Boldt asked if $1 million is enough.  Mrs. Griffith replied they should be okay because they are 
early in the budget cycle and there are a lot of ad valorem tax proceeds coming in.  She said the 
funds they collect are supposed to last for 12 months so they are in month 2 for processing 
invoices so they will be okay.  She explained as soon as they pay a request then they will initiate 
a request for funds.  Mr. Pierce pointed out the state is pretty good about paying the requests.  
Commissioner Lockley said they were blessed that things did not tear up again this year but 
sometimes this road is damaged 2-3 times a year.  Mr. Pierce stated building the road back with 
the FEMA funds of $5.5 million will not make the road secure forever because the weak points 
will be wherever the revetment ends and the road will blow out again until there is a beach or 
artificial structure there to protect the road.  He stated he wants the people of Alligator Point to 
understand this is not solving the problem because they are saving one section of the road but 
other sections will be exposed.  Mr. Pierce reported the ultimate solution is a beach 
renourishment project funded partially by the state and maintained by the property owners 
who will benefit from the project.  He explained the beach is sacrificial to protect the road 
because without the beach the road will be hit with the waves from the hurricanes and the risk 
will return every time there is a storm.  Commissioner Lockley said this is not on FEMA but on 
the county and they need to stop talking about it and do something.  Mr. Pierce explained the 
first step was making application for $200,000 for design money from FDEP and if they receive 
the design money then they will be on the path to get the beach.  He said if they do not receive 
design money then they will have to face some difficult choices.  He stated hopefully the 
Legislature will award some money in May.  Commissioner Boldt reported the vision is if they 
can rebuild the beach seaward of the repaired area of the road the rebuilding of the beach will 
be from the center line of the road a mile east and west and then there is a potential benefit to 
the west of providing a beach area in front of the old KOA and maybe there will be room for 
parking lot and a bathroom.  Chairman Jones said in reference to what Commissioner Parrish 
mentioned on this project and other bids in the bid package will there be a date on the notice 
to proceed of when they need to start.  Mr. Pierce replied this is fairly standard.  He explained 
once they get the notice to proceed there is a certain timeframe to complete the work.  
Attorney Shuler reported the sequent of events is the Board advertises, receives the bids, the 
bids are analyzed and ranked, the Board awards the project and then they enter into a contract.  
He went on to say once the contract is signed the county is in control of when the project starts 
and that starts with the issuance of the notice to proceed.  Attorney Shuler said there is 
typically a 60 day window before the penalties start and there is also a provision for extending 
the contract.  He stated the county is more in charge of when the project starts than the 
contractor because the county analyzes the bids and prepares the contract.  Commissioner 
Lockley said he has been on the Board for 16 years and this is an unluckiest road because every 
time it is fixed and they get to the completion date within a year or two another storm comes 
and they start over.  He stated they must do something to help protect the road.  Chairman 
Jones agreed he has been here 4 years and this was in existence when he got here.  Mr. Pierce 
stated this is the most exposed road in the state.  Commissioner Boldt said about a year ago 

24

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 12 of 33 

 

they went to the state capitol and Representative Jason Shoaf hosted a meeting relative to this 
road and they formally asked the state to take the road back and they officially got the answer 
which was no.  He said they even tried to trade something else.  Motion carried; 5-0.     
 

Information Item: 
2. Inform the Board that TRIUMPH has accepted AVCON as eligible to complete the 
design and construction documents for the TRIUMPH project.  Mr. Collins, AVCON, is 
working on the Task Order, and when that is complete I will submit that to TRIUMPH 
for approval.  Once TRIUMPH approves the Task Order, I will then ask the Board to 
approve the Task Order, and then AVCON can complete the design and begin 
advertising for construction. 

 
Mr. Pierce said this project is the $1 million fuel farm.   
 
Chairman Jones asked Mr. Pierce to contact the COE about the return letter they are supposed 
to get.  He explained they signed a letter but the COE wanted some of the language changed 
and they were supposed to send the letter.  Mr. Pierce said they have not received the letter 
and it is frustrating but everything is not working at full speed with people working from home.     
 
The meeting recessed at 9:59 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 10:07 a.m. 
 
County Coordinator – Michael Morón – Report 
 
Mr. Moron said he wants to discuss the airport master plan because the Board has received 
some emails about it and there was a public comment this morning about it.  He explained at 
the last meeting he informed the Board the public hearing was held via zoom on October 27th 
and December 2nd is the deadline for public comment.  He reported there was 36 days for 
anyone to offer public comments or ask questions of Avcon.  Mr. Moron stated he has an issue 
with people saying they had no opportunity to comment when there were 36 days.  
Commissioner Parrish said Mr. Moron reported at the last meeting that the Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) and FDOT said there was no need to grant an extension because 36 days 
was plenty of time.  Mr. Moron stated that is correct and Mr. John Collins, Avcon, checked and 
both agencies felt like there was no justification for an extension.  He explained the county got 
a grant for Avcon to do the airport master plan and the grant ends in March so they need to 
wrap up the public comments so they can do the summary report for the Board.  Mr. Moron 
said there is a misunderstanding that the Board has no power or authority over the master 
plan.  He reported the Board hired Avcon to create the airport master plan and then they will 
bring the plan back and the Board has the final say on what goes into the plan.  He explained 
the public comments must be included in the summary report Avcon will present to the Board.  
Mr. Moron reported Avcon is not closing the runway but they will explain the problem is there 
will be no grant funding for a particular runway.  Mr. Moron stated the Board must decide if 
they will leave this runway open until there is an inspection and then they must either repair 

25

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 13 of 33 

 

the runway or close it.  He pointed out the Board will make this decision and not Avcon.  He 
reported there will still be time for the public to comment when the Board reviews the 
summary report submitted by Avcon.  Commissioner Ward said she reviewed the report and 
believes they want time to review the report.  Mr. Moron agreed they want additional time to 
review the report.  Commissioner Ward asked if they are questioning Avcon’s master plan data 
or data from the airport.  Mr. Moron was not sure and said all he knows is they want additional 
time to review the report.  He stated if anyone reviews the zoom meeting they will see a 
gentleman asking about extending the time and he had a discussion with the man after the 
meeting and told him he would not bring this up until November 17th so any group that wanted 
to review it should have a meeting prior to that time and have conversations with Avcon and 
present what the issues are to him so he will know if there is a reason to delay the deadline and 
nothing has been submitted.  Commissioner Ward said they will get another opportunity for 
public comment when the master plan is presented to the Board so they will get to comment a 
second time.  Mr. Moron answered yes, they will have the same opportunity to comment as 
any other item and can send emails, comments or questions they would like asked publicly.  He 
explained the only difference is those comments will not be part of the summary report.  Mr. 
Moron stated the airport master plan grant ends in March and there is more work to be done.  
He said they cannot get the summary report done if they leave the public time period open 
longer.  Commissioner Ward reported there is concern about the runway being closed.  She said 
she watched the zoom meeting from October and basically FDOT is going to shut down the 
runway because of the pavement index and viability of the runway which could make it 
dangerous.  Commissioner Ward reported the county must have the cost to repair the runway 
of $7.9 million by 2022.  She explained FAA and FDOT are providing funds to maintain the other 
runways but will not provide funds for this runway because they are going to recommend 
closing the runway.  She verified the $7.9 million will be an expense of the county.  Mr. Moron 
said that is correct and Mr. Collins can explain it but he thinks either the county must spend this 
money to maintain the runway or they must close it because based on the inspection they are 
going to tell the county the runway is not safe anymore.  Commissioner Ward reported the 
county can say no to closing the runway but the FAA can still shut it down for safety reasons.  
Mr. Moron stated either the county maintains the runway and it passes the inspection or FAA 
will close the runway.  He went on to say because of COVID no one is flying so FAA and FDOT do 
not have the funds and they are looking at rural airports and if they have more than 2 runways 
they are not providing funds to maintain the 3rd runway.  Mr. Moron stated Avcon may have 
reported that FDOT is not funding some of the projects that were planned in the future.  Mr. 
Pierce agreed the projects have been delayed.  He explained the airport is owned by the county 
and the FAA recommends standards for proper operation but if the county disagrees and wants 
to keep the 3rd runway open when it is not safe then that is on the county.  He reported it is not 
realistic to keep the runway open if they cannot meet the standards.  Commissioner Parrish 
stated the $7.9 million is the cost now but there will also be future maintenance costs that the 
county will be responsible for which they do not have.  Mr. Moron said the public needs to 
understand that there was time for public comment and the closing of the runway is a matter 
of money.  Commissioner Parrish pointed out if they had a $30 million private endowment they 
could keep the runway open for a number of years.  Attorney Shuler stated the closure of the 

26

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 14 of 33 

 

3rd runway has been talked about for years and is not a new conversation.  He said he thought 
FDOT cut off the funding for the 3rd runway years ago.  Mr. Pierce stated at least 10 years ago 
they had a meeting with FDOT officials at the airport and they did not recommend funding the 
3rd runway.  He said there are different ways of closing a runway and the county tried different 
options for this runway.  He stated before the pandemic FDOT provided money to restripe all 
the runways but provided no maintenance funds for the 3rd runway.  Mr. Pierce said at least 10 
years ago they warned the county they did not need the 3rd runway because there was not 
enough traffic.  Attorney Shuler reported FDOT started that conversation.  Mr. Pierce agreed.  
He stated there is an opportunity costs because the 3rd runway does not go away from county 
ownership if it is closed and there are opportunities that could occur on that space that might 
be beneficial to the airport and the community.  He reported this space could turn into a 
taxiway or service area for someone and they are evaluating that.  Mr. Pierce said the drone 
operator they are talking to would be able to operate their military sized drones in this space if 
the runway was closed because they would be away from the traffic pattern.  He explained if 
they ever get into a negotiation with that company this may be an issue where they want 
security and seclusion.  Commissioner Parrish commented that is a potential economic benefit.  
Commissioner Boldt said he is an aviator and a triangular runway is rare and it is special to have 
3 runways.  He stated it is important to remember that the Emergency Management 
Department is considering a new building on this property and that is where the emergency 
operations are going to be based.  Commissioner Boldt reported there are aviation choices 
when they have this triangular runway and Tyndall Air Force base may be interested in training 
in these areas.  He stated there may be money available that they were not aware of for that 
area.  Commissioner Boldt reported shutting down a runway is a big deal.  Commissioner Boldt 
charged the aviation associations involved with the Apalachicola Airport to get moving on this 
subject and bring in more information for the Board.  Commissioner Ward stated hopefully in 
the future there will be grants to come in and resurface the runway.  Mr. Pierce reported if the 
runway is closed the pavement will not be dug up.  He said there is 5,000 linear feet of concrete 
that is 4-5 inches thick that will stay there.  He stated it could be used for something else and if 
later the county got the money and the traffic patterns increased they could reopen the runway 
so that option would not go away permanently if the runway closed.  Commissioner Ward said 
the regional airport is for economic growth and the community has needed the airport in the 
past and it helped with Hurricane Michael and during the Eastpoint fire.  Mr. Pierce explained 
the $1 million they are getting from Triumph for the fuel farm was based on the response the 
airport provided to the region because they were the mega center during recovery after 
Hurricane Michael and the Triumph Board recognized it.  He reported they helped to get the 
money for the fuel farm because the airport had fuel capacity after Hurricane Michael that no 
one else had.  Mr. Moron stated Mr. Ted Mostellar, a resident of Apalachicola, asked about 
digging up the runway if it is closed and Avcon said no they do not do that anymore.  He said 
there is a possibility of other uses on this runway and that was addressed during the zoom 
meeting.  Chairman Jones asked if there were public comments during the zoom meeting.  Mr. 
Moron replied yes.  Commissioner Ward added there were several comments and the same 
people got to speak multiple times and there was not a time limit.  Chairman Jones said that 
was not the only time to comment because during the public comment period people could 

27

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 15 of 33 

 

send in comments that would be included.  Mr. Moron agreed there were 36 days.  Chairman 
Jones reported things are not being done like before with meetings but they are not in those 
times now.  Mr. Moron said the benefit to the zoom meeting is anyone can view it at any time.  
He stated for 36 days people had a chance to watch it and comment.  Chairman Jones reported 
the plan will be presented to the Board and if they want changes to be made there will be 
another chance for the public to comment.  He stated there has been plenty of time for anyone 
to comment.  Commissioner Lockley said he has heard this for 10 years and they have known it 
for 10 years and now all of a sudden they need more time.  He stated if they give 100 days they 
will always need more time.  He reported it is time to move on and do what they need to do.  
Commissioner Lockley said they know what was discussed and Avcon and FAA have also 
discussed it.  He reported the runway is not going away but they do not have $8 million to keep 
it open and another $8 million to keep it maintained.  Commissioner Ward said that amount is 
to keep it open.  Commissioner Lockley questioned what the amount is for upkeep and said the 
county does not have the money and the airport is not producing that kind of money.  He 
explained once they get some things going and have the possibility of making the money back 
then they would take a chance on keeping it open.  Chairman Jones stated hopefully the 
summary report will provide more information and they will know the direction they should 
follow.  Commissioner Lockley said they want to accommodate people but do not have the 
money.     
 
Mr. Moron presented his report, as follows: 
 

J. County Coordinator’s Board Report 
Action Items 
 

1. Fiscal Manager/Grants Coordinator Position:  At your last meeting, the Board discussed 
the need for a Grants Coordinator position that would effectively administer grant funded 
(especially FEMA) projects.  I recommended Mrs. Erin Griffith for that position.  The Board 
then discussed adding the duties and the responsibilities of a County Budget Officer to that 
position since Mrs. Griffith performs those duties currently as an employee of the Clerk of 
Courts.  I asked for two independent opinions, one from the County’s Labor Attorney 
Leonard Carson, and from County Attorney Michael Shuler, for any advertising and 
designation requirements, especially relating to F.S. 129.025 which addresses a County 
Budget Officer.  They both came back with the same information, stating that F.S. 129.025 
grants the Board of County Commissioners the authority to designate their own Budget 
Officer, and since this is an appointed position, no advertisement is necessary.  I have 
emailed you a job description for this position for your review and to discuss this morning.  
If the Board accepts the essential functions of this position, the next step today would be to 
discuss a salary. 
Request: Board discussion and action on the job description and essential functions along with 
a salary for a Fiscal Manager/Grants Coordinator Position. 
 

Commissioner Ward clarified this action will not affect the Clerk of Court’s budget.  Mr. Moron 
said it will not and they have discussed this with the current Clerk and the Clerk-elect.  He 
questioned if everyone is okay with the job description.  Commissioner Parrish explained at the 
last Board meeting they were discussing different FEMA projects that are falling through the 

28

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 16 of 33 

 

cracks and Mr. Davis is not able to address these things and Mr. Pierce is ready to retire so they 
need someone to handle these items and Mrs. Griffith will fill that position.  He explained the 
county is also missing out on grant funding because they do not have staff that is currently 
applying for these grants.  He reported Mr. Curenton is in the DROP program and has been the 
grant manager but he is doing so many jobs he cannot handle all of these things.  Commissioner 
Parrish said the grants would bring more money into the county and fund projects that would 
not have to be funded with ad valorem taxes.  He reported they need to move forward and fill 
some of these functions that are not currently being filled because they have limited staff and 
they are dealing with Planning & Zoning issues.  Commissioner Parrish said he discussed these 
FEMA projects with Mrs. Griffith and having the county building inspector going out and 
inspecting some of these projects to make sure they are done right.  He reported Mrs. Griffith 
has done the budget for years and they trust her to do a good job.  Commissioner Parrish stated 
there are a lot of other items she will be doing that have not been addressed.  He explained 
they are reallocating some responsibilities and there may be some others that come along that 
they do not know of now.  Commissioner Parrish reported the neighboring counties are getting 
millions of dollars in grants that this county is not getting because they do not have staff to 
work on this item full time.  Commissioner Boldt stated since he has been on the Board he has 
encouraged Mrs. Griffith to be present at the meetings and that has happened.  He said he sees 
her presence as their formal fiscal manager and grants coordinator as a full time connected 
position with the Board and nothing but a high quality of communications will occur and this is 
positive for Mrs. Griffith and the Board.  Commissioner Lockley stated this is a good day 
because he has been asking for a grants writer since he has been here.  He said if they check 
with small counties most counties have their own budget officer and it is set up this way.  
Commissioner Lockley reported the Board needs this and it will help because right now Mrs. 
Griffith is working for Clerk Johnson and her time is split but now they can direct her and it will 
be done.  He explained he is not trying to take anything from the Clerk but they need this so 
Mrs. Griffith can work on some other things.  Commissioner Lockley stated he is in favor of this 
change.  Chairman Jones said he, like Commissioner Ward, wanted to know how this would 
affect the Clerk’s budget and he was told it would not.  He stated this is a proactive step for the 
Commission in having a budget officer but knowing that it would not affect the incoming Clerk’s 
budget was what made it worth pursuing.  He reported it had to be a win for everyone.  Mr. 
Moron agreed it was a team effort.  He asked if everyone is good with the job description.  
Commissioner Ward inquired if they asked Mrs. Griffith if she is okay with the job description.  
Mr. Moron said they had several days of negotiations and they agree to a pay scale of $68,000.  
He reported these funds will come out of professional services for the remainder of the budget 
year.  Mr. Moron explained Mrs. Griffith will also be looking at grant administration funds which 
will also help with the budget.  He reported her first day will be January 1, 2021 but her first 
working date will be January 4, 2021.  Commissioner Parrish explained as the new grants writer 
Mrs. Griffith may be able to get grant administration fees which will help to pay her salary.  Mr. 
Moron said the county could not get the grant administration fees before.  Commissioner 
Parrish pointed out because that was only a part time position and not a full time grants writer 
that could comply with all the rules to get the administration fees.  He explained these are ways 
that allow them to not affect the Clerk’s budget and come up with innovative ways to fund Mrs. 

29

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 17 of 33 

 

Griffith’s salary.  Commissioner Parrish said this will allow the Clerk-elect to hire someone to 
handle the duties that will still remain in the Clerk’s Office when Mrs. Griffith leaves this 
position.  Mr. Moron said Mrs. Griffith was a starch defender of leaving this money in the 
Clerk’s budget because she knew the duties that would still remain.  Chairman Jones verified 
they are asking for a motion to create the position, appoint Mrs. Griffith to the position, and set 
the salary and an effective date of January 1, 2021.  Mr. Moron stated they are transferring 
some of her leave like they did for him.  He questioned if there is any objection to transferring 
her years of service working for the county.  The Board did not have any objection.  
Commissioner Ward made a motion to create the position of Fiscal Manager/Grants 
Coordinator, appoint Mrs. Erin Griffith to this position effective January 1, 2021, set the salary 
for Mrs. Griffith at $68,000 annually, and transfer some of her leave and all of her years of 
working with the county.   Commissioner Lockley seconded the motion.  Commissioner 
Lockley said there are many grants out there and he is glad this is happening.  Motion carried; 
5-0.  Mr. Moron stated with Commissioner Ward now serving on Opportunity Florida he thinks 
the combination of these two things will provide more opportunities.  Commissioner Lockley 
asked about getting the grant administration funds.  Mr. Pierce explained there are usually 
grant administration funds but the CARES Act funding was specifically for emergency personnel.  
He reported when he handled these items there were not enough grants to warrant the 
bookkeeping for getting the grant administration fees.  He said this is a good move for the 
county and he supports it but there are still things the Clerk’s Office is doing such as special 
check runs.  Mr. Pierce stated there is still a burden on the Clerk’s Office that needs to be 
addressed.  Mrs. Griffith pointed out the Clerk’s Office is still the custodian of public funds so 
the Clerk’s Office will always have to cut the checks so there is still a level of responsibility there 
even if she processes the pay requests.  She reported these items will still go to the Clerk’s 
Office for payment and that is where these items will be housed.  Commissioner Lockley asked 
why the Clerk’s Office cannot get some of the COVID money if they are doing this work.  Mr. 
Pierce said the way the act was written the money is for emergency response personnel and 
staff does not meet that criteria.  He stated they will look into this issue but that is the initial 
understanding.  Commissioner Lockley said they need to write a letter that they are putting 
extra work on staff and they need to get paid.  He reported the private sector is getting paid 
and the county staff is not getting paid and that is not right.  Clerk Johnson explained there was 
a time she would not have been in favor of this position coming from the Clerk’s Office but right 
now she has such a good relationship with the County Commissioners and she is blessed 
because that is not the situation with all Clerks.  She reported one reason she is in favor of this 
is because the Clerk’s Office is still retaining the responsibilities of auditing the requests, paying 
the bills and cutting the checks.  Clerk Johnson said it is a lot of work and every time the county 
gets a grant it creates work for the Clerk’s Office.  She stated she does support this position and 
she thinks Mrs. Griffith and Mrs. Maxwell will develop a great relationship as well so it is a win 
for everyone.  Clerk Johnson said she is glad they left the funding in the Clerk’s Office because 
Mrs. Maxwell is going to need help as well.  Clerk Johnson stated Mrs. Griffith was doing the 
work of 2 people and Mrs. Linda Phillips, Finance Officer, is also doing the work of 2 people so 
that is why she is glad they are leaving the money.  She said they do this work because that is 
the kind of workers they are but there may come a point when she asks for additional funds.  

30

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 18 of 33 

 

Commissioner Boldt stated they have brought in another executive staff member and he wants 
to address Mr.  Moron and consider an increase for him.  He said as they moved through COVID 
issues they can look around and see some of the work he has done in this room.  He reported 
the participation on zoom in this building is better than it was before the pandemic.  
Commissioner Boldt stated he talks with Mr. Moron on weekends and after hours and he has 
helped him to understand the processes they are going through.  He reported he would like to 
make this more in line with the executive salaries.  He suggested an increase of $3,800 a year to 
bring his salary up to a level of the executive staff.  Commissioner Boldt stated this is value 
added in recognition of his work.  Chairman Jones said zoom is not going away soon and they 
will be doing these IT things for a while and he concurs with what Commissioner Boldt is saying.  
He stated at the last meeting Commissioner Parrish made a motion to complete the Buddy 
Ward Seafood Park and Mr. Moron will be the person to complete these things.  Commissioner 
Boldt made a motion to increase Mr. Moron’s salary in the amount of $3,800 annually.  
Commissioner Parrish seconded the motion.  Commissioner Lockley asked to add Mr. 
Curenton to this motion.  Chairman Jones agreed Mr. Curenton did the Planning & Zoning and 
Board of Adjustment work for months.  Commissioner Lockley stated he does not want to leave 
anyone out.  Mr. Pierce asked if the Clerk has any ideas about her Finance Office.  He stated 
they talked about the burden of the CARES grant staying with the Clerk’s Office so there may be 
an adjustment for that staff due to the increased work.  Clerk Johnson said it would be great if 
they also approved an increase for Mrs. Phillips.  She explained years ago the Board voted to 
give the 2 Finance Clerks a $5,000 raise and they turned it down because they felt other county 
employees would be hurt.  Clerk Johnson stated if the Board would be willing to increase her 
budget for an increase for Mrs. Phillips that would be great.  Chairman Jones asked if all these 
additional monies are coming out of professional services this year and will roll into the budget 
next year.  Mrs. Griffith agreed they would have the ability to pay for this out of professional 
services this year and most likely it would be reduced for next year.  Commissioner Boldt 
amended his motion to include a $3,800 increase for Mr. Curenton and increase the Clerk’s 
budget to give a $3,800 increase to Mrs. Phillips.  Commissioner Parrish amended his second.  
Motion carried; 5-0.  Mr. Moron thanked the Board.  He said it is more important that the 
Board recognizes that there are a lot of things going on with IT that the public does not see and 
he feels it is very important that the public has access to the meetings.  He agreed with 
Commissioner Boldt that the participation with the meetings is more now than before COVID 
and people realize things get done more efficiently if they contact their commissioner or staff 
ahead of time instead of waiting for the meeting.  Commissioner Boldt stated this was done on 
a value added basis and they saw a stellar performance by the individuals they discussed and 
they can measure it and document it.  Commissioner Lockley said the Board has left the 
attorney out.  Mr. Moron explained while doing research about the new fiscal manager position 
he found out Franklin County is one of the few counties that pays their attorney an hourly rate 
instead of as a retainer.  He reported if something comes up on a weekend he calls Attorney 
Shuler and did not know it would cause a problem.  Mr. Moron suggested the Board take an 
average of what Attorney Shuler made over the last few years and turn it into a retainer 
because it is easier for budgeting.  Chairman Jones asked if this would be similar to Mr. John 
Solomon’s position as TDC Director where the salary is divided into 12 payments.  Mr. Moron 

31

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 19 of 33 

 

agreed that would be easier.  Commissioner Boldt reported it is about access.  Commissioner 
Lockley made a motion to give Attorney Shuler a raise.  Mrs. Griffin reported $100,000 is 
budgeted for the County Attorney-Legal Services.  Mr. Moron suggested they divide this 
amount by 12.  Mrs. Griffith said they would need to pro-rate this amount.  Commissioner 
Lockley said he wants to give him a raise.  Mrs. Griffith explained Attorney Shuler has only 
invoiced through November 14th or 15th so it would be whatever the balance is less what is 
already paid.  Commissioner Lockley amended his motion to pro-rate the amount for the rest 
of the year minus what he has billed and go with a $10,000 increase.  Commissioner Ward 
seconded the motion.  Commissioner Lockley amended his motion to make the amount 
$112,000 to be divided into equal increments minus what has already been paid this year.  
Commissioner Ward amended her second.  Commissioner Boldt asked if they have conferred 
with Attorney Shuler.  Attorney Shuler said he is happy and grateful with the motion because 
he has not asked for any increase in his fees since 2013.  He commented the County Attorney 
budget has been at $100,000 since he started in 2001.  Attorney Shuler said the retainer 
payment would be great as he has gone to a flat fee for most of the work in his private practice.   
He stated he does some hourly work but mostly works on a flat fee basis.  He stated this would 
be a flat retainer paid out in 1/12’s and he is thankful for that if that is the Board’s decision.  
Motion carried; 5-0.     

 
2. CR 67 Award: Clay Kennedy, of Dewberry, has reviewed the low bid for the CR 67 
widening and resurfacing project and found the bid to be complete.  The Florida 
Department of Transportation has concurred on awarding the bid to C. W. Roberts 
Contracting, Inc. in the amount of $2,813,971.93.   
Request: Board action to award the CR 67 widening and resurfacing project to C. W. Roberts 
Contracting, Inc. 
 

On motion by Commissioner Ward, seconded by Commissioner Boldt, and by unanimous vote 
of the Board present, it was agreed to award the C.R. 67 Widening and Resurfacing Project to 
C.R. Roberts Contracting, Inc. in the amount of $2,813,971.93.   

 
3. CR 30A Award: Clay Kennedy, of Dewberry, has reviewed the low bid for the CR 30A 
widening and resurfacing project and found the bid to be complete.  The Florida 
Department of Transportation has concurred on awarding the bid to Roberts and Roberts, 
Inc. in the amount of $1,079,392.36.   
Request: Board action to award the CR 30A widening and resurfacing project to Roberts and 
Roberts, Inc. 
 

Commissioner Parrish made a motion to award the C.R. 30A Widening and Resurfacing 
Project to Roberts and Roberts, Inc. in the amount of $1,079,392.36.  Commissioner Lockley 
seconded the motion.  Commissioner Ward said they talked about submitting a letter to FDOT 
to make sure the causeway was paved as well and asked if they have heard back from them.  
Mr. Moron stated they have not but he is working with Mr. Benny Jacobs, Ferrovial.  He 
reported he will send the Commissioners the link for the 5 year plan.  Commissioner Parrish 
stated on the state right-of-way near Ace Hardware in Apalachicola the culvert is falling in.  He 
asked Mr. Moron to talk with Mr. Jacobs about this culvert while he is talking with him about 

32

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 20 of 33 

 

the other issue.  Mr. Moron agreed to address this item.  Commissioner Parrish said Mr. Nabors 
talked with them last week.  Commissioner Parrish stated he told them if they would replace 
the culvert while the road contractor was here he would pay to pave the area but they said 
they will wait until January and the contractor will be gone by then.  He explained the culvert is 
on state right-of-way and is their responsibility but it is falling in and needs to be fixed.  
Commissioner Lockley stated he had a couple of roads paved in the area last time and he 
missed one road which is the road where people clean fish.  He asked Mr. Moron to check on 
this road.  He reported if this road is not private they need to fix the road.  Commissioner Ward 
asked Commissioner Lockley if this road is off of Water Street.  Commissioner Lockley answered 
yes and said he has money in his paving fund to pave the road.  Commissioner Lockley said he 
does not think this is a private road.  Motion carried; 5-0.  Commissioner Parrish reported this 
property is owned by the City of Apalachicola.  Mr. Moron agreed to contact the City about this 
matter and report back at the next meeting.  Commissioner Lockley made a motion to pave 
the road contingent upon it meeting all the requirements.  Commissioner Parrish seconded 
the motion.  Commissioner Lockley said that way he will not have to pay the mobilization fee.  
Motion carried; 5-0.   
 

4. In-Person Public Attendance Update:  At your last meeting, the Board discussed allowing 
in-person public attendance to your regular meetings perhaps as early as January 2021.  I 
provided a list of recommendation for the Board to consider keeping the public, staff, and 
Commissioners as safe as possible. The Board asked Attorney Shuler and I to do some 
research on what other counties in the state are addressing in-person public attendance.  I 
think it is safe to say there is no consensus on this matter.  Some counties are allowing in 
person with different degrees of mask wearing, social distancing, temperature checks, etc., 
and other counties are still not allowing in-person attendance.  If the Board is ready to set a 
date to allow in-person public attendance today, I ask that you consider adopting the 
recommendations listed below. 
- Use the allowed seating locations as designated by the 2nd Circuit Court Trial Marshal, 
which is based on the Florida Supreme Court Chief Justice’s order.  Designate what seating 
will reserved for staff, for agenda presenters, and for the public. 
- Temperature checks before entering the meeting room. 
- Masks are worn in the meeting room unless you are speaking in front of a microphone.  
Removing your mask to speak allows for a clear understanding of what is being said for the 
official meeting minutes. 
- Continue the use of Zoom and Live-stream.  I strongly recommend that applicants, 
presenters, and public comments for Public Hearings, Planning and Zoning requests, and 
Board of Adjustment requests are heard virtually via Zoom. 
- If there is an overcrowding issue based on limited available seating, those wanting to 
comment during the Public Comments agenda item will be rotated with anyone waiting at 
an outside location to speak. 
- Planning and Zoning and Board of Adjustment meetings will be conducted via Zoom until 
further notice. 
- The meeting room will be sanitized prior to and after each meeting.  A hand sanitizing 
station will be located at the speaker podium for anyone that addresses the Board from that 
location. 

33

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 21 of 33 

 
Request: Board discussion and possible action on setting a date to allow in-person public 
attendance and adopting rules as it relates to CDC and State guidelines for the COVID-19 
pandemic. 

 
Mr. Moron said Chairman Jones asked the Florida Association of Counties (FAC) to ask the 
question about public meetings and there is not a consensus anywhere.  Mr. Moron asked the 
Board to leave the Planning & Zoning and Board of Adjustment meeting via zoom until further 
notice.  Commissioner Lockley asked how many seats they will leave for staff.  Mr. Moron 
explained if they go with what the Chief Judge says there will be 17 available sets and they will 
reserve some for staff and the rest will be for the public.  The Board discussed the number of 
staff that attend the meetings and the seats they should leave open for them.  Chairman Jones 
asked if the department heads could appear on zoom if they do not have any action items.  
Commissioner Lockley and Commissioner Ward felt like this was a good idea.   Chairman Jones 
said it would free up space and they would not have to leave their job to come here.  Mr. 
Moron agreed they will try this at the next meeting.  Commissioner Lockley said he is not ready 
for anyone to come in the meetings because COVID is still out there but he will go along with 
the decision of the Board.  Commissioner Boldt stated they are only discussing the changes and 
he wants to maintain the consistency.  He said no one should be there relative to a health care 
matter.  Commissioner Boldt explained how many pathways there are for the public.  He said 
they can hear on zoom and people can call and email the Commissioners.  He stated they are 
accessible and people can also reach out to county staff.  Commissioner Boldt reported health 
is the main matter they need to consider and maintain everything as they have it.  
Commissioner Ward stated she feels like it is important for the county to be here and have a 
say.  She said zoom is important but they all go other places and it is no different here.  
Commissioner Ward reported they are taking the safety steps required for social distancing and 
the seats are marked off but in many stores no one is following these measures.  She said they 
do need to be safe and take into consideration the elderly population and people with health 
concerns but they cannot keep the public out forever.  Chairman Jones stated at some point 
they do have to make different accommodations and zoom is not going away but people still 
have to do business person to person.  Commissioner Ward asked if they are still hoping to 
open the meetings in January.  Mr. Moron replied yes but he was not sure how far the 
conversation was going considering the increase in COVID cases.  Chairman Jones suggested 
Mr. Moron clarify the language based on the discussions today and then bring the matter back 
to the Board at the next meeting.  Mr. Moron asked if it will be okay to allow staff to attend by 
zoom at the next meeting and see how it works.  The Board agreed with this suggestion.  Mr. 
Moron said they will try that and then at the next meeting they will be closer to selecting a date 
to reopen the meetings to the public.  Mr.  Moron informed the Board at the next meeting 
there will be a lot of public input on one of the items so he asked the Board not to judge by that 
public hearing because that is not the normal situation.  Commissioner Lockley questioned if 
people will rotate in and out during a public hearing.   Mr. Moron said that is what some 
counties do is allow people to rotate in and make their comment and then leave.  He stated one 
county has a public kiosk outside of the Board room and they allow everyone to line up and 
comment.  Commissioner Lockley said they will need a deputy present because some people 
want to stay and listen and provide support but not speak.  Mr. Moron explained people must 

34

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 22 of 33 

 

rotate in to speak and then leave.  Chairman Jones informed the Board he is thinking about 
making some changes to the public comment policy.  He explained this was one of the bigger 
items he faced the brunt of during his campaign as people feel like they are not allowed access 
with the current policy.  Commissioner Ward stated she dealt with the same issues in her 
campaign because people feel left out and that their voices are not heard with the public 
comment section.  Mr. Moron questioned if the problem is people want to address items as 
they come up on the agenda. Chairman Jones explained they are fine with public comment at 
the beginning but they also want to be able to address an item on the agenda and to have 
discussion with the Board.  Commissioner Ward agreed they would like to have feedback.  
Chairman Jones stated they could continue to take public comment at the beginning and it 
could be 3 minutes long but then people would be allowed to comment for 1 minute on 3 items 
on the agenda.  He reported he does not have a definite suggestion today.  Commissioner Ward 
said at the beginning they do not hear what is being discussed or comments and then when a 
subject comes up there are other things they would have said based on the discussion.  She 
reported she is not sure how this would work but they can work together on finding the 
answer.  Chairman Jones stated he would like the meetings to be as short as possible but in 
some counties public comment in the beginning is for items that are not on the agenda and 
then people that want to speak on an item on the agenda are allowed to do that during the 
meeting but not on every item.  Commissioner Lockley reported both of them are new 
Commissioners and people are playing games.  Attorney Shuler stated all the statute requires is 
the Board give a reasonable opportunity for public comment before they take action and how 
the Board wants to structure that is up to the Chairman and if a majority of the Board does not 
agree then by majority vote of the Board they can overrule it.  Commissioner Lockley left the 
meeting at this time.  Attorney Shuler said normally the Chairman decides the structure and 
what is on the agenda and not on the agenda.  Mr. Moron explained the public comment at the 
end was what prompted the change because it was not beneficial to the public or the Board.  
He asked Attorney Shuler to put this question on the county attorney forum to see what other 
counties are doing.  Mr. Moron explained at the delegation meetings everyone fills out a 
speaker card so they know who is registered to speak prior to the items coming up and then the 
Chairman can flex the amount of time needed.  He stated he needs to speak with each 
Commissioner and know their preferences and priorities for public comment and then he can 
come up with a something to present.  Chairman Jones said he brought this item up to get input 
from other commissioners.  Mr. Moron agreed he will talk with each commissioner and then 
talk with Attorney Shuler.  Commissioner Lockley returned to the meeting.  The Board agreed 
with this suggestion.   

 
5. Building Official Services:  In November, Mr. Garry Millender, the County’s Building 
Official informed me that he plans to resign from his position as the Building Official 
effective December 31, 2020.  Since Mr. Steve Patterson, the County’s Building Inspector, 
will not receive his state provisional certification as a Building Official until sometime in 
March, Mr. Millender has offered to provide Building Official services to the County via his 
company Millender Inspection Services LLC.  He would provide these services at a rate of 
$3500 per month from January – March 2021, and longer if necessary.  Attorney Shuler has 
a copy of the contract, but before he starts a full review, the Board should discuss this 
matter and offer some direction.  I have informed the City of Carrabelle that as of January 1, 

35

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 23 of 33 

 
2021, we no longer have a Building Official on staff so the County can no longer provide that 
service to them. 
Request: Board discussion and direction regarding Building Official services for the County. 

 
Mr. Moron said when Mr. Millender was full time his salary was $48,000 plus so the $3,500 per 
month is not what he was making before.  He stated this will probably only be for 3-4 months.  
He reported Mr. Patterson passed all of his tests the first time so there has been no delay.  Mr. 
Moron explained Mr. Patterson will have a provisional license and then will have 1 year to pass 
all the other tests to be a certified Building Official.  He said Mr. Patterson should receive this 
provisional license in March or April.   He reported this amount is similar to the amount paid to 
Mr. Millender by other counties.  Commissioner Parrish asked if this is under what the Board 
has budgeted to pay Mr. Millender.  Mr. Moron answered yes.  Commissioner Parrish asked if 
the City of Carrabelle has been notified that Mr. Millender could do this work for them.  Mr. 
Moron said Mr. Millender reached out to the City of Carrabelle.  Attorney Shuler reported there 
is currently an interlocal agreement with the City of Carrabelle for Mr. Millender to provide 
these services so they are aware of this matter.  Mr.  Moron said the email to the City of 
Carrabelle said this agreement would terminate.  Commissioner Lockley made a motion to 
approve Millender Inspection Services, LLC providing services from January- March, 2021 at a 
rate of $3,500 per month.  Commissioner Parrish seconded the motion.  Mr. Moron said this is 
contingent upon Attorney Shuler’s approval.  Attorney Shuler questioned if this is for 4 months.  
Mr. Moron asked for 3 months and then a month to month extension for 3 more months.  
Commissioner Lockley amended his motion make this action contingent upon Attorney 
Shuler’s approval and authorize a month to month extension for 3 months after the initial 3 
months.  Commissioner Parrish amended his motion.  Motion carried; 5-0.   
 

6.Permitting Clerk:  One of the permitting clerks in the Building Department has resigned so 
the Building Department needs to advertise to fill this vacancy.  This position will be 
advertised publicly, not in house, at the county’s $25,000 starting base salary. 
Request: Board action to authorize advertising the vacant position. 

 

On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Ward, and by unanimous 
vote of the Board present, it was agreed to authorize advertising for the vacant position in 
the Building Department.   

 
7. FAC Broadband Resolution: The Florida Association of Counties (FAC) has started ACCESS 
67 Initiative.  “ACCESS 67 represents a comprehensive approach to address the lack of 
ACCESS in many of our communities, rural and urban; small, medium, and large; to the 
required technological resources that our citizens need to navigate this new world.”  FAC is 
asking each county to support a resolution similar to the Small County Coalition resolution 
authorized by the Board at your last meeting.  FAC is also asking that we complete a survey 
regarding broadband access in the County, which Mrs. Cortni Bankston is working on. 
Request: Board action to authorize the Chairman’s signature on the ACCESS 67 resolution. 
 

On motion by Commissioner Ward, seconded by Commissioner Lockley, and by unanimous 
vote of the Board present, it was agreed to approve the Resolution.   

 

36

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 24 of 33 

 
8. Paving Change Order/Pay Request:  Over the last few months the Board took advantage 
of an opportunity to save on mobilization cost and use the contractor that was building the 
new airport access road to pave a few county roads.  The project is about 85% complete and 
Roberts and Roberts, the paving contractor, has submitted a Change Order/Pay request for 
payment.  Before the Board considers this request, separate Board action is needed to 
replace Cape Street, which was approved to add to the approved paving list at an earlier 
meeting, with Sybil Court.  After the Board approved adding Cape Street, right of way and 
ownership of a section of Cape Street presented an issue.  In order to take advantage of the 
opportunity as the contractor was finishing the paving project, staff authorized paving 
nearby Sybil Court instead.  The final pay application, any additional documentation, and 
change orders will be submitted for Board review and approval when the project is 
complete. 
Request 1: Board action to remove Cape Street from the approved paving list and add Sybil 
Court as a replacement.  The total cost to pave Sybil Court is $43,917.95. 
Request 2: Board action to approve this Pay Request Application/Change Order for a total of 
$241,842.       

 

On motion by Commissioner Ward, seconded by Commissioner Lockley, and by unanimous 
vote of the Board present, it was agreed to approve a change order removing Cape Street 
from the approved paving list and adding Sybil Court at a cost of $43,917.95.  On motion by 
Commissioner Lockley, seconded by Commissioner Boldt, and by unanimous vote of the 
Board present, it was agreed to approve the pay request application in the amount of 
$241,842.00   

 
Commissioner Parrish reported he had the same issue with the roads he submitted a month 
ago because one of the roads could not be paved because it was considered private.  He 
explained the box culvert on Bluff Road is sagging and he talked with Roberts & Roberts about 
fixing this area as it was repaved only 3-4 years ago.  Commissioner Parrish said this will 
straighten out this area and it will be in good shape and last for many years.  Commissioner 
Parrish made a motion to include paving this area.  Commissioner Lockley seconded the 
motion.  Commissioner Lockley said they should check the base because something is wrong.   
Commissioner Parrish agreed a prior contractor caused this problem but this contractor is 
aware of the issue and will fix it.  Motion carried; 5-0.  Commissioner Boldt said a couple of 
meetings ago they approved repaving Delaware Street and he met with someone who lives on 
Delaware Street and he is concerned that some of the pavement went over his property line.  
He stated he reviewed this area and he would like to have Mr. Moron look into this matter and 
he has some information about the lot descriptions.  Commissioner Boldt reported they paved 
in the same path of the road that was there for years and has been maintained by the county.  
Commissioner Lockley asked if the engineers are supposed to check before they pave.  Mr. 
Pierce stated the Board does not usually do surveying before they pave.  Attorney Shuler 
referenced a provision in Chapter 95, Florida Statutes that says if the county has constructed 
and/or maintained a road for a 4 year period continuously they have an acquired ownership but 
he would need to talk with Mr. Nabors specifically about Delaware Street.  He said according to 
Mr. Moron he has already looked into this and the county has maintained this road for 4 years 
or more so the county would have acquired ownership at least the width of the maintenance.  
Commissioner Lockley questioned if there are any houses past his house.  Commissioner Boldt 

37

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 25 of 33 

 

responded yes.  Commissioner Lockley asked how they can go on his property but not anyone 
else’s property.   Mr. Moron stated this is the only complaint they have had since they paved 
the road but he will look into this matter.  Commissioner Lockley inquired if this is the first time 
the road has been paved.  Commissioner Boldt answered yes and prior to that it was milled 
asphalt and compacted.  Mr. Moron said he will work with Attorney Shuler and Mr. Nabors to 
determine how long the county has been maintaining this road and then they will report at the 
next meeting.  Commissioner Boldt stated paving the road enhanced the neighborhood.   
 

9. CRF Funds:  At your last meeting the Board authorized Mrs. Lori Switzer-Mills to spend 
the remaining Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF) on applicants that had already received 
funding, as a secondary phase, since there were no new applicants.  Since that meeting, Mrs. 
Switzer-Mills received new applications that qualified for funding, so she stopped any 
second phase funding and requested an additional $32,000 from Florida Housing to fund 
the new applicants. At your August 4, 2020 meeting the Board authorized Mrs. Switzer-Mills 
to seek additional funding if needed, provided the Board was notified.  However, for better 
recordkeeping purposes, I am asking for Board action to approve this request for funding.  
Mrs. Switzer-Mills stopped accepting applications as of yesterday at noon. 
Request: Board action to authorize the request for an additional $32,000 of Coronavirus Relief 
Funds. 
 

Mr. Moron said Mrs. Switzer-Mills stopped accepting applications because this is a long 
procedure to request the money.  He stated she called this morning and there will also need to 
be an amendment to the contract with Florida Housing Finance.  Commissioner Parrish made a 
motion to authorize requesting the additional money and authorize the Chairman to sign the 
amendment with Florida Housing Finance.  Commissioner Lockley seconded the motion.  
Commissioner Parrish commended Mrs. Switzer-Mills for stopping the second phase so they 
can help some new applicants.  Mr. Moron stated because this was discussed in the meeting 
word got out and they have some new applicants.  Motion carried; 5-0.   

 
10. RCSC Newsletter:  I received an email from Ms. Georgia Ackerman of the Riverkeepers 
that included a Riparian County Stakeholder Coalition (RCSC) newsletter (attached to the 
agenda packet) that includes a good overview of the legal challenge to the United States 
Army Corp of Engineer’s (USACE) control of freshwater flow to the Apalachicola River, and 
ultimately our Bay.  “It is expected that the judge will allow non-litigants to submit amicus 
letters to the court during the first week of January.  As you know, the Riparian County 
Stakeholder Coalition is considering joining onto an amicus brief, along with other 
businesses and civic interests of our region. The City of Apalachicola is also in the process. 
The ecological and economic impact of the judge’s decision affects many in Franklin County.  
A pro bono attorney is preparing an amicus brief for the groups.”  
Request: Board discussion and direction.  
 

Attorney Shuler said he is the Chairman of the Amicus Curiae Subcommittee for FAC.  He 
requested the Board consider allowing him to review the amicus brief on behalf of the county 
before it is filed with the court.  He reported Ms. Georgia Ackerman, Apalachicola Riverkeeper, 
is on the telephone.  Ms. Ackerman offered to answer any questions.  She said she will forward 
the draft amicus brief from the attorney when she receives it in a week or so.  Attorney Shuler 

38

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 26 of 33 

 

stated this would be consistent with how the amicus subcommittee works because once they 
approve the amicus brief being drafted there is someone who volunteers to prepare the amicus 
brief and then after it is prepared it is sent back to the subcommittee for approval before it is 
submitted to the court.  He explained that is why he would like to review it before it is 
submitted to the court.  Commissioner Parrish said when he talked with Ms. Ackerman they 
were discussing if the county would take this action or the Riparian County Stakeholders 
Coalition (RCSC) would do it on behalf of the county and he asked if they agreed to allow the 
RCSC to file this amicus brief on behalf of the county.  Ms. Ackerman said she is not a member 
of RCSC but in her opinion if RCSC files this it would prove more powerful to a judge.  She 
explained her concern is there are quite a few State of Georgia people intervening on behalf of 
the court and they want the judge to hear from parties in Franklin and along the Apalachicola 
River.  Ms. Ackerman reported the judge is Atlanta based and the RCSC is made up of members 
from the 6 counties along the river and that is a powerful voice they would like the judge to 
hear.  Commissioner Parrish stated they discussed if each county should have a signature line 
on the RCSC amicus brief and asked if they are going to do that or just allow the RCSC to stand 
on their own.  Ms. Ackerman said that is an excellent recommendation but Mr. Ken Jones is the 
leader of the RCSC and is still listening on the call and she did carry this recommendation to Mr. 
Jones.  She stated if each county that makes up the RCSC is in agreement she thinks that is an 
excellent recommendation.  Ms. Ackerman reported several other counties are also addressing 
this matter today and Mr. Jones will be talking to them and it is important that each county that 
is represented by the RCSC knows what is being done and that any questions are answered.  
She stated the amicus brief is a letter to the judge and they can be impactful.  Commissioner 
Parrish reported he is in favor of the lawsuit filed by the Apalachicola Riverkeepers against the 
COE and he wishes the state would have done the same.  He explained they have spent years 
litigating this issue but at no time has the COE been brought into the litigation.  He reported 
they cannot bring the COE into the litigation unless they are sued directly.  Commissioner 
Parrish stated the lawsuit was filed against the COE many years ago and he supports their 
efforts.  He said he always represented Franklin County in the water ways and litigation and 
they are all on the same page and in support and he hopes they are successful in their lawsuit.  
Ms. Ackerman thanked Commissioner Parrish and said if anyone has questions they can contact 
her.  She reported other groups in the area are working on separate amicus briefs and some will 
be joining in.  She stated if other groups wants information they should let her know.  
Commissioner Boldt stated the Coastal Marine Lab is a big factor in doing research and he 
would encourage her to ask them to join in and also the Apalachicola Estuarine Research 
Reserve.  Ms. Ackerman agreed to follow up with this request.  Chairman Jones asked what the 
purpose is for the amicus brief.  Ms. Ackerman explained the Apalachicola Riverkeepers and 
several other conservation groups filed a lawsuit against the COE when they moved to update 
their water control manual in 2016.  She reported they felt the environmental impact 
statement was incomplete and they were not the only ones because there were many written 
public comments asking the COE to do a better job.  She stated the COE disregarded the 
recommendations and moved forward with the update of the water control manual.  Ms. 
Ackerman explained the manual dictates how the water is released upriver on the 
Chattahoochee side and the update had not been done since the 1950’s.  She reported the 

39

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 27 of 33 

 

update will bring the county less water than they had before and it does not help with 
freshwater flow to the bay.  Ms. Ackerman stated they filed suit after the update went into 
effect.  She said the briefs are by non-litigants outside of the court case writing to the judge on 
how the decision could impact them and why the judge should give consideration to the case.  
Chairman Jones said his understanding is previously the county joined the Apalachicola 
Riverkeepers on a brief and now they no longer have the river channel dredged.  Ms. Ackerman 
stated that was before her time and she would need to get more information about this item.  
Chairman Jones stated not having the river channel dredged also impacts how much water gets 
to the bay because the river gets shallower.  Commissioner Parrish reported it has always been 
hurtful to him that the State of Georgia always intervenes on the side of the court and pays all 
their attorney’s fees and they wonder why the COE always sides with them about water 
allocation.  He said it is simple because it costs the COE nothing because the State of Georgia is 
paying their legal fees.  He reported this has gone on for years and it is crooked.  Commissioner 
Parrish explained the water control manual is how they operate the reservoirs which release or 
do not release water.  Ms. Ackerman agreed to provide some follow-up information to the 
Board.  On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Lockley, and by 
unanimous vote of the Board present, it was agreed to proceed contingent upon Attorney 
Shuler’s review of the amicus brief written by the pro bono attorney.   

 
11. SGI Lighted Parade:  The St. George Island Civic Club is planning a lighted golf cart 
parade on St. George Island on December 4th, the same night as the ‘lighting of the palms’ 
event.  The golf carts will be decorated with family friendly decorations and will line up 
along East Pine, beginning at 5:45 p.m. behind the Sheriff’s vehicle.  All golf carts will be at 
least 6ft apart and volunteers will assist with the directing carts during the line-up.  The 
parade will begin a 6:15 p.m. and the parade route is attached for your review. 
Request: Board action to approve the parade route for the St. George Island lighted golf care 
parade.   

 
On motion by Commissioner Ward, seconded by Commissioner Lockley, and by unanimous 
vote of the Board present, it was agreed to approve the parade route for the St. George 
Island lighted golf cart parade.   

 
Information Items 
12. Sheriff’s Office Software:  The Sheriff’s staff attended your last meeting and explained 
that starting January 2021, dispatch would be out of compliance with the FBI and FDLE 
because a particular type of reporting software was not installed.  They got quotes from 
three different vendors and selected one of the three, which was stated at the last meeting, 
but has asked the County to pause on the purchasing of that software as an additional 
module may be needed.  When the Sheriff’s Office is ready to proceed with the purchase, I 
will inform the Board. 

 
Chairman Jones asked if this item will be ready for the Board to discuss at the next meeting.  
Mr. Moron said he hopes so but they may be past their time on this item.  He explained they 
provided a presentation to the Board and then contacted Mrs. Griffith that they may be missing 
a module.  Mr. Moron stated he has a meeting with the Sheriff’s Department on Wednesday 
about a piece of equipment that would help bridge cleanup because they have not heard back 

40

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 28 of 33 

 

from Mr. Collins about using the airport sweeper.  He said Mr. Collins indicated they may not be 
able to use the sweeper for the bridge.  Mr. Moron stated he will discuss the software and try 
to bring it to the next meeting for approval.   

 
13. Artificial Reef Grant:  As requested at your last meeting, there is a conference call 
scheduled tomorrow with Ms. Lorena Holley and Frank Gidus (Coastal Conservation 
Association) to discuss the protocols and procedure required before the County would 
consider applying for and supporting a grant from the FWC to construct an artificial reef on 
the Carrabelle 10 Mile Reef in the honor of Dr. Bart Carey. Hopefully this item will be on my 
December 15th report. 
 
14. COVID-19 & Sally LSE: As authorized by the Board, Chairman Lockley signed COVID-19 
Local State of Emergency (LSE) Declarations on November 2nd, 9th, and 16th, and a 
Hurricane Sally LSE Declaration on November 3rd.  Chairman Jones signed COVID-19 LSE 
Declarations on November 23rd and 30th.  
 
15.SGI Lighthouse closure: Inform the Board that the St. George Island Lighthouse will be 
closed for the month of January and potentially a week or two at the beginning of February 
for some much-needed maintenance.  This will be a $94,000 self-funded project that is 
scheduled to start in early January and should last 4 – 6 weeks.  The Keeper’s House 
Museum and the Gift Shop will remain open while the lighthouse is closed to the public. 
 
16.SGPOA & Mediacom: Inform the Board that the St. George Plantation Owner’s Association 
(SGPOA) has sent an email to Mediacom (attached to agenda packet) regarding the 
dangerous “Health and Safety” issue that has been created due to Mediacom’s violation of 
the underground burial agreement with SGPOA.  There is an incident described in the email 
where a golf cart driver had a Mediacom cable get wrapped in the axel of the golf cart. The 
cable was active and carried some amps of electricity.  If I am contacted by a SGPOA 
representative for assistance on this matter, this Board will be informed. 
 

Chairman Jones reported Wakulla County recently got a grant from FWC to buy everything to 
bear proof the trash cans in the county.  He explained whoever the contractor is in Franklin 
County either provides this or not but there is no mechanism for the citizens to have bear proof 
trash cans unless they are willing to pay the difference.  Mr. Moron reported they have done 
this before.   
 
Chairman Jones stated under the Payroll Protection Plan (PPP) if a county employee gets COVID 
they can get paid one time.  He questioned if the rest of the Board feels like they need to 
extend this beyond this year because if someone gets COVID and misses work they will not get 
paid.  Chairman Jones suggested they address it at the next meeting.  Mrs. Griffith explained it 
is the expiration of the extended Family Medical Leave Act which is a federal act and she thinks 
they may extend it but she has not heard anything.  Mrs. Griffith stated the extension expires 
on December 31st   so after that employees would have to use their own sick leave.   Chairman 
Jones said he did not realize that was a federal act.  
 
Commissioner Ward stated she talked with Mr. Clay Kennedy, Dewberry, and Mr. Curenton 
about a multi-use path/sidewalk for her district in Eastpoint from Ridge Road to Vrooman Park 

41

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 29 of 33 

 

and continuing down C.C. Land Road and a multi-use path/sidewalk on River Road in Carrabelle.  
She said these are FDOT grant funded items and the deadline for applying is in February so she 
would like Mr. Curenton to submit the grants.  Commissioner Ward made a motion to 
authorize Mr. Curenton to submit the grants for these two particular items.  Commissioner 
Lockley seconded the motion.  Commissioner Parrish stated he has had a lot of people from 
Escape Road ask for this item.  Commissioner Ward reported kids go from Ridge Road to the 
park.  Motion carried; 5-0. 
 
Commissioner Ward requested a crosswalk at Carrabelle Beach where the RV Park is.  She 
explained the traffic is heavy and someone is going to get hurt crossing the road.  
Commissioner Ward explained she is trying to get a crosswalk with flashing lights and in 
speaking with Mr. Kennedy and Mr. Curenton she was informed they need to contact the FDOT 
contractor Ferrovial.  She pointed out this is a state road and it is their responsibility.  
Commissioner Ward made a motion to direct staff to contact Ferrovial and request the 
crosswalk.  Commissioner Parrish seconded the motion.  Chairman Jones stated they told him 
there would never be a crosswalk across Highway 98 and now one is going in near the Express 
Lane.  He explained it is also hard to get crosswalks unless they have somewhere to go which 
the one at Carrabelle Beach does.  Motion carried; 5-0.     
 
Commissioner Ward reported she was informed by a constituent in her district that there is no 
trash pickup north of Highway 65 and she believes the fire tower is the cut off.  She stated the 
individual had a private contractor picking up the garbage but the company is no longer in 
business.  Commissioner Ward explained she and the individual reached out to each of the 
other garbage carriers Waste Pro and Waste One and they do not offer services past the fire 
tower on Highway 65.  She stated other residents burn their garbage or bring it to the landfill 
but this person is elderly and cannot do either.  Commissioner Ward said she offered to pick up 
the garbage for her but there are other people in this same situation.  She stated she reached 
out to Mr. Davis about placing a dumpster outside the landfill because some people drive down 
to work but the landfill is not open.  She said she understands this may create other issues.  
Commissioner Ward stated she does not know what the solution is and Mr. Davis responded 
but she has not had time to review his response.  She said she knows county wide garbage 
collection is a sensitive subject but she does not know the answer.  Chairman Jones agreed it is 
an issue they need to try and address.  He explained if they put a dumpster outside the landfill 
the residents will never see a benefit because it will already be full when they get there.  
Commissioner Ward stated people will also place things in the dumpster that do not belong 
there.  Commissioner Lockley asked if Waste Pro works for the county.  Chairman Jones said 
Waste One does the hauling from the landfill to Marianna but they are not doing pickup.  
Commissioner Ward said their reasoning is they do not have enough business to warrant them 
going that far which is not fair to the people that are interested in garbage pickup.  
Commissioner Lockley stated they need county wide pickup.   Commissioner Boldt agreed that 
is needed.  Commissioner Lockley made a motion to get county wide pickup.  Commissioner 
Ward said she does not know the legalities but she likes the idea of county wide garbage 
pickup.  Commissioner Lockley explained the county is getting bigger and they are steadily 

42

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 30 of 33 

 

building houses and they need county wide garbage collection.  He reported this will also help 
to clean up the woods.  Commissioner Ward said she will be going to a conference and can 
reach out to other counties and see what their solutions are because this is something they will 
have to address eventually.  Commissioner Lockley reported the 2 cities already have 
mandatory collection.  Commissioner Ward said she has done some research and would like to 
do some more research.  Commissioner Ward seconded the motion.  Attorney Shuler 
explained if the Board goes through with this motion his next step will be to prepare an 
ordinance for a public hearing and he does not think he has enough direction from the Board to 
prepare the ordinance.  He suggested it may not be time for a motion.  Attorney Shuler said he 
will wait for Commissioner Ward to return from this conference with more information and he 
can start a conversation with Mr. Davis about this matter.  He explained the Board has looked 
at this issue several times over the years but it presents an issue because the Board’s only 
method of billing is the tax bill.  He reported no previous Board has been willing to put the cost 
of garbage pickup on the tax bill because they do not want people to lose their property 
because they cannot pay their garbage bill.  He stated private contractors have always refused 
to send in direct billing because the county does not have the means to enforce payment of the 
garbage bill.  He reported in the cities they can shut off the water and sewer for non-payment 
but the county does not have this option.  Attorney Shuler said his information is old because it 
has been many years since the Board has directed him and Mr. Davis to look into this matter 
but he will be glad to gather new information.  Commissioner Lockley stated it is not the 
county’s responsibility to collect the bills if the contractor has the job.  He said if a company 
does not want to collect their bills then they should not bid when the county advertises for 
bids.  Mr. Moron reported if the county does not bill for the service then they will not receive 
any proposals.  He explained he met with Waste Pro and Waste One and if the county is not 
going to do the billing then they want to be paid up front and then the county collect the 
money.  He stated the second issue is people like to select their own collector and do not want 
the county to force them to use a certain collector.  Mr. Moron reported when this was 
discussed before it did not move forward because of these issues.  Commissioner Parrish said if 
the garbage company does their own billing and someone does not pay then they will not pick 
up their garbage anymore and then the county does not have county wide garbage collection.  
He stated he does not have garbage collection at his home but takes care of his trash in other 
ways.  Commissioner Parrish said some people will pay to have their garbage collected because 
it is the right thing to do and some people will not pay the bill so they are not covered under 
garbage collection.  He reported some people cannot afford to pay for garbage collection.  
Commissioner Parrish stated if they are going to have garbage collection then it should be 
mandatory to everyone.  He reported if the county handles the billing then they will have to 
take money from other taxpayers to fund the garbage bills of people that do not pay because 
they will put a lien on their property.  He went on to say if the people do not ever sell the 
property then they never pay the lien.  Commissioner Parrish stated it is not fair to the taxpayer 
to pay for other people in addition to the other taxes they pay.  He said there are a host of 
issues that need to be worked through.  Commissioner Parrish reported he is not opposed to 
paying for garbage collection if that is what the Board wants to do but he wants everyone to 
pay and he does not want to pay for other people.  He pointed out some of the commissioners 

43

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 31 of 33 

 

live in the cities but this action would affect the commissioners that do not live in the cities.  
Commissioner Lockley rescinded his motion.  Commissioner Lockley said maybe when they go 
to the conference they will hear about another option.  Commissioner Parrish stated people 
must be treated fairly and there is no mechanism in place to accomplish that.  He agreed there 
is a problem with people disposing of their garbage properly.  Chairman Jones said they could 
look at adding a ½ cent general tax to pay for garbage collection then everyone is paying 
including visitors when they shop.  He explained then everyone does not have a tax bill.  
Commissioner Boldt suggested they look at other counties that are doing this starting with 
Wakulla County.  Chairman Jones said Mr. Moron has been taking notes and will research this 
issue.   
 
County Attorney – Michael Shuler – Report 
 
Attorney Shuler thanked the Board for their support and consideration earlier in the meeting.   
 
Attorney Shuler stated he will not be joining them in Jacksonville for their mid-year conference 
as the Executive Staff for the County Attorney’s Association cancelled their live meeting and 
turned it into a zoom meeting.     
 
Attorney Shuler reported the Board is presently scheduled to hear an ordinance at the next 
meeting updating the Flood Plain Management Ordinance.  He stated Mrs. Amy Ham-Kelly 
understood they had a January 1, 2021 deadline for this update but he talked with a 
representative from the Department of Emergency Management (DEM) and they do not have a 
hard deadline for January.  Attorney Shuler said Mrs. Ham-Kelly is looking into this matter to 
determine if there are any issues that need to be changed or if she has any suggested changes.  
He explained apparently DEM was anticipating some changes for modular homes or mobile 
homes that needed to be implemented by January 1st but FEMA has extended the deadline to 
sometime in 2021.  Attorney Shuler reported the advertisement has already been placed in the 
newspaper and he has drafted the ordinance but they may or may not have the scheduled 
public hearing on December 15, 2020.   
 
Mr. Pierce reported the COE called and they are still reviewing the interlocal agreement 
between the county and the COE.  He stated the county might need to write a letter saying that 
they understand that any additional costs over the federal share will be paid by the county.  He 
said he told them the county understands but he is waiting to see if they need to send a 
separate letter.     
 
Commissioners’ Comments 
 
Commissioner Lockley stated in the past election they passed a law increasing the minimum 
wage to $15.00 an hour.  He said the county needs to start looking at this because their future 
starting salary is $25,000 and when this becomes effective they will be paying less than 
minimum wage.  Commissioner Lockley explained they have time to deal with this but they 

44

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 32 of 33 

 

need to increase this amount or they are going to lose workers.  Chairman Jones stated the 
change will be phased in over 4-5 years.  Commissioner Lockley said they have time to phase 
this in but that is what they are facing.  Mr. Moron stated the Board will need to speak with the 
labor attorneys about this matter because previously Ms. Lucy Turner handled these items and 
she is no longer available.  Mrs. Griffith said Ms. Turner created a job classification and pay class 
scale.  She reported another report was done about 20 years ago and they went around and 
surveyed surrounding counties and created the job classifications.  She explained Ms. Turner 
did a more custom approach and the other company did a report where multiple counties were 
involved.  Mr. Moron said they will have to contact someone to look at this because it will not 
just affect the pay at the bottom but everyone else also.  He reported they have 5 years so they 
can plan this and it can be part of the budget planning.  Mr. Moron offered to look for a 
company if the Board is interested in starting this work.  Mrs. Griffith agreed to scan the 
previous report to the Board.  Commissioner Lockley said the county needs to look at 
something because this is going to happen.  Commissioner Parrish questioned if as salaries 
increase they are looking at a smaller workforce to reduce the larger costs.  Mr. Moron stated 
in some places they cannot reduce the workforce.  Commissioner Parrish said the money has to 
come from somewhere so they will either cut somewhere or taxes will go up.  He explained he 
is not against looking at the salaries but somewhere they have to offset the costs.  Mr. Moron 
reported since the county provides services to the public if they reduce the workforce they will 
reduce the services.  Chairman Jones agreed there is going to be a pass through cost.  He 
explained he wants things to be affordable but there will be a pass through with this change to 
minimum wage.   Mr. Moron agreed it is a good idea to start planning now so they make 
changes to the budget year by year and not all at once.     
 
Commissioner Boldt said he would like to recognize yesterday’s ribbon cutting ceremony on 
behalf of Weems Memorial Hospital and Tallahassee Memorial Hospital (TMH).  He stated 
about 50 people attended including executive staff from TMH and staff and it was a great 
celebration and a strong turning point in the history of health care in Franklin County.  
Chairman Jones agreed it was a well-attended event.     
 
Information Items 
There were no information items. 
 
Adjournment 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at  
12:43 p.m. 
  
 
 
             
      Ricky Jones - Chairman 
 

45

C.



 
 
 
FCBCC REGULAR MEETING                                                                                                                                                 
December 1, 2020 
Page 33 of 33 

 

 
Attest: 
  
    
                                                                                  
Marcia M. Johnson - Clerk of Courts  

46

C.



December 15, 2020
Franklin County Road Department

Detail of Work Performed and Material Hauled by District
Detail from 11/25/2020 ‐ 12/9/2020

District 1

Work Performed:  Date Road

VMS Work, Cut Grass, Blowed Sidewalks, Cleaned ditches, Litter 
pickup

US HWY 98 (Eastpoint, Ricky Jones)11/25/2020

VMS Work, Cut Grass, Blowed Sidewalks, Cleaned ditches, Litter 
pickup

US HWY 98 (Eastpoint, Ricky Jones)11/25/2020

VMS Work, Cut Grass, Blowed Sidewalks, Cleaned ditches, Litter 
pickup

US HWY 98 (Eastpoint, Ricky Jones)11/25/2020

VMS Work, Cut Grass, Blowed Sidewalks, Cleaned ditches, Litter 
pickup

US HWY 98 (Eastpoint, Ricky Jones)11/25/2020

VMS Work, Cut Grass, Blowed Sidewalks, Cleaned ditches, Litter 
pickup

US HWY 98 (Eastpoint, Ricky Jones)11/25/2020

Driveway repair State Street12/2/2020

Driveway repair State Street12/2/2020

Box drag Palmer Street12/3/2020

Box drag Gunn Street12/3/2020

Box drag E 2nd Street12/3/2020

Box drag E 1st Street12/3/2020

Box drag Bledsoe Street12/3/2020

Box drag Quinn Street12/3/2020

Box drag McCloud Street12/3/2020

Box drag E 4th Street12/3/2020

Box drag Randolph Street12/3/2020

Box drag E 10th Street12/3/2020

Box drag Wing Street12/3/2020

Box drag E 6th Street12/3/2020

Box drag E 7th Street12/3/2020

Box drag Gibson Street12/3/2020

Box drag E 9th Street12/3/2020

Box drag Akel Street12/3/2020

Box drag E 11th Street12/3/2020

Box drag Bell Street12/3/2020

Box drag Brinkley Street12/3/2020

Box drag Baine Street12/3/2020

Box drag E Bay Shore Drive12/3/2020

Box drag E 8th Street12/3/2020

Box drag W 4th Street12/3/2020

Sign Maintenance E 6th Street12/3/2020

Sign Maintenance E Pine Avenue12/3/2020

Picture Taking of damages and/or repairs N Bay Shore Drive12/3/2020

Box drag Brown Street12/3/2020

Box drag W 3rd Street12/3/2020

Box drag Nedley Street12/3/2020

Box drag W 5th Street12/3/2020

Box drag W 6th Street12/3/2020

Box drag W 8th Street12/3/2020

Box drag W 9th Street12/3/2020

Box drag W 10th Street12/3/2020

47

D.



District 1

Work Performed:  Date Road

Box drag Marks Street12/3/2020

Box drag Bradford Street12/3/2020

Graded Road(s) Land Street12/4/2020

Graded Road(s) Cook Street12/4/2020

Graded Road(s) Bruce Street12/4/2020

Graded Road(s) Patton Street12/4/2020

Graded Road(s) Buck Street, St. George Island12/4/2020

Graded Road(s) W Sawyer Street12/4/2020

Graded Road(s) W Pine Avenue12/4/2020

Picture Taking of damages and/or repairs N Bay Shore Drive12/4/2020

Graded Road(s) W Bay Shore Drive12/4/2020

Graded Road(s) E Sawyer Street12/4/2020

Culvert installation Twin Lakes Road12/7/2020

0

Material HAUL From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Busted Broken Concrete N Bay Shore Drive12/3/2020 90 0

Busted Broken Concrete TOTAL 90 0

Debris Twin Lakes Road12/7/2020 18 0

Debris TOTAL 18 0

Ditch Dirt N Bay Shore Drive12/3/2020 36 0

Ditch Dirt Twin Lakes Road12/7/2020 18 0

Ditch Dirt TOTAL 54 0

Litter US HWY 98 (Eastpoint, Ricky Jones)11/25/2020 4 0

Litter TOTAL 4 0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Dirty 89 Lime Rock State Street12/2/2020 9 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Nedley Street12/3/2020 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Twin Lakes Road12/7/2020 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 45 0

District 2

Work Performed:  Date Road

Litter Pickup CR6711/30/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Harry Morrison Island Road12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Sailfish Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Bayview Drive12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Angus Morrison 12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way George Vause Road12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Tarpon Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Grouper Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Kingfish Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Cobia Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Clemens Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Tom Roberts Road12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Marlin Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Alligator Drive12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Fiesta Drive12/1/2020
48

D.



District 2

Work Performed:  Date Road

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Carnival Lane12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Carousel Terrace12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Carousel Terrace12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Trout Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Sea Shell Avenue12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Cypress Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Donax Place12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Alan Lane12/1/2020

Graded Road(s) Jeff Sanders Road12/1/2020

Graded Road(s) McIntyre Road12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Alligator Drive12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Mardi Gras Way12/1/2020

Litter Pickup Alligator Drive12/1/2020

Litter Pickup, Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of 
way, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts

Alligator Drive12/1/2020

Litter Pickup, Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of 
way, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts

Bald Point Road12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Bass Street12/1/2020

Litter Pickup, Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of 
way, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts

Bald Point Road12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Alan Lane12/1/2020

Litter Pickup Bald Point Road12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Harry Morrison Island Road12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Tom Roberts Road12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Marlin Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Cobia Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Trout Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Kingfish Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Bass Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Grouper Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Sea Shell Avenue12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Donax Place12/1/2020

Litter Pickup, Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of 
way, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts

Alligator Drive12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Sailfish Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Cypress Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Mardi Gras Way12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Carnival Lane12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Tarpon Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Alligator Drive12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Clemens Street12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Bayview Drive12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Fiesta Drive12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way George Vause Road12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Angus Morrison 12/1/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Dunes Boulevard12/2/2020

Road Repair Alligator Drive (Temporary Road)12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Pine Street12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Magnolia Street12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Lakeview Drive12/2/2020 49

D.



District 2

Work Performed:  Date Road

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Surf Drive12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Alligator Drive12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Dunes Boulevard12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Fernway Road12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Mariner Circle12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Fernway Road12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Lakeview Drive12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Mullet Pond Road12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Surf Drive12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Magnolia Street12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Maple Street12/2/2020

Sign Maintenance, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Bald Point Road12/2/2020

Sign Maintenance, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Alligator Drive12/2/2020

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Sign Maintenance Bald Point Road12/2/2020

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Sign Maintenance Alligator Drive12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Maple Street12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Pine Street12/2/2020

Boat Ramp Repair Sun N Sand Landing12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Bald Point Road12/3/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Apalachee Street12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Apalachee Street12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Apalachee Street12/7/2020

Litter Pickup CR6712/9/2020

Litter Pickup CR6712/9/2020

Litter Pickup CR6712/9/2020

0

Material HAUL  From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Stock Pile, CR 370 ‐ Alligator Drive ‐ Alligator Point12/2/2020 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 18 0

Litter CR6711/30/2020 2 0

Litter Alligator Drive12/1/2020 2 0

Litter Bald Point Road12/1/2020 2 0

Litter Alligator Drive12/1/2020 2 0

Litter Bald Point Road12/1/2020 1 0

Litter TOTAL 9 0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Alligator Drive (Temporary Road)12/2/2020 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Carrabelle City Hall (City of Carrabelle)12/8/2020 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 36 0

Whole Shells Sun N Sand Landing12/2/2020 18 0

Whole Shells TOTAL 18 0

District 3

Work Performed:  Date Road

Litter Pickup Martin Luther King Jr. Ave. (City of Apalachicola)12/9/2020

Litter Pickup Avenue K (City of Apalachicola)12/9/2020

50

D.



District 3

Work Performed:  Date Road

Litter Pickup Avenue H  (City of Apalachicola)12/9/2020

Litter Pickup Martin Luther King Jr. Ave. (City of Apalachicola)12/9/2020

Litter Pickup 9th Street  (City of Apalachicola)12/9/2020

Litter Pickup Dr. Fredrick Humpry St *7th Street* (City of 
Apalachicola)

12/9/2020

Litter Pickup Avenue K (City of Apalachicola)12/9/2020

Litter Pickup Dr. Fredrick Humpry St *7th Street* (City of 
Apalachicola)

12/9/2020

Litter Pickup Martin Luther King Jr. Ave. (City of Apalachicola)12/9/2020

Litter Pickup Avenue K (City of Apalachicola)12/9/2020

Litter Pickup Dr. Fredrick Humpry St *7th Street* (City of 
Apalachicola)

12/9/2020

Litter Pickup Avenue F  (City of Apalachicola)12/9/2020

Litter Pickup Avenue H  (City of Apalachicola)12/9/2020

Litter Pickup 9th Street  (City of Apalachicola)12/9/2020

0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Milled Asphalt 12th Street  (City of Apalachicola)12/2/2020 9 0

Milled Asphalt TOTAL 9 0

District 4

Work Performed:  Date Road

Road Repair Paradise Lane12/2/2020

Road Repair Paradise Lane12/2/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Weed Eat 
& Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Litter Pickup

Buddy Ward Park12/3/2020

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Peachtree Road12/3/2020

Litter Pickup, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Peachtree Road12/3/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Weed Eat 
& Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Litter Pickup

Hathcock Road12/3/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Weed Eat 
& Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Litter Pickup

Peachtree Road12/3/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Weed Eat 
& Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Litter Pickup

Buddy Ward Park12/3/2020

Litter Pickup, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Hathcock Road12/3/2020

Cut grass in ditches Hathcock Road12/3/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Weed Eat 
& Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Litter Pickup

Peachtree Road12/3/2020

Cut grass in ditches Peachtree Road12/3/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Weed Eat 
& Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Litter Pickup

Hathcock Road12/3/2020

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Hathcock Road12/3/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Oak Drive12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Bayshore Drive12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Chapman Road12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Marks Street12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Thomas Drive12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Bayview Drive12/7/2020
51

D.



District 4

Work Performed:  Date Road

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Jackie Whitehurst Street12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Kevin Road12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

26th Avenue12/7/2020

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Paradise Lane12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Chapman Road12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

26th Avenue12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Brownsville Road12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Alan Drive12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Thomas Drive12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Abercrombie Lane12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Johnson Lane12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Linden Road12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Sas Road12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Peachtree Road12/7/2020

Culvert installation Pal Rivers Road12/7/2020

VMS Work, Cut Grass, Blowed Sidewalks, Cleaned ditches, Litter 
pickup

US HWY 98 (Apalachicola, Smokey)12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Brownsville Road12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Thomas Drive12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Bayshore Drive12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Chapman Road12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Oak Drive12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Bayview Drive12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Jackie Whitehurst Street12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Kevin Road12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Squire Road12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Bayshore Drive12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Bayview Drive12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Jackie Whitehurst Street12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Kevin Road12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

26th Avenue12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Brownsville Road12/7/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Oak Drive12/7/2020

Cut grass in ditches Paradise Lane12/7/2020 52

D.



District 4

Work Performed:  Date Road

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Litter 
Pickup

Alan Drive12/7/2020

Trim Trees, Cut grass in ditches Paradise Lane12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Bluff Road12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Squire Road12/8/2020

Tillered 13 Mile12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Waddell Road12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Melanie Lane12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Magnolia Lane12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Pal Rivers Road12/8/2020

Graded Road(s) 13 Mile12/8/2020

Graded Road(s) 8 Mile12/8/2020

Litter Pickup, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Paradise Lane12/8/2020

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Bluff Road12/8/2020

Graded Road(s) 10 Mile12/8/2020

Graded Road(s) Buddy Ward Park12/8/2020

Graded Road(s) Teat Road12/8/2020

Litter Pickup, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Bluff Road12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way CR30A12/9/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way 13 Mile12/9/2020

Graded Road(s) 13 Mile12/9/2020

0

Material HAUL  From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Litter Hathcock Road12/3/2020 0.5 0

Litter Peachtree Road12/3/2020 3 0

Litter Hathcock Road12/3/2020 4 0

Litter Buddy Ward Park12/3/2020 1 0

Litter Peachtree Road12/3/2020 0.5 0

Litter Paradise Lane12/8/2020 1 0

Litter Bluff Road12/8/2020 2 0

Litter TOTAL 12 0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

15" x 30' Black Plastic Culvert Pipe Pal Rivers Road12/7/2020 18 0

15" x 30' Black Plastic Culvert Pipe TOTAL 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Paradise Lane12/2/2020 9 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Pal Rivers Road12/7/2020 54 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Pal Rivers Road12/7/2020 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 81 0

District 5

Work Performed:  Date Road

VMS Work, Cut Grass, Blowed Sidewalks, Cleaned ditches, Litter 
pickup

US HWY 98 (Eastpoint, William Massey)11/25/2020

VMS Work, Cut Grass, Blowed Sidewalks, Cleaned ditches, Litter 
pickup

US HWY 98 (Eastpoint, William Massey)11/25/2020

VMS Work, Cut Grass, Blowed Sidewalks, Cleaned ditches, Litter 
pickup

US HWY 98 (Eastpoint, William Massey)11/25/2020

VMS Work, Cut Grass, Blowed Sidewalks, Cleaned ditches, Litter 
pickup

US HWY 98 (Eastpoint, William Massey)11/25/2020

53

D.



District 5

Work Performed:  Date Road

VMS Work, Cut Grass, Blowed Sidewalks, Cleaned ditches, Litter 
pickup

US HWY 98 (Eastpoint, William Massey)11/25/2020

Box drag Gardners Landing Road12/1/2020

Box drag Jeffie Tucker Road12/1/2020

Box drag North Road12/1/2020

Box drag Sand Beach Road12/1/2020

Box drag Brick Yard Road (Forestry Road #129)12/2/2020

Box drag Gardners Landing Road12/2/2020

Box drag Wright Lake Road (Forestry Road #101)12/2/2020

Box drag Ashley Landing Road (Forestry Road #101‐A)12/2/2020

Box drag Bloody Bluff Road12/2/2020

Litter Pickup, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Ridge Road12/7/2020

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Ridge Road12/7/2020

Litter Pickup Otterslide Road12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Bear Creek Rd12/8/2020

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Otterslide Road12/8/2020

Litter Pickup Ridge Road12/8/2020

Litter Pickup, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Otterslide Road12/8/2020

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Otterslide Road12/8/2020

Litter Pickup Ridge Road12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Bear Creek Rd12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Pine Log Road12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Otterslide Road12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Wilderness Road12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Ridge Road12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Wilderness Road12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Otterslide Road12/8/2020

Litter Pickup Otterslide Road12/8/2020

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Ridge Road12/8/2020

Culvert installation River Road12/9/2020

Culvert installation River Road12/9/2020

Flagged, Culvert installation River Road12/9/2020

Culvert installation, Flagged River Road12/9/2020

Flagged, Culvert installation River Road12/9/2020

0

Material HAUL From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Litter US HWY 98 (Eastpoint, William Massey)11/25/2020 5 0

Litter Ridge Road12/7/2020 11 0

Litter TOTAL 16 0

Whole Shells Barbers Seafood12/2/2020 18 0

Whole Shells TOTAL 18 0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Black Dirt River Road12/9/2020 126 0

Black Dirt TOTAL 126 0

Sand River Road12/9/2020 72 0

Sand TOTAL 72 0
54

D.



 

 

MEETING DATE: December 15, 2020 

NAME/DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Fonda D. Davis 

Solid Waste & Recycling, Animal Control, Parks & Recreation  

TOTAL ATTACHMENTS: 0 

============================================================================ 

 

 

 
SUBJECT(S): 
 
 

 
FOR BOARD INFORMATION:  
 

Right-of-Way Debris Pickup/Recycle Material Hauled 
November 13, 2020- December 8, 2020 

 
RIGHT–OF–WAY DEBRIS PICKUP 

Apalachicola Eastpoint St George 
Island 

Carrabelle Lanark Alligator Point 

151.41 

 TONS 

158.25 

 TONS 

89.31  

TONS 

32.08 

TONS 

15.88 

TONS 

4.28 

TONS 

 
RECYCLE MATERIAL HAULED 

 Apalachicola Eastpoint St. 
George 
Island 

Carrabelle Lanark Alligator 
Point 

St. 
James 

Cardboard 8.08 
TONS 

6.27 
TONS 

4.12 
TONS 

6.15 
TONS 

-0- 
TONS 

-0- 
TONS 

.31 
TONS 

Plastic,Paper,Glass,  
Aluminum 

 
-0-  

TONS 

 
-0- 

TONS 

 
-0- 

TONS 

 
-0-  

TONS 

 
-0- 

TONS 

 
-0- 

TONS 

 
-0-

TONS 

REQUESTED ACTION: None  

 
 

55

E.



 

 

MEETING DATE: December 15, 2020 

NAME/DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Pamela Brownell, Director, Franklin County Emergency 
Management  

TOTAL ATTACHMENTS: 1 

============================================================================ 

 

 

Action Items: None 

 

 

Information Items: 

 

1. Digital Kiosks have been placed in their assigned locations within the County. 
2. EOC staff continue to put together COVID Care Bags and have begun to distribute them to the 

vulnerable populations in the County.  
3. Alligator Point dune walkovers have been obligated. 
4. EOC staff are scheduled to meet with DOH 12/15/20 to discuss COVID vaccinations.  
5. Message Boards have arrived and are in the process of getting tags for them in order to put 

them out in the community. 
6. EOC Staff continues to work Hurricane Sally from 09/12/20 and continues to work with FDEM 

and FEMA. 
7. EOC Staff continue to participate in the NOAA Tropical Weather Training.  
8. EOC has submitted our New LMS Plan and corrections to the state and are awaiting approval. 
9. EOC Staff along with our CERT Volunteers continue to distribute washable & reusable cloth 

mask throughout our community.  We have partnered with the City of Carrabelle and City of 
Apalachicola Chamber of Commerce along with the St. George Island & Eastpoint Visitor 
Centers to assist with distribution to local businesses and residents.  We will continue this 
effort as long as supplies are available.  

10. EOC Staff are working diligently with DOH Staff regarding the COVID-19 virus.  This includes 
hosting meetings with representatives from DOH, Sheriff’s Dept. Weems, EMS, as needed.  
We also are assisting with Conference Calls, information distribution from DOH via Alert 
Franklin, Facebook and our EOC Website. 

11. EOC Staff continue to participate in conference calls with State DEM, Region 2, DOH, FEMA, 
etc. regarding COVID 19.  We also continue to update WebEOC with Local State of Emergency 
and SitReps. 

12. EOC Staff continue to work on FEMA reimbursement claims from Hurricane Michael. This 
includes working with FEMA staff regarding mitigation of damaged parks, roads, etc.  

56

F.



Mitigation takes some time but EOC Staff continue to work diligently with FEMA Staff on the 
most beneficial repairs for Franklin County.  We are in contact with our PDMG regularly 
regarding these projects and will update the Board as soon as the State Review is completed. 
EOC Staff has also began the FEMA reimbursement claim process for COVID-19 and Hurricane 
Sally. 

 
11.  Below is a copy of the DOH Dashboard regarding COVID-19 Cases in Franklin County 
as of 12/15/20 at 1:30 pm.  
 
  

 

57

F.



 

 

MEETING DATE: December 15, 2020 

NAME/DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: UF/IFAS Franklin County Extension Program  

TOTAL ATTACHMENTS: None 

============================================================================ 

 

Informational Items  
 

General Extension Activities: 

1. During this period, the Extension office assisted citizens on the topics of a large oak 

with thinning canopy, home landscaping questions, raccoon issues, citrus greening 

disease, more trees attacked by pine beetles, damage to old cedar tree, minor fish kill in 

a pond, and more. 

2. Extension Director transported an injured adult Bald Eagle from St. George Island to 

the veterinary hospital in Tallahassee for surgery. 

3. Extension staff collected 63 pounds of peanut butter during the annual Peanut Butter 

Challenge this year.  This is matched each year by the North Florida Peanut Producers 

and then donated to local food banks in the County. 

 

Sea Grant Extension: 

4. Extension Director participated in statewide Sea Grant discussion via Zoom to share 

project work and discuss program needs. 

 

4-H Youth Development: 

5. Extension staff are working to initiate another 4-H club as two new adult volunteers are 

going through the certification/screening process with UF. 

6. One of the existing clubs is planning to begin a shooting sports program, beginning 

with archery.  The Extension office is seeking donations for the purchase of start-up 

sets, targets, etc.  All donations are tax deductible as they are processed through UF 

fiscal procedures. 

 

Family and Consumer Sciences: 

7. Family Nutrition Program assistant, following school and UF Covid Phase III policies, 

is continuing to conduct some in-person lessons in local schools. 

 

Agriculture/Home Horticulture: 

8. Assisted multiple property owners in Apalachicola with oak species identification and 

issues regarding potential risks to nearby structures. 

 

 

58

G.



 

 

 

 

University of Florida’s Institute of Food and Agricultural Sciences 

 

Franklin County Educational Team 

 

 

Erik Lovestrand, County Extension Director/Sea Grant Regional Specialized Agent  

Michelle Huber, Office Manager/Program Assistant, Franklin County 

Kayle Mears, Family Nutrition Program Assistant 

Samantha Kennedy, Wakulla County Family and Consumer Sciences 

Rachel Pienta, Ph.D., Wakulla County 4-H Youth Development 

Scott Jackson, Sea Grant/Agriculture/Technology, Regional Specialized Agent Bay County 

Julie McMillian, Gulf County 4-H/Family and Consumer Sciences 

Ray Bodrey, Gulf County CED/Agriculture/Horticulture/Sea Grant 

Heather Kent, 4-H Regional Specialized Agent 

Pat Williams, Wakulla County CED/Agriculture/Small Farms/Horticulture 

John Wells, Northwest Extension District Information Technology Expert 

Pete Vergot III, Ph.D., Northwest District Extension Director 

 

 

 

 

Extension Office Location in Apalachicola at 261 Dr. Frederick S. Humphries Street 

 

 

 

 

59

G.



Copyright Key Data, LLC 2020
Created: 12/1/20 09:12 AM

60

H.



Copyright Key Data, LLC 2020
Created: 12/1/20 09:12 AM

61

H.



FCTDC Collections Report for 

2019-20 Year-to-Date Report

Through September 2020

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

A B C D E F G H I J K L M

Month 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
October 35,408.91$            32,809.57$             39,697.19$           38,597.69$               39,568.32$             36,996.34$            48,383.10$            53,543.22$            57,651.88$               58,875.87$               75,084.59$                95,107.96$                
November 24,824.38$            24,717.35$             27,182.76$           25,888.92$               25,863.47$             26,438.49$            34,441.98$            40,334.08$            34,740.65$               40,065.78$               44,449.24$                46,043.65$                
December 20,421.74$            16,055.89$             22,986.95$           23,167.33$               16,530.96$             19,936.19$            21,597.00$            21,510.93$            29,747.90$               30,978.80$               24,692.82$                41,580.49$                
January 19,681.48$            26,489.68$             22,911.37$           22,960.20$               26,170.57$             23,359.12$            30,392.62$            33,657.09$            34,707.03$               38,805.36$               47,001.63$                41,668.57$                
February 29,294.47$            44,900.59$             40,835.29$           39,452.32$               33,678.97$             34,980.88$            52,045.79$            49,365.87$            52,883.10$               42,754.53$               64,493.95$                60,422.61$                
March 51,243.40$            45,643.22$             61,090.70$           49,778.57$               53,116.79$             61,989.52$            66,597.90$            80,880.36$            78,180.12$               83,626.43$               80,017.67$                84,583.19$                
April 69,608.73$            70,430.06$             66,135.24$           73,880.65$               53,934.68$             70,610.82$            81,641.55$            90,242.68$            81,115.14$               101,310.37$             103,120.37$              89,949.68$                
May 100,486.16$          114,100.71$           123,221.80$         104,769.28$             120,470.95$           90,634.75$            140,203.97$          115,589.54$          135,897.45$             143,700.44$             131,348.44$              110,484.59$             
June 107,484.39$          166,403.90$           138,839.79$         143,507.76$             151,640.61$           172,029.99$         143,805.29$          195,838.11$          210,505.76$             195,093.30$             213,948.96$              226,795.48$              
July 149,857.23$          95,128.02$             128,027.35$         131,276.62$             114,121.18$           147,874.24$         140,000.40$          153,197.77$          164,199.99$             182,235.52$             253,603.30$              242,036.51$              
August 51,353.14$            69,863.99$             57,497.82$           56,312.21$               71,377.70$             60,698.01$            93,912.12$            86,742.96$            107,783.56$             129,879.50$             82,664.07$                121,808.90$              
September 38,597.72$            46,282.27$             45,739.57$           41,298.87$               47,760.09$             57,592.93$            63,037.18$            57,170.58$            64,199.48$               75,778.00$               81,869.35$                90,214.19$                
Totals 698,261.75$          752,825.25$           774,165.83$        750,890.42$             754,234.29$           803,141.28$         916,058.90$          978,073.19$          1,051,612.06$          1,123,103.90$          1,202,294.39$           1,250,695.82$           

YOY % 54,563.50$             21,340.58$           (23,275.41)$              3,343.87$               48,906.99$            112,917.62$          62,014.29$            73,538.87$               71,491.84$               79,190.49$                48,401.43$                
7.8% 2.8% -3.0% 0.4% 6.5% 14.1% 6.8% 7.5% 6.8% 7.1% 4.0%

Month         2017-18         2018-19         2019-20 Increase/Decrease % of Change
October 85,823.35$            38,416.89$             89,660.28$           51,243.39$               133.39%
November 49,440.74$            87,784.31$             57,067.01$           (30,717.30)$              -34.99%
December 37,182.43$            46,715.00$             52,526.91$           5,811.91$                  12.44%
January 51,388.51$            52,063.46$             54,422.25$           2,358.79$                  4.53%
February 58,337.94$            66,632.44$             95,017.02$           28,384.58$               42.60%
March 111,947.32$          127,975.20$           71,946.84$           (56,028.36)$              -43.78%
April 103,422.44$          82,258.08$             20,066.60$           (62,191.48)$              -75.61%
May 140,130.14$          166,129.65$           123,839.27$         (42,290.38)$              -25.46%
June 269,049.32$          300,092.38$           283,734.76$         (16,357.62)$              -5.45%
July 215,933.34$          209,374.07$           253,488.28$         44,114.21$               21.07%
August 111,322.92$          134,238.67$           190,136.02$        55,897.35$               41.64%
September 70,419.47$            90,051.57$             140,186.24$         50,134.67$               55.67%
Totals 1,304,397.92$       1,401,731.72$       1,432,091.48$     30,359.76$               2.17%

YOY % 53,702.10$            97,333.80$             30,359.76$           
4.29% 7.46% 2.17%

* October and  November 2018 due to Hurricane Michael statistically are outliers.
   October and November 2019 compared with 2017-18 amounts are more representative,
   thus, these months show increases of 10% and 9% respectively, or YTD increase of 31%.
* Coronoviris-19  March 1 - May 18  2020

 $-    

 $250,000.00  

 $500,000.00  

 $750,000.00  

 $1,000,000.00  

 $1,250,000.00  

 $1,500,000.00  

 $1,750,000.00  

File:TDC Collections YTD.xl 

Updated 12/25/2020
62

H.



63

J.



64

J.



65

J.



66

J.



67

J.



2514 HIGHWAY 67, CARRABELLE, FL

LAND USE CHANGE OF 6.08 ACRES FROM

RESIDENTIAL TO COMMERICAL

68

J.



69

J.



70

J.



71

J.



72

J.



73

J.



74

J.



75

J.



76

J.



77

J.



78

J.



79

J.



80

J.



81

J.



82

J.



83

J.



84

J.



85

J.



86

J.



87

J.



88

J.



89

J.



90

J.



2514 HIGHWAY 67, CARRABELLE, FL
RE-ZONING OF 6.08 ACRES FROM R-2 SINGLE FAMILY MOBILE TO C-3 COMMERCIAL RECREATION

EXHIBIT B

91

K.



92

K.



93

K.



94

K.



95

K.



96

K.



97

K.



98

K.



99

K.



100

K.



101

K.



102

K.



103

K.



104

K.



105

K.



106

K.



107

K.



108

K.



109

K.



110

K.



111

K.



112

K.



113

K.



114

K.



115

K.



116

K.



117

K.



118

K.



2536 HIGHWAY 67, CARRABELLE, FL

LAND USE CHANGE OF 10 ACRES FROM

AGRICULTURAL & RESIDENTIAL TO COMMERICAL

EXHIBIT B

119

L.



120

L.



121

L.



122

L.



123

L.



124

L.



125

L.



126

L.



127

L.



128

L.



129

L.



130

L.



131

L.



132

L.



133

L.



134

L.



135

L.



136

L.



137

L.



138

L.



139

L.



140

L.



141

L.



142

L.



143

L.



144

L.



145

L.



146

L.



2536 HIGHWAY 67, CARRABELLE, FL
RE-ZONING OF 10 ACRES FROM A-2 FORESTRY AGRICULTURE &

R-2 SINGLE FAMILY MOBILE TO C-3 COMMERCIAL RECREATION

EXHIBIT B

147

M.



148

M.



149

M.



150

M.



151

M.



152

M.



153

M.



154

M.



155

M.



156

M.



157

M.



158

M.



159

M.



160

M.



161

M.



162

M.



163

M.



164

M.



165

M.



166

M.



167

M.



168

M.



169

M.



170

M.



171

M.



172

M.



173

M.



174

M.



175

N.



176

N.



177

N.



178

N.



179

N.



180

N.



181

N.



182

N.



183

N.



184

N.



185

N.



186

N.



187

N.



188

N.



189

N.



190

N.



191

N.



192

N.



193

N.



194

N.



195

N.



196

N.



197

N.



198

N.



199

N.



200

N.



201

N.



202

N.



203

N.



204

N.



205

N.



206

N.



207

N.



208

N.



209

O.



210

O.



211

O.



212

O.



213

O.



214

O.



215

O.



216

O.



217

O.



218

O.



219

P.



220

P.



221

P.



222

P.



223

P.



224

Q.



225

Q.



226

Q.



227

Q.



228

Q.



229

Q.



230

Q.



231

Q.



232

Q.



233

Q.



234

Q.



235

Q.



236

Q.



237

Q.



238

Q.



239

Q.



240

Q.



241

Q.



242

Q.



243

Q.



244

Q.



245

Q.



246

Q.



247

Q.



248

Q.



249

Q.



250

Q.



251

Q.



252

Q.



253

Q.



254

Q.



255

Q.



256

Q.



257

Q.



258

Q.



259

Q.



260

Q.



261

Q.



262

Q.



263

Q.



264

Q.



265

Q.



266

Q.



267

Q.



268

Q.



269

Q.



270

Q.



271

Q.



272

Q.



273

Q.



274

Q.



275

Q.



276

Q.



277

Q.



278

Q.



279

Q.



280

R.



281

R.



282

R.



283

S.



284

S.



285

S.



286

S.



287

S.



288

S.



289

S.



290

S.



291

S.



292

S.



293

S.



294

S.



295

S.



296

S.



297

S.



298

S.



299

S.



300

S.



301

S.



302

T.



303

T.



304

T.



305

T.



306

T.



307

T.



308

T.



309

T.



310

T.



December 2, 2020
Page 1
_______________

Opposition to the Application for Re-Zoning & Land
Use Change requested by BB&G Resorts, LLC

December 4, 2020

Board of County of Commissioners
Franklin County
34 Forbes Street
Apalachicola, Florida 32320

I am writing to strongly oppose the proposed land use change requested by BB&G Resorts,
LLC (471 McIntyre Road, Parcel #1-06S-03W-0000-0010-0050 containing 41.64 acres. My name
is Wade Brown and I own 41.6-acre tract located at 465 McIntyre Road, directly adjacent to the
proposed RV site. While most of the land surrounding the proposed site is now owned by the State,
I have spoken with most of the private property owners located nearby and all of them unanimously
oppose the proposed development. Opponents include: MJD Ventures, Inc (Parcel ID #10-06S-
03W-0000-0010-0030); McIntyre Bluff, LLC (Parcel ID #10-06S-03W-0000-0010-0020); Jimmys
Spot, LLC (Parcel ID #10-06S-03W-0000-0010-0010) .

During 2010 myself and four other partners purchased 200+ acres from St. Joe Timberland
Co. with the understanding that the existing land use of the property was agriculture and existing
zoning was agriculture which allows one single family residence per 40 acres. March 2011, we
divided the property amongst us five parties with equal river frontage and equal acreage. The
applicant’s property being one of the divisions. Each parcel contains approximately 41.6 acres. On
3-17-2020 BB&G Resorts, LLC (the applicant) purchased 471 McIntyre Road, being one of the
original divisions, from one of my partners understanding the agriculture land use density being one
family residence per 40 acres.

I have constructed a residence on my parcel and have made many property improvements
for my family’s enjoyment and with the intent on being my permanent retirement residence.
Knowing that the surrounding property would only allow one family residence per 40 acres. The 40
acre tracts allow for a nice structure as well as being able to enjoy the remaining acres as recreational
use for hunting, farming, silvicultural farming (pine trees).

We embarked on this knowing/trusting the other landowners would have to adhere to the
1 per 40 land use. It is also noteworthy that the state purchased thousands of acres that surround the
original 5 parcels on the North, East & west in efforts to conserve the Ochlocknee and Crooked
River system and prohibit any future development .

The proposed land use change – which allows the construction of an RV Park in an
environmentally sensitive and historically significant area is a very bad idea and is at odds with
applicable zoning, land use, and environmental laws. It would also wreak environmental havoc in
an area which is largely wetlands, and which has no available potable water system nor available
connection to a centralized sewer system that might lessen the impact.

311

T.



December 2, 2020
Page 2
_______________

While I am an advocate of private property rights, the public good must sometimes take
precedence, especially in situations where a proposed land use change could adversely affect so
many. This is such a situation.

The proposed RV Park is adjacent to McIntyre Landing, just off of McIntyre Road, and
directly on the Ochlocknee River. The land where BB&G proposes to construct the RV Park is a
historical site and once was the center of a struggling company town where McIntyre Mill operated.
An old railroad bed crosses the property, and it includes a ditch which provides drainage of
thousands of adjacent acres.

The land is of historic significance, not only because of McIntyre Mill, but also because it
was used as a camping site for native Americans for thousands of years. Many artifacts, including
native American pottery and arrowheads have been uncovered during recreational digs.

Because it is located on the Ochlocknee River and is a drainage port, the environmental
impact from an RV Park would be enormous. There is also no public need for such an RV Park,
since the Ochlocknee River State Park is about two miles away as the crow flies. In the end, the
public would be the victims of the development because of pollution to the River and the aquifer.

The significance of this area is demonstrated by the State’s recent acquisition of thousands
of acres of surrounding land. It would be a travesty to allow an RV Park to be developed in this
gem of an area that the State has purchased to preserve untarnished for future generations.

The proposed land use change should be denied for the foregoing and following reasons:

• The proposed land use of "campground" requested does not exist as a land use
designation under the Comprehensive Plan.

• The application notes that the existing land use is "Agriculture/Fishcamp." This is
incorrect. The Land Use Map under the Comprehensive Plan designates this property
as Agriculture Land Use. Fish camp does not exist.

• The proposed rezoning to C-3 is inconsistent with the existing Agriculture Land
Use designation. The proposed Land Use Change failed to comply with Franklin
County Land Use Element, Policy 1.1 and 1.2.

o Policy 1.1 The Future Land Use Maps will be reviewed to be sure
adequate infrastructure is in place before areas are permitted for
development. Adequate infrastructure is defined as the infrastructure
necessary to maintain the adopted levels of service in this plan. The
County shall not issue development orders that will degrade the existing
levels of service below that level adopted as the minimum in this
Comprehensive Plan.

o Policy 1.2 The Future Land Use Maps will be reviewed to ensure that the
proposed uses, in the various categories, do not conflict with the prevailing
natural conditions including:
(a) SOIL CONDITIONS – When the US. Soil Conservation Services

completes and publishes the maps of their soil survey for Franklin County
the County will coordinate the land use maps with the soil survey maps to
ensure that areas proposed for development have soils suitable to support
the proposed development.

(b) TOPOGRAPHY – Areas of excessive topographical relief shall be
classified for low density development.

312

T.



December 2, 2020
Page 3
_______________

(c) DRAINAGE – Natural drainage features will be protected and preserved
to ensure the continuation of their natural function.

(d) WETLANDS – No development will be allowed within 60 feet of
wetlands, except as allowed pursuant to policies 1.6 and 1.7 of this element,
Policies 1.1, 1.2, and 1.5 of the Coastal Conservation Element or as
provided in paragraphs 1-6 below.

• The proposed rezoning to C-3 constitutes spot zoning. No commercial zonings exist
in any close proximity to the subject property.

o See attached spot zoning information based on past court cases.

• The Application does not contain suitable data and analysis to support land use
amendment. No field truthing investigations, studies or reports have been provided to
substantiate the claims in the application that no endangered species, historical or
cultural resources exist on-site. The documents provided are not the best available data
nor adequate to ensure compliance and compatibility with the Comprehensive Plan.

• The statement in the application that no historical or cultural resources exist on-site
is completely untrue as the historic GF&A railroad bed lies within and through the
boundaries of the subject property. Subject property lies within the old McIntyre town
site. Additional undiscovered historically significant sites may also exist within this
property.

o Land Use Element, Objective 3 provides that "the County shall ensure the
protection of natural and historical resources . . .."

o Land Use Element, Policy 3.7 "Historic resources shall be protected . . .."

• The applicant did not provide any traffic analysis to support the claim that the project
will only increase traffic from 3-5 per day currently to 8-10 a day.

o Traffic Element Policy 3.2 provides "Land use changes will not be made that
will cause the peak hour level of service on the roads that service that area to
fall below the level of service . . .." (Application lacks sufficient data to support
change and ensure compliance with level of service standards.)

o McIntyre Road is currently dirt measuring 1.5 miles from US 319 to subject
property and cannot support commercial traffic. Furthermore, there is a
Franklin County ordinance on McIntyre Road #92-3 that states Road is closed
to vehicles having more than two axles. Increased traffic volumes will
increase the cost of maintenance on the County would result in a violation of
Franklin County ordinance #92-3, which does not allow McIntyre Road to be
used by vehicles with tandem axles.

• Studies regarding environmental conditions, endangered species, historical and
cultural resources, and traffic impacts should be prepared by licensed
professionals and utilizing acceptable methodology.

• The Applicant has not demonstrated consistency with the Comprehensive Plan:

o The first Goal outlined in the Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan is
to "Ensure that the character and location of land uses in Franklin County

313

T.



December 2, 2020
Page 4
_______________

minimize the threat to the natural environment . . .." Objective 1 directs that
"Future development activities shall be directed to appropriate areas as
depicted on the Future Land Use Maps to assure that soil conditions,
topography, drainage, and natural conditions are suitable for development and
adequate public facilities are available . . ..” (site is 85% wetlands, that drain
into the Ochlocknee and Crooked riverine system, and no public facilities are
available).

o Land Use Element, Policy 1.2(d) provides "No development will be allowed
within 50 feet of wetlands..." (the entire site lying south of McIntyre Road is
a wetland (85%) of the project and a riverine system exists on the north side
of McIntyre Road)

o Land Use Element, Policy 3.1 provides "Development, alteration of native
vegetation, and habitable structures within 50 feet landward of wetlands or
waters of the State, is prohibited..." (site is all wetland lying south of McIntyre
Road)

o Coastal/Conservation Element, Objective 1 states, "The wetlands of Franklin
County shall be conserved and protected such that no net loss (after mitigation)
shall occur." Further, Policy 1.6 (c) provides for the discouragement of altering
wetlands but requires mitigation. The application fails to demonstrate
conservation, protection and/or mitigation of wetlands and therefore also
violates Objective 2 of this Element.

o Coastal/Conservation Element Policy 2.2 prohibits high density development
adjacent to sensitive wetlands and prohibits destruction of wetland vegetation.

o Failed to provide documentation of compliance with Land Use Element, Policy
1.6.

o Land Use Element, Policy 3.10, Infrastructure Element, Policy 2.2, and
Coastal/Conservation Element Policy 4.3 prohibits installation of septic tanks
within 150 feet of wetlands and shorelines. Applicant proposes to install
multiple septic systems within wetlands.

o Land Use Element, Policy 6.1 provides "...replacement of land uses which are
incompatible with the Future Land Use Plan shall be prohibited." Changing the
land use on this site for commercial uses is incompatible with the nature of the
area, existing surrounding uses and inconsistent with the Land Use Element of
the Comprehensive Plan.

• Land Use Element, Objective 8 states "to prevent urban sprawl the County shall
encourage infill in already developed area..." Further, Policy 8.2 provides that
the County should "encourage infill in already developed areas through the

314

T.



December 2, 2020
Page 5
_______________

provision of existing infrastructure. "Policy 8.11requires urban sprawl factors
to be considered during the review of map and plan amendments. (Subject
property is outside of any urban service area, surrounded by conservation land
use as per the land use map and nowhere near any other developed lands or
commercial uses.)

• Coastal/Conservation Element Policy 13.9 requires "Any Future Land Use
Map amendments and corresponding density and intensity assignments shall
be consistent with the requirements of Chapter 163, Part II, of the Florida
Statutes, and the Franklin County Comprehensive Plan . . . and must and must
be supported by the best available data and analysis..."

• Finally, the Applicant has not demonstrated consistency with Chapter 163, Part II,
Florida Statutes which is required on a large scale map amendment that the State of
Florida will review.

In view of all of the above, the proposed land use change should be denied.

I would like to further comment on the Topographical Survey and the Site Plan provided by
applicant as part of application and how it is inconsistent with Franklin County Comprehensive plan.

Topographical Survey prepared by Thurman Roddenberry & Associates provided by
applicant

 Has only been performed in the area lying north of McIntyre Road (approximately 15% of
property)

 The entire property has a significant slope from the McIntyre Road to the edge of Ochlocknee
River

 There are 3 natural drainage areas to the Ochlocknee River which drain the area lying south of
McIntyre Road via culverts lying under the road as well as sheet flow drainage across the road

 Shows the railroad bed of the historic GF&A Railroad
 This parcel contains the historic Ochlocknee River trussel crossing an abutment on the Franklin

County side
 Fails to show mean high water line along the Ochlocknee River as well as any wetlands along

the riverbank
 Shows the entire property lying within a Zone AE elevation 13 flood zone

Site Plan prepared by Marvin HeyMann & Associates provided by applicant
The applicants site plan and data exhibits provided show the following:

 Site map of the National Wetlands Inventory of subject property shows the entire parcel lying
south of McIntyre Road is a fresh water emergent wetland which encompasses (makes up)
approximately 85% of subject property. The remaining 15% of property that is located entire
river frontage is in a Riverine system located at the confluence of Crooked River and
Ochlocknee River, both tidal water bodies.

315

T.



December 2, 2020
Page 6
_______________

 Site plan shows approximately 32 RV sites, roadway system, 3 septic tanks and 2 large septic
drain fields lying on the south side of McIntyre Road. As illustrated on the National Wetlands
Inventory Map it is entirely within wetlands. Furthermore, based on the site plan the easterly side
of the 32 sites would encroach over my property line in a triangular shape approximately 40 feet
on the south side by 160 feet heading back north.

 On the northerly side of McIntyre road, it appears that an approximately 1,225 square foot
shower/bath facility, a 1,225 square foot store, as well as a 3,600 square foot septic field is
proposed.

 There is also an undesignated area for primitive camping, it is unclear how many camping sites
are proposed.

 Proposed dock is also shown without any riparian rights lines determined.
 No proposed storm water management facilities or demonstration of how storm water runoff

would be diverted from draining directly into the river on this excessive natural slope.
 Proposed septic field on the north side of McIntyre lies within one of the natural drains, draining

the southerly lands to the river.
 The septic field, shower/bathroom facility, store and primitive camping are located around the

natural ground contour elevation between 8 and 6 feet, which lies anywhere between 7 to 5 feet
below the base flood elevation of AE-13 feet.

 Fails to provide any type of shoreline revetment plan to prevent erosion along the river bank.

If you need further information or would like to otherwise discuss this matter, I can be reached
at wadebrown@embarqmail.com or 850-524-2413.

I will attend the Planning & Zoning meeting scheduled for December 8, 2020, as well as the
Board of County Commission meeting scheduled for December 15, 2020 and will be available for
questions.

Sincerely,

Wade Brown

316

T.



317

T.



318

T.



319

T.



320

T.



321

U.



322

U.



323

U.



324

U.



325

U.



FRANKLIN COUNTY CDBG-DR HURRICANE MICHAEL,  SAINT GEORGE ISLAND DUNE RESTORATION 

 

Project Description 

 

Franklin County was impacted by Hurricane Michael, especially in the 32328 zip code area, which 

includes Saint George Island.  Sand dunes were eroded/destroyed during Hurricane Michael, primarily 

by tidal surge.  These dunes provided needed protection against further beach erosion, as well as 

protection to the developed property north of the actual beach.  Dunes are also an ecological resource, 

as a nesting and foraging area.  Franklin County will use Hurricane Michael CDBG-DR grant funds to 

restore Saint George Island (gulf side) sand dunes along the public beach between East 11th Street to 

West 12th Street. 

 

The County’s staff and CDBG consultant will coordinate more extensively with the County’s consultant 

engineer to refine the scope of work and determine the most appropriate dune restoration methods to 

use.  It is likely that a combination of methods will be employed.  At this time, the plan is to create sand 

berm dunes in the area between 2nd Street East and 2nd Street West (FEMA allows 6 cubic yards per 

linear foot).  In the remaining length of beach sand fencing will be installed (typically 4’ high and 10’ 

long, spaced 10’ apart) to catch sand as it blows and naturally build dunes, and sea oats and/or other 

appropriate vegetation (spaced 18” apart) will be planted to stabilize the sand, catch sand as it blows, 

and grow up through the sand as dunes form.  A coastal engineering specialist will be a valuable part of 

the engineering team, and has already provided basic construction cost information.   

 

This highly experienced team will successfully manage, engineer and administer the project.  They will 

be responsible for environmental review, appropriate design and specifications, preparing bid 

documents with applicable federal and state contract language, procuring the construction contractor 

(with contract approval of the Board of County Commissioners), and then managing construction, 

contract compliance (such as Davis-Bacon Act, EEO, environmental protection, etc.), payments and 

reimbursements, reporting, public relations, and all other related tasks.  

 

The dune restoration will reverse Hurricane Michael’s damage to the public beach.  The beneficial 

result/outcome of the project will be a more resilient shore line, which is important to County residents 

who enjoy recreational opportunities on this public beach.  Visitors also enjoy utilizing this public beach, 

which makes it a major tourist destination and a vital part of the local economy.  Dunes will continue to 

play a critical role in protecting the island from storm surge damage, which would be much worse 

without the dunes to provide a buffer.  Storm surge damage would include damage/destruction of 

houses (both for local residents and for vacationers), commercial development, a County park, other 

visitor attractions such as the lighthouse, and infrastructure such as roads, signage and power lines.  

Destruction of the built environment or the beaches would result in major loss of employment. Dunes 

and their surroundings also provide a nesting area for sea turtles and a foraging area for various birds 

and other creatures.   

 

The area most lacking in dunes is in the area of the County park, between 2nd Street East and 3rd Street 

West, which is also the central business district area.  The most costly type of dune restoration, 

installation of new dunes, will be reserved for this area, in order to make the project more cost effective 

326

U.



while focusing on immediately protecting this vital part of the island.  The other areas of the beach will 

have dune restoration that relies on natural build-up of sand from fencing.  All of the dunes will be 

augmented by plantings, primarily sea oats with self-watering fertilizer packs.  

 

This project meets the national objection of Urgent Need, because it addresses damage from Hurricane 

Michael.  The damage has not been resolved, so it is still an unmet need.  Funding has not been 

available, thus there is no duplication of benefits.  

 

The project service area is defined as all of Franklin County.  Although the U. S. Census data does not 

indicate that Franklin County’s population is 51% low to moderate income, it is quite possible that such 

is the case, due to hurricane damage, a serious decline deterioration of the local seafood industry, and 

COVID related economic declines.   

 

Many County residents, especially those of the lower income range, rely on the tourism/hospitality 

industry for their employment.  Examples of tourism/hospitality jobs on the island include cleaning the 

houses and other lodging, maintenance and groundskeeping, food preparation and service, retail sales, 

pleasure fishing guides, and many other directly related jobs.  Loss of the Saint George Island beach 

would result in loss of these types of jobs both on the island and county wide, due to the Island’s draw 

of tourists who also visit other parts of the county.  In addition to the direct employment of local 

residents in the tourism/hospitality industry, there are other jobs in the local economy that would be 

eliminated or scaled back in the event that Saint George Island tourism failed, because of the ripple 

effect of the tourism/hospitality job losses.   

 

The proposed dune restoration work will involve employment of workers who install the sand, fencing 

and plants, as well as engineering and grant administration consultants.  Franklin County is one of the 

state designated Northwest Rural Areas of Opportunity (REDI).  

 

Franklin County maintains this public beach area in terms of providing trash collection, dune walkover 

maintenance, minor sand work, hazard warnings, parking, etc.  This project will enable the beach to be 

reclassified from “natural” to “engineered”, which will make the beach eligible for future disaster 

recovery funding from FEMA.  FEMA assistance will be a valuable resource for the County to pursue in 

the event of future storm damage. 

 

 

Damage Summary 

 

Franklin County was impacted by Hurricane Michael, especially in the 32328 zip code area, which 

includes Saint George Island.  Saint George Island is a barrier island, providing protection to the 

mainland.  Sand dunes were eroded during Hurricane Michael, primarily by tidal surge.  The surge 

completely eliminated some dunes, washed out the seaward side of other dunes, and also cut through 

some dunes, and the high winds shrank dune size by blowing some of the dune sand into other locations 

outside the beach dune area.  The County’s public beach, located between East 11th Street and West 

12th Street, approximately 22,000 feet long, experienced loss of sand dunes.  Although the project area 

sustained some loss of dune volume in previous storms, Hurricane Michael greatly exacerbated the 

327

U.



damage.  The area between 2nd Street East and 2nd Street West is especially void of dunes, and this is the 

most important area to protect in terms of tourism, public infrastructure, and the built environment. 

 

Loss of dunes, shrinkage in the size of dunes, and larger gaps between dunes decrease the level of 

protection against further beach erosion and eventual erosion of the island as a whole.  There is a 

decrease the available nesting and foraging area for shoreline animals such as sea turtles and birds.  

There is also a reduced level of protection to the developed property north of the actual beach, 

including houses and other buildings, infrastructure, public and commercial facilities.   

 

Although the project area (which is the County’s public beach on Saint George Island) was not 

devastated by Hurricane Michael, continued erosion would be devastating to the natural environment, 

the built environment, and to the County’s recreation and tourism economy.  The condition of the public 

beach is especially critical to the service area, because it is open not only to visitors who stay in the 

houses and lodging directly adjacent to the beach, but also to the local residents and visitors who do not 

stay in the adjacent houses and lodging.  Therefore, the entire county is the service area, especially 

lower income residents who rely on tourism related employment.  

 

 

Resilience to Damage from Future Storms 

 

Although there is always risk of future storm damage to coastal areas, the very nature of sand dune 

restoration is a pro-active investment in resiliency against such damage.  Larger, more consistent and 

more stable sand dunes will increase the dune survival rate.  The dunes will provide protection to the 

natural environment, including foraging and nesting areas.  Another protection to the natural 

environment is derived from the continued existence of this barrier island, which buffers the mainland 

from the severity of storm surge.  Dunes protect the built environment against storm surge, shielding 

houses, commercial structures, public facilities and infrastructure.  Best practices will be employed in 

determining the exact scope of work for the dune restoration, to enhance dune viability.  The 

preliminary plan is to construct new dunes in the area of the County park and businesses, which will 

provide immediate protection of the shoreline.  Sand fences will be constructed/installed throughout 

the remainder of the beach.  Sea oats or other appropriate vegetation will be planted on all dunes, with 

self-watering fertilizer packs so the plants will survive and thrive. 

 

 

Addressing an Unmet Need Tied to Hurricane Michael 

 

Hurricane Michael eroded/destroyed sand dunes on Franklin County’s public beach located on Saint 

George Island. There has been no funding for dune restoration, at the local, state or federal level.  

Therefore, the need to restore sand dunes is still unmet.  The dune restoration will reverse Hurricane 

Michael’s damage to the public beach.   

 

 

 

 

328

U.



Roles of Key Staff, Contractors and/or Vendors in Operations Management 

 

The CDBG-DR dune restoration project will be implemented by consultants and construction 

contractors, under the general guidance and oversight of County staff and the Board of County 

Commissioners. 

 

The County’s staff and CDBG consultant will coordinate with the County’s consultant engineer.  A coastal 
engineering specialist will be a valuable part of the engineering team.   
 
This highly experienced team will successfully manage, engineer and administer the project.  They will 

be responsible for environmental review, appropriate design and specifications, preparing bid 

documents with applicable federal and state contract language, procuring the construction contractor 

(with contract approval of the Board of County Commissioners), and then managing construction, 

contract compliance (such as Davis-Bacon Act, EEO, environmental protection, etc.), additional CDBG 

grant tasks, payments and reimbursements, reporting, public relations, and all other related tasks. 

 

The County Planner will be the Project Manager, in coordination with the CDBG grant consultant.  This 

arrangement has worked well for Franklin County’s CDBG program for more than 2 decades.  The 

County Coordinator and the Board of County Commissioners will be kept informed of the project status, 

and will approve contract procurement and payments. County staff working for the Board and for the 

Clerk of Court will process payment requests. No additional County staff will be needed for this project. 

 

The County has not gone through the procurement process for consultants for Hurricane Michael CDBG-

DR.  However, the current consultants have been involved in this grant application, and are ready, 

willing and able to contract with and serve the County if the procurement process results in their 

selection.  No new County employees will be needed for the project. 

 

Experience and Capacity of Key Members of the Management Team 

 

Mark Curenton, County Planner, has a Master’s degree in Urban and Regional Planning, and 32 years of 

employment as Franklin County’s Assistant County Planner and County Planner. Curenton has 

coordinated and provided oversight of Franklin County’s CDBG program for more than 20 years.  He is 

well versed in issues relating to grant administration, having been the County contact for the CDBG 

grants as well as other state and federal grants.  Mr. Curenton is the qualifying agent for Franklin 

County’s Local Assistance Program (LAP) Certification by the Florida Department of Transportation, 

which requires training in Davis-Bacon Act related labor and wage compliance, minority/woman-owned 

business utilization, equal employment opportunity, competitive bidding, etc.  With Mr. Curenton’s 

coordination, Franklin County has completed FDOT grant projects (state and federal) including road 

paving and sidewalk installation, as well as installation of a multi-use pathway on Saint George Island, 

Carrabelle Beach, and other locations.  Curenton has also administered grants from the Florida 

Department of State and the Florida Department of Environmental Protection.  Another grant-funded 

project he was involved in coordinating years ago involved planting sea oats at various locations in the 

County. 

 

329

U.



Michael Morón works directly for the Board of County Commissioners as County Coordinator.  He served 

as Clerk to the Board from 2005 to 2015, at which time he became County Coordinator.  Mr. Morón 

coordinates a variety of programs and County functions for the Board, and works with consultants and 

staff to provide direction on grant funded projects. 

 

Erin Griffin began work for the Clerk of Court in 2003, and became Assistant Finance Director in 2008.  

She handles all of the Board of County Commissioners funds, including tracking grants.     

 

For more than 20 years, Franklin County has contracted with Roumelis Planning and Development 

Services, Inc. for CDBG grant writing and administration/project management.  RPDS handles every 

aspect of the grant, including project planning, developing the budget (informed by engineers), public 

participation, environmental review, contract development and procurement, construction oversight, 

financial management (tracking, payment approval, ordering funds, etc.), reporting, conducting fair 

housing activities, updating policies, contract compliance issues such as labor/wage and EEO, grant 

monitoring and modifications, etc. Deborah Belcher, President of RPDS, has also assisted the County in 

developing grant related policies and procedures, including development of a grants implementation 

system approved by the U. S. Treasury for the Restore Act projects.   

 

Dewberry Engineers, formerly Preble-Rish, has handled a variety of the County’s infrastructure projects, 

with the same staff that would be used for this project.  Dewberry has coordinated with MRD and 

Associates, a coastal engineer, on projects similar to this one.  MRD did engineering for a beach 

renourishment program for Gulf County through Restore Act funding, among other relevant projects.   

 

The County has not gone through the procurement process for consultants for Hurricane Michael CDBG-

DR.  However, these consultants have been involved in this grant application, and are ready, willing and 

able to contract with and serve the County if the procurement process results in their selection. 

 

 

Comparable Projects Within the Last Five Years 

 

Franklin County has administered FEMA grants for numerous projects, including rebuilding the roadway 

on Alligator Point.  During the past five years, the County has not had CDBG-DR funds, but did 

successfully complete a roadway elevation project in 2012, using this type of funding.  The current Small 

Cities CDBG grant, which is near completion, was extended to assist Eastpoint residents after the 

Eastpoint Wildfire.  The additional funds for that phase of the CDBG grant took the total funding from 

$700,000 to $3,330,558.  As previously discussed, the County staff have been involved in a sea oat 

planting program which helps restore and preserve sand dunes.   

 

Although not within the past 5 years, the County’s CDBG grant consultant provided a wide range of 

CDBG-DR and FEMA assistance to Okeechobee County, including projects for stormwater drainage with 

property acquisition for retention, expanding the wastewater treatment plant, affordable housing 

development, owner-occupied and rental housing rehabilitation/replacement, and road paving.  The 

same consultant administered Calhoun County CDBG-DR road paving projects linked with FEMA. 

 

330

U.



 

 

Procurement Process to Cultivate Program and Project Management Capacity 

 

Franklin County will use its DEO-approved CDBG procurement policy to procure engineering services and 

grant administration/management/implementation services for the Hurricane Michael CDBG-DR 

project.  The process will be essentially the same as what the County has utilized in the past, with the 

County Planner developing the request for proposals and advertising/soliciting proposals.  A committee 

will evaluate proposals, present recommendations to the Board of County Commissioners, and prepare 

contracts for approval by the County Attorney and DEO (if DEO requires this step).  The selected 

consultants will then take the lead in procuring the other vendors needed to implement the program, 

with the Board approving the contracts. 

 

 

Plans to Augment Existing Staff with Contractors/Vendors 

 
Franklin County staff have the time and ability to coordinate and oversee the CDBG-DR project, but not 
to actually implement it.  The County will augment their staff with a consultant engineer as well as a 
consultant CDBG grant administrator/manager. 
 
Franklin County has decades of successful experience with its current CDBG grant consultant and 
consultant engineers. These consultants are prepared to implement this project, if the procurement 
process results in their selection. 
 
 
 
  

331

U.



 

Franklin County CDBG-DR Engineering, Saint George Island Dune Restoration

Engineering

Planning 5,000$       Restore Act

Plans & specs 50,000$          

Survey 80,000$          

Permitting 10,000$          

Construction Management 20,000$          

Inspections 150,000$        

TOTAL 310,000$        

Construction

Sand dune construction

Linear feet, E 2nd - W 3rd 2400

Times cubic yards 6

Price per yard 46$                  

Dune construction subtotal 662,400$       

Sand fencing

Linear feet minus constructed 19600

# fences, spaced 10' apart 1960

Price per 10' long fence, 4' tall 90$                  

Fencing construction subtotal 176,400$       

New dune walkovers, 10 @ $22,000 220,000$       10 $22,000

Dune, fence, walkover construction totals 1,058,800$   

Planting

Total linear feet 22000

Total feet wide 40

Total dune square feet 880000

Divided by 2.25 for 18" spacing 2.25

Number of plants 391111

Price per plant with hdrogel, fertilizer 3.00$              

Total planting subtotal 1,173,333$   

Site preparation 22,000$         

Maintenance of pedestrian/vehicle traffic 50,000$         

Mobilization 220,000$       

Bonds, insurance, profit 200,000$       

CONSTRUCTION-PLANTING TOTAL 2,724,133$   

Admin general 100,000$       

Admin, project 100,000$       

Admin & delivery total 200,000$        

Total CDBG-DR 3,234,133$   

County 5,000$            

Grand total for project 3,239,133$    

INFORMATION REGARDING DUNE CONSTRUCTION, SAND FENCING, PLANTING AND SURVEY PROVIDED

BY DEWBERRY ENGINEERS, WITH INPUT FROM MRD ASSOCIATES. OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED

BY ROUMELIS PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES, INC.

332

U.



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
REBUILD FLORIDA HOMETOWN 
REVITALIZATION PROGRAM  
GUIDELINES  
This document provides the guidelines for implementation of 

the Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program 

administered by the Florida Department of Economic 

Opportunity (DEO). This program is funded by the U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

Community Development Block Grant – Disaster Recovery 

(CDBG-DR) allocation described in the Supplemental 

Appropriations for Disaster Relief Act, 2018 (Public Law 115-

254) and the Additional Supplemental Appropriations for 

Disaster Relief Act, 2019 (Public Law 116-20).  

 

 

 

 

 

  

333

U.



 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 2 of 19 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS  .............................................................................................. 3 

INTRODUCTION  ....................................................................................................................... 6 

BACKGROUND  ......................................................................................................................... 7 

GENERAL INFORMATION  ........................................................................................................ 7 

HUD CDBG-DR PROGRAM AND PROJECT FUNDING DIRECTIVES  ..................................... 8 

PRE-AWARD AND PRE-CONSTRUCTION COSTS  ................................................................. 9 

THRESHOLD AND SCORING CRITERIA  ................................................................................. 9 

 A. CDBG-DR Threshold Compliance Criteria  ................................................................. 9 

 B. Scoring Criteria  ........................................................................................................ 10 

ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS  .......................................................................................................... 11 

ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES  ............................................................................................................ 12 

INELIGIBLE USES ................................................................................................................... 12 

BUSINESS ELIGIBILITY ........................................................................................................... 12 

BUSINESS INELIGIBILITY ....................................................................................................... 13 

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE  ........................................................................................... 13 

DUPLICATION OF BENEFITS ................................................................................................. 13 

SUBROGATION ....................................................................................................................... 14 

CDBG-DR COMPLIANCE  ....................................................................................................... 14 

 A. National Objectives  .................................................................................................. 14 

 B. Cross-Cutting Federal Regulations  .......................................................................... 14 

 C. Citizen Participation Requirements  .......................................................................... 15 

 D. Use of CDBG-DR as Match  ..................................................................................... 15 

 E. System of Record and Compliance Verifications  ...................................................... 16 

 F. Anti-Fraud and Compliance Policies ......................................................................... 16 

 G. CDBG-DR Costs Guidance  ..................................................................................... 16 

 H. Conflict of Interest ..................................................................................................... 17 

 I.  Public Records .......................................................................................................... 17 

APPLICATION PROCEDURES  ............................................................................................... 18 

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE FOR THE APPLICATION PROCESS  .......................................... 19 

334

U.



 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 3 of 19 
 

DEFINITION AND ACRONYMS 

Action Plan: The State of Florida’s Action Plan for Hurricane Michael long-term recovery provides the 
high-level strategy to carry out strategic and high-impact activities to minimize or eliminate risks and 
reduce losses from future disasters. The Plan also describes the opportunity to improve state and local 
planning protocols and procedures. The Plan was approved by HUD on June 26, 2020.  
 
Applicant: Any entity that submits a response to the request for applications (RFA) for potential funding 
through the CDBG-DR program.  
 
AMI – Area Median Income: The median (middle point) household income for an area adjusted for 
household size as published and annually updated by the United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD). Once household income is determined, it is compared to HUD's income limit 
for that household size.  
 
CDBG-DR: Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recovery:  Federal funding provided by 
HUD to help communities, especially low-income areas, recover from Presidentially declared disasters.  
 
Commercial:  Any building other than a residential or governmental, including any building constructed 
for industrial, retail, business, or public purposes. 
 
Community Based Development Organization (CBDO) – CBDOs are generally nonprofit 
organizations that undertake specific kinds of CDBG-funded activities.  CBDOs can be for-profit or 
nonprofit organizations but cannot be governmental entities.  A CBDO may be designated as a 
subrecipient by the grantee. 
 
Community Development District (CDD) – A local, special-purpose government framework authorized 
by Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes as amended and is an alternative to municipal incorporation for 
managing and financing infrastructure required to support development of a community. 
 
Community Revitalization Agency (CRA) – A dependent special district in which any future increases 
in property values are set aside to support economic development projects within that district (F.S. 
163.356). 
 
DBA – Davis-Bacon Act (DBA): Federal law requiring contractors and subcontractors performing on 
federally funded or assisted contracts for the construction, alteration, or repair of public buildings or public 
works to pay their laborers and mechanics employed under the contract no less than the locally prevailing 
wages and fringe benefits for corresponding work on similar projects in the area. 
 
DEO – Florida Department of Economic Opportunity: Administrator of the CDBG-DR program funded 
by HUD under Public Law 115-254 and 116-20. DEO is the governor-designated state authority 
responsible for administering all long-term disaster recovery funds awarded to Florida from HUD.  
 
DOB – Duplication of Benefits: A duplication of benefits occurs if DEO provides assistance to a 
participant for the same purpose as any previous financial or in-kind assistance provided to that 
participant for the same purpose. The DEO CDBG-DR program is prohibited from creating a DOB. This 
prohibition comes from the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Assistance and Emergency Relief Act (Stafford 
Act) and therefore, other sources of funds must be deducted from any potential award or expenditures 
for individual participants.  
 

335

U.



 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 4 of 19 
 

FR - Federal Register: The official journal of the Federal government of the United States that contains 
government agency rules, proposed rules, and public notices. A Federal Register Notice (FRN) is issued 
for each CDBG-DR funded disaster. The FRN outlines the rules that apply to each allocation of disaster 
funding.  
 
HRP - Hometown Revitalization Program:  HRP is an economic development program within DEO’s 
economic revitalization activities for recovery from Hurricane Michael. 
 
HUD - United States Department of Housing and Urban Development:  The federal agency 
responsible for national policy and programs that address America’s housing needs, that improve and 
develop the Nation’s communities, and enforce fair housing laws. 
 
Income – Annual income as reported under the Census long-form for the most recent available decennial 
Census.  This definition includes: 

A. Wages, salaries, tips, commissions, etc.; 
B. Self-employment income from own nonfarm business, including proprietorships and partnerships; 
C. Farm self-employment income; 
D. Interest, dividends, net rental income, or income from estates or trusts; 
E. Social Security or railroad retirement; 
F. Supplemental Security Income, Aid to Families with Dependent Children, or other public 

assistance or public welfare programs; 
G. Retirement, survivor, or disability pensions; and 
H. Any other sources of income received regularly, including Veterans’ (VA) payments, 

unemployment compensation, and alimony. 
 
LMH - Low to Moderate Income Household: A household having an income equal to or less than the 
Section 8 low income limit established by HUD.  
 
LMI - Low-and-Moderate-Income National Objective: Activities that benefit households whose total 
annual gross income does not exceed 80% of AMI, adjusted for family size.  

• Extremely low: Household’s annual income is up to 30% of the area median family income, as 
determined by HUD, adjusted for family size.  

• Very Low: Household’s annual income is between 31% and 50% of the area median family 
income, as determined by HUD, adjusted for family size.  

• Low: Household’s annual income is between 51% and 80% of the area median family income, 
as determined by HUD, adjusted for family size.  

Low- and Moderate- Income (LMI) Person – A member of a household having an income equal to or 
less than the Section 8 low-income limit established by HUD.  Unrelated individuals will be considered 
as one-person household for this purpose. 
 
Low-Income Person – A member of a family that has an income equal to or less than the Section 8 very 
low-income limit established by HUD.  Unrelated individuals shall be considered as one-person families 
for this purpose. 
 
MID - Most Impacted and Distressed Areas: Areas of most impact as determined by HUD or the state 
using the best available data sources to calculate the amount of disaster damage. The HUD-designated 
MID areas include Bay, Calhoun, Franklin, Gadsden, Gulf, Jackson, Liberty, Wakulla and Washington 
Counties; The state-identified MID areas, Holmes, Leon and Taylor Counties are also eligible for funding 
due to having received both Individual Assistance (IA) and Public Assistance (PA) through the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  

336

U.



 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 5 of 19 
 

REDI – Rural Economic Development Initiative:  Section 288.0656, F.S., establishes the Rural 
Economic Development Initiative (REDI) to better serve Florida’s economically distressed rural 
communities by providing a more focused and coordinated effort among state and regional agencies that 
provide programs and services for rural areas.  Rural Areas of Opportunity (RAO) are priority assignments 
for REDI (288.0656(2)(d), F.S.). 
 
Slum and Blight National Objective:  Activities under this national objective are carried out to address 
one or more of the conditions which have contributed to the deterioration of an area designated as a slum 
or blighted area.  The focus is a change in the physical environment of a deteriorating area.  Under the 
elimination of slum and blight national objective, determining the extent of and physical conditions that 
contribute to blight is central to qualifying an activity. 
 
Small Business:  A business is considered a small business, if it meets the definition of small business 
as defined by the SBA pursuant to 13 CFR Part 121.  The SBA’s size standards define whether a business 
entity is small, and, thus, eligible for government programs and preferences reserved for “small business” 
concerns.  Size standards have been established for types of economic activity, or industry, generally 
under the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS).  See 
https://www.sba.gov/document/support-table-size-standards. 
 
State Agency – Structure of executive branch.  The executive branch of state government is structured 
as follows: (1) the department is the principal administrative unit of the executive branch.  Each 
department must bear a title beginning with the words “State of Florida” and continuing with “Department 
of” (F.S. 20.04). 
 
Subrecipient: Any entity that has been awarded funding by DEO to implement and administer a CDBG-
DR project and has executed a subrecipient agreement.  
 
Subrecipient Agreement: An agreement between DEO and a subrecipient that has been awarded 
funding to implement a CDBG-DR project. The agreement details the conditions under which funds are 
provided and the contractual obligations to which the subrecipient must adhere.  
 
Subrogation: Subrogation is a legal doctrine that allows one entity to take on the rights of another. In 
the context of disaster recovery grants, a subrecipient must enter into a subrogation agreement in which 
the funding agency (DEO) obtains the right to collect any additional disaster recovery payments the entity 
obtains for the same purpose after the entity has received disaster recovery benefits.  
 
UGLG - Units of General Local Government: A city, county, town, parish, village, or other general-
purpose political subdivision of a State. 
 
Urgent Need National Objective:  Designed only for activities that alleviate emergency conditions.  
Qualified activities must meet the following criteria: 

• The existing conditions must pose a serious and immediate threat to the health or welfare of the 
community; 

• The existing conditions are of recent origin or recently became urgent (generally, within the past 
18 months); 

• The grantee is unable to finance the activity on its own; and 

• Other sources of funding are not available. 
 
2 CFR 200 Subpart E: Code of Federal Regulations passage that governs CDBG-DR administrative 

requirements and cost principles.  

337

U.

https://www.sba.gov/document/support-table-size-standards


 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 6 of 19 
 

INTRODUCTION 

The Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) has allocated $60,406,429 in funding for the 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program through the Community Development Block Grant – 

Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) Program by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

(HUD) to address unmet disaster recovery needs related to damage from Hurricane Michael. This 

guidebook will describe applicant and project eligibility, program guidelines and application procedures 

for the funding.  

On October 10, 2018, Hurricane Michael made landfall near Mexico Beach in Bay County as a Category 

5 storm.  The hurricane moved northeast across several Florida counties before traveling into Georgia 

and across the southeastern United States.  As one of the strongest hurricanes on record, Hurricane 

Michael caused unprecedented damage to housing, businesses, and infrastructure in Florida’s 

Panhandle.  The impacts of Hurricane Michael demonstrated the need for an effective, comprehensive 

long-term recovery plan that would address and meet the remaining unmet needs of Floridians. 

Small businesses are the lifeblood of local economies throughout Florida.  This can include typical small 

shops and restaurants in communities’ commercial districts, often the central hub of small and rural 

communities.  Impacts on specific businesses may filter throughout the commercial area, as a few 

businesses unable to reopen after the disaster may reduce visitors to the commercial district, which then 

impacts the viability of the remaining businesses.  Supporting the recovery of commercial areas is 

essential to ensuring that commercial tenants, customers and jobs are restored.  By facilitating the return 

of commercial districts and businesses to profitability, jobs will be created or retained within the 

community and residents will continue to have access to the products and services they need within their 

local community. 

Utilizing data from the unmet needs assessment and research on economic disaster recovery programs 

in other states, DEO developed the Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program (HRP) for 

communities impacted by Hurricane Michael.  The program’s goal is to support the recovery of economic 

activity in commercial areas of impacted towns and cities, facilitating the return and recovery of 

businesses, jobs, and provision of goods and services to the community. 

Eligible applicants in the following counties may apply for funding based on the terms and conditions in 

this application: 

Eligible Counties that Experienced Storm Damage 

Bay* Gadsden* Jackson* Wakulla* 

Calhoun* Gulf* Leon** Washington* 

Franklin* Holmes* Liberty* Taylor** 
*HUD Most Impacted and Distressed (MID) Counties 
**State Most Impacted and Distressed (MID) Counties 

 
State Agencies as defined in section 20.04 F.S., counties and municipalities, as defined in section 180.01 

F.S., located in the HUD and State designated MID areas that experienced Hurricane Michael storm 

damage are eligible to apply for funding based on the terms and conditions in this application. Applicants 

must provide a detailed description of damage caused by Hurricane Michael. Applications should include 

plans to mitigate against future damage and show how the proposed project will assist the community in 

rebuilding after Hurricane Michael.  

338

U.



 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 7 of 19 
 

DEO encourages all prospective applicants to read the State Action Plan for Hurricane Michael long-term 

recovery located at: http://www.floridajobs.org/community-planning-and-development/assistance-for-

governments-and-organizations/disaster-recovery-initiative/hurricane-michael 

 

BACKGROUND 

Following a major disaster, Congress can appropriate funds through the CDBG-DR program to satisfy a 

portion of unmet need that remains after other federal assistance such as the Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (FEMA), Small Business Administration (SBA) or private insurance have been 

allocated. DEO is the lead agency and responsible entity for administering the CDBG-DR funds allocated 

to the State of Florida. 

HUD uses the best available data to identify and calculate unmet needs for disaster relief, long-term 

recovery, restoration of infrastructure, housing and economic revitalization. Based on this assessment, 

HUD announced that the State of Florida would receive an allocation of $735,553,000 in disaster recovery 

funds to assist in the long-term recovery from the hurricane. 

To ensure the funds assist the most impacted areas as outlined in the Federal Register, 80 percent of 

funding awarded to the state will go to the HUD-identified Most Impacted and Distressed (MID) counties. 

The remaining 20 percent of funding may be awarded to state-designated MID areas. 

During the implementation process, program funding will be provided to subrecipient awardees. 

Subrecipients must develop and implement policies, procedures, and processes to deliver and maintain 

projects. Projects may be provided by the subrecipient directly or in partnership with governmental, 

private sector, or non-profit partners. At the end of the term specified in the subrecipient agreement, the 

grant will be closed. DEO, with the support provided by its designated partners, will monitor subrecipients 

throughout the life of the project. 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION  
 
The availability of the funding was formally announced by publication in the Federal Register, Volume 
85, Number 17 on January 27, 2020.  
 
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-01-27/pdf/2020-01204.pdf  
 
Federal Register requirements clearly state that funds may be used only for disaster relief and long-term 

recovery in communities affected by the specified disaster. Requirements provide that funds be directed 

to areas with the greatest need. All CDBG-DR funded eligible activities must tie to storm damage as 

specified in and not prior to the Presidential Disaster Declaration 4399 for Hurricane Michael on October 

11, 2018. (https://www.fema.gov/disaster/4399). All projects must be directly related to damage caused 

by Hurricane Michael and evidence must be produced that documents the damage caused by Hurricane 

Michael. CDBG-DR funds cannot be used to replace or reimburse any available funding, such as FEMA 

Individual and Public Assistance (IA/PA). However, in certain situations, CDBG-DR funds can serve as 

the local match portion for eligible projects. 

HRP is not a direct grant program.  No funds will be paid directly to businesses seeking rehabilitation of 

their physical structures. 

339

U.

http://www.floridajobs.org/community-planning-and-development/assistance-for-governments-and-organizations/disaster-recovery-initiative/hurricane-michael
http://www.floridajobs.org/community-planning-and-development/assistance-for-governments-and-organizations/disaster-recovery-initiative/hurricane-michael
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-01-27/pdf/2020-01204.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/disaster/4399


 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 8 of 19 
 

HUD CDBG-DR PROGRAM AND PROJECT FUNDING DIRECTIVES 

In response to HUD directives, the Action Plan directs DEO to fund projects and programs that: 

1. Provide the maximum feasible priority to activities that will benefit low- and moderate-income (LMI) 

families. 

The aggregate use of the CDBG-DR funds made available under this application shall principally 

benefit LMI families in a manner that ensures that at least 70 percent of the grant amount is expended 

for activities that benefit such persons. 

2. Focus first on unmet housing needs. 

Federal Register Volume 85, Number 17 dated January 27, 2020 states: “Grantees receiving an 

allocation of funds under this notice are subject to the requirements of the Prior Notices, as amended 

by this notice or by subsequent notices. Pursuant to the Prior Notices, each grantee receiving an 

allocation for a 2018 or 2019 disaster is required to primarily consider and address its unmet housing 

recovery needs. These grantees may, however, propose the use of funds for unmet economic 

revitalization and infrastructure needs unrelated to the grantee’s unmet housing needs if the grantee 

demonstrates in its needs assessment that there is no remaining unmet housing need or that the 

remaining unmet housing need will be addressed by other sources of funds” (p. 4682). 

For more information: https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-01-27/pdf/2020-01204.pdf 

3. Projects or programs must address a clear unmet need: 

• Have demonstrated physical damages or other direct impact from Hurricane Michael, not 

including economic impacts; and 

• Primarily serving LMI populations. 

4.  Projects must designate a specific, identifiable commercial area as the project location, which must: 

• Be located entirely within the applying entity’s or entities’ jurisdiction; 

• Be in one (1) contiguous commercial area 

• Be primarily commercial in nature.  Mixed use areas are eligible if commercial uses are the 

majority (51%) of the units with the area, however, HRP funding may only be utilized for the 

commercial component(s) of the project and may not be used for housing components; 

• Include multiple (minimum 3) separate commercial businesses within the commercial area; 

5.  Projects must include a credible financial and development plan for completion and occupancy. 

6.  Projects must demonstrate ability to utilize the requested funding and complete all components of the 

project within twenty-four (24) months of subrecipient agreement execution. 

7.  Projects may not be undertaken for the benefit of any single business; projects must be intended to 

benefit a diversity of business occupants located within the designated commercial area. 

8.  Subrecipient must document the general use of each business location/property and the national 

objective it expects to meet.  The subrecipient of the program must also make a written commitment that 

each business property will remain under the general use that will meet the specified national objective 

as described in the application for the economic development project for a minimum of five (5) years. 

340

U.

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-01-27/pdf/2020-01204.pdf


 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 9 of 19 
 

PRE-AWARD AND PRE-CONSTRUCTION COSTS 

HUD eligible pre-award and pre-construction costs may be eligible for reimbursement by DEO provided 
that all HUD and applicable Florida procurement rules and regulations have been followed and the 
applicant can demonstrate proper procedure was followed.   
 

THRESHOLD AND SCORING CRITERIA 

DEO will apply a two-phased process to review applications. First, proposals must pass DEO CDBG-

DR Threshold Compliance Criteria. Next, DEO will review and score each proposal based on Scoring 

Criteria. If a proposal does not meet any of the Threshold Criteria, DEO cannot proceed to score it for 

funding consideration. The maximum score for Scoring Criteria is 140 points.   

Proposed project must meet minimum award amount of $250,000 and may not exceed the 

maximum award of $15,000,000. 

A.  Threshold Compliance Criteria 

Every project application must meet the following threshold criteria to be determined eligible: 

• Be located entirely within the applying entity’s or entities’ jurisdiction; 

• Located within an eligible HUD or State designated MID area; 

• Benefit to LMI Persons, Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums and blight, or Meeting a need 

having a particular urgency (urgent need); 

• Is an eligible activity under HUD Guidelines; 

• Is an eligible activity under the State of Florida Hurricane Michael Action Plan; and 

• Addresses an unmet need tied to damage caused by Hurricane Michael 

1. Projects must meet a CDBG-DR National Objective such as: 

• Benefit LMI persons; 

• Slum and Blight; or 

• Address an urgent need  

2. Hometown Revitalization Projects must be considered as CDBG-DR Eligible Activities. 

HRP awards are for the revitalization of a designated commercial district that has been damaged by 

Hurricane Michael.  Projects may focus on the physical revitalization of a commercial district through 

rehabilitation, reconstruction, or demolition.  Eligible uses of funds include, but are not limited to: 

• Public facility improvements, including streetscapes, lighting, sidewalks, and other physical 

improvements to commercial areas; 

• Acquisition, demolition, site preparation, or rehabilitation of commercial structures carried out by 

a unit of local government; 

• Assistance to small businesses for rehabilitation and physical improvements to their places of 

business; and 

• Façade improvements to private or public structures in commercial areas. 

For more detail see Housing and Community Development Act, Sections 105(a)(1), (2), (4), (14), (15), 

and (17). 

https://www.hudexchange.info/sites/onecpd/assets/File/CDBG-State-National-Objectives-Eligible-Activities-Appendix-A.pdf 

341

U.

https://www.hudexchange.info/sites/onecpd/assets/File/CDBG-State-National-Objectives-Eligible-Activities-Appendix-A.pdf


 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 10 of 19 
 

B. Scoring Criteria   

Once a proposal is determined to satisfy CDBG-DR’s Threshold Compliance Criteria, DEO will apply 

scoring based on the following Scoring Criteria. The maximum Scoring Criteria score is 140. 

The following chart further defines each category and lists the maximum point allocation for each scoring 

category. In the event of a scoring tie, projects that have a higher LMI or are located within HUD 

designated MID areas will be considered first. 

 

 Max 
Points 

1 

Overall LMI Benefit (percent LMI benefit of the activity): 
The LMI score will be determined on the service area the project serves, in order to 
calculate the LMI score.  The applicant should provide their LMI data for the project 
service area in a percentage form.  For example, if the service area LMI is 65%, DEO 
will multiply by 30 (the maximum amount of points) to receive the final LMI score of 19.5 
points. 
The LMI percentage will be calculated by DEO using the formula outlined on the CDBG 
LMI Data website: 
https://www.hudexchange.info/programs/cdbg/cdbg-low-moderate-income-data/ 

30 

2 

Project Description: 
Write an overview/summary, not to exceed 2,500 words, of the project being proposed. 
1. State the project purpose and include a description of the proposed activity. 
2. Specify the businesses that will be assisted by completion of this project. 
3. Describe the tie-back to Hurricane Michael. 
4. Describe how the work will be done and the team assembled to complete work. 
5. Explain the method used to determine project funding requirements. 
6. Describe anticipated outcomes. 
7. Describe how the project will be maintained after it is completed. 
8. If not using LMI national objective, provide justification for using slum or blight; or 
urgent need national objective 

20 

3 
Project Impact:  
The impact of the project in expanding permanent employment opportunities, including 
opportunities for LMI individuals. 

20 

4 

Leverage of Funds: 

• CDBG-DR funds used as federal program local match – 10 points 

• CDBG-DR funds used along with leveraged funds from the applicant – 10 points 

20 

5 

Management Capacity Plan: 
Provide a strategic plan overview of 1,500 words or less that addresses goals, 
stakeholders, the work plan (major tasks and deliverables), resources (staffing and 
budget) and monitoring/quality controls.  Describe any community partnerships and 
roles.  Identify the staff members who will be responsible and/or positions that will be 
filled for the HRP project management and maintenance.  Provide a short profile on each 
person on your current staff who perform project-related tasks and a brief position 
description for any new hires who will be assigned to project work. 

10 

6 

Special Designation:  Application outlines qualification as a special designation 

• Rural Economic Development Initiative (REDI) eligible county or community 
(see section F.S. 288.0656) 

10 

  

342

U.



 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 11 of 19 
 

7 

Budget: 
Include your project budget using the Budget Worksheet provided as Appendix A.  The 
project budget must be cost-reasonable, appropriate and accurate.  Budgeted items must 
be consistent with the project description and tasks.  The funding requested must meet 
the HRP minimum award of $250,000. Applicant must demonstrate there is no 
duplication of benefits. 

10 

8 

Project Readiness: 

• Planning is complete, and the project is ready to break ground after the 
completion of a required HUD compliant environmental review or assessment 
and funds are available – 10 points 

• Initial planning has been completed and the procurement process is ready to 
begin – 5 points 

10 

9 
Project Located in HUD or state-identified MID area 
HUD MID – 10 pts. 
State MID – 5 pts. 

10 
 

 Total Maximum Score 140 

 

ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS 

Entities applying to receive assistance through the HRP must meet the following eligibility 

requirements: 

• Unit of general local government (UGLG); 

• State agency; 

• Community revitalization agency (CRA); 

• Community development district (CDD); 

• Community-based development organization (CBDO); or 

• Non-profit primarily engaged in community redevelopment activities that applies in partnership 

with their local UGLG or a state agency; and 

• Must not appear on the Excluded Parties Listing System.  The Excluded Parties List System 

(EPLS) is an electronic directory of individuals and organizations that are not permitted to 

receive federal contracts or assistance from the United States government.  Any company doing 

business-or hoping to do business-with the U.S. government or federal agencies must assure 

that is has no affiliation with excluded parties.  For search, go to: 

https://sam.gov/SAM/pages/public/searchRecords/search.jsf 

DEO will maintain one subrecipient agreement and relationship with the eligible applicant. Applicants 

may only submit one project per application. Proposals for funding may only serve eligible counties. DEO 

encourages eligible applicants to form partnerships that provide the necessary capacity to successfully 

administer the proposed CDBG-DR projects and programs. 

If allocated funds by DEO, applicants that are working as a group or in partnership with non-profits, not 
for profits, nongovernmental organizations or other eligible applicant, must have a signed Interlocal 
Agreement or Memorandum of Understanding between the partnering entities prior to execution of the 
subrecipient agreement with DEO.   
 

 

 

343

U.

https://sam.gov/SAM/pages/public/searchRecords/search.jsf


 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 12 of 19 
 

ELIGIBILE ACTIVITIES 

To be eligible for consideration of funding, applicants must propose programs or projects that align with 

CDBG-DR and DEO requirements and priorities as outlined in the action plan and the Federal Register, 

including but not limited to those set forth below: 

• Projects must demonstrate damage tie-back to Hurricane Michael. 

• Projects must primarily serve LMI populations. 

• Projects must not duplicate benefits. 

Activities 

1. Public facility improvements, including streetscapes, lighting, sidewalks, and other physical 

improvements to commercial areas; 

2. Acquisition, demolition, site preparation, or rehabilitation of commercial structures carried out 

by a unit of local government; 

3. Assistance to small businesses for rehabilitation and physical improvements to their places of 

business; and 

4. Façade improvements to private or public structures in commercial area. 

 

INELIGIBLE USES 
 
Ineligible uses of HRP funds include, but are not limited to: 

• Working capital, operational capital, or startup capital for a business or business incubator; 

• New construction of a commercial building(s) that was not present prior to Hurricane Michael; 

• Purchase of equipment; 

• Inventory, furnishings, equipment, or similar items provided to a business that are not related to 
improvements of real property; 

• Acquisition of property via Eminent Domain; 

• Activities relating to a building or portion of a building used for the general conduct of government; 
and 

• General government expenses. 
 

BUSINESS ELIGIBILITY 
 

• Business must be located in Florida 

• Business must be owned and controlled by persons who are eligible to work in the U.S. 

• Business must have been established prior to October 10, 2018 

• Be appropriately be registered with the State of Florida, as documented in a certificate of status 
obtained from the Florida Department of State 

• Business is required to provide the following documentation, if applicable: 
o State Certificate of Status; 
o State/Local Tax Registration or Certificate of Exemption; and 
o State business or professional license 

• Business must currently have a least two (2) full-time employees, and must have employed at 
least two (2) full-time employees prior to October 10, 2018 

o This includes microenterprises.  A microenterprise is a commercial enterprise that has five 
(5) of fewer employees, one or more of who owns the enterprise 

344

U.



 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 13 of 19 
 

 

BUSINESS INELIGIBILITY 
 

• A business deriving more than one-third of gross annual revenue from legal gambling activities. 

• A business engaged in any illegal activity. 

• A business that presents live performances of an indecent sexual nature or derive directly or 
indirectly more than 2.5 percent of gross revenues through the sales of products and services, or 
the presentation of any depictions or displays, of an indecent sexual nature. 

• A business that has a primary purpose of facilitating polyamorous relationships. 

• Massage parlors. 

• Hot tub facilities. 

• Escort services. 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE 

All CDBG-DR activities are to comply with the provisions of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 

(NEPA), as well as all HUD environmental regulations provided in 24 CFR part 58. All subrecipients will 

be responsible for determining the appropriate level of environmental clearance required for the project, 

conducting the required environmental study, and supplying the information to DEO. The environmental 

clearance must be completed and approved prior to any release of funds for the project or construction 

commencing. If an identified environmental condition for a site or project cannot be cleared, the site or 

project may not be an eligible location for CDBG-DR activities and many be deemed ineligible for funding. 

 

DUPLICATION OF BENEFITS  

Eligible entities may have previously received assistance from other sources for the same purpose as 

the HRP.  Under the requirements of The Robert T. Stafford Disaster Assistance and Emergency Relief 

Act, as interpreted and applied by HUD, DEO, and its subrecipients, DEO and subrecipients must take 

into account certain aid received by a person or entity in determining the amount of assistance which can 

be granted.  DEO and subrecipients must follow HUD’s Duplication of Benefits (DOB) Guidance.  

Individual applicants and entities must provide any information on benefits received that may create a 

DOB during the application process and upon request.  The subrecipient must perform due diligence 

verification of DOB information. 

The Supplemental Appropriations Act authoring CDBG funding and the Stafford Act include restrictions 

on using CDBG-DR program funds to provide assistance when other entities have already funded all or 

a portion of the activity.  The Stafford Act also contains eligibility requirements for recipients who have 

received prior disaster funding based upon whether or not they are in compliance with requirements 

associated with receipt of those funds.  Where applicable, recipients must be in compliance with these 

restrictions or funding will be denied.  Applicants and partner entities must report all financial assistance, 

other local, state, or federal programs, private or non-profit charitable organizations and other assistance 

received for the purpose for which the participant is applying for, and receiving, funding or services. 

Funds provided by any federal, state, or local government entity, or non-profit or private source intended 

for the same purpose as the HRP are considered a DOB and under federal law must be deducted from 

the assistance provided by the HRP.  Any additional funds paid to entities for the same purpose as the 

HRP after the HRP projects are completed must be returned to DEO.  Entities in the HRP must agree to 

repay any duplicative assistance considered a duplication of benefits. 

345

U.



 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 14 of 19 
 

SUBROGATION   

Subrogation is a legal doctrine that allows one person to take on the rights of another.  In the context of 

disaster recovery grants, a HRP subrecipient must enter into a subrogation agreement where the funding 

agency (DEO) obtains the right to collect any additional payments the subrecipient receives for the same 

purpose after the subrecipient has entered into a grant agreement for HRP benefits. 

All duplicative funding received must be remitted to or accounted for by the program, regardless of when 

it is received by the subrecipient.  If a subrecipient receives additional funding for the same purpose as 

the HRP award, including after the HRP award is executed or HRP services are completed, the 

subrecipient is required to report the additional funding to the program. 

By accepting the award, subrecipient agrees that they will report any duplicative funds to the program 

whenever received.  Upon receipt of a report that additional benefits have been received, the program 

will recalculate the subrecipient’s award and provide instructions whether the subrecipient’s award will 

be reduced by such amount, or whether the subrecipient must remit such amounts to the program as 

reimbursement (when additional assistance received after program disbursements).  Each subrecipient 

will execute and be bound by a subrogation agreement. 

Entities listed in the subrecipient application must also agree to subrogate (commit to the state of Florida) 

any future payments they may receive after award from any sources that represent a potential duplication 

of benefits.  The subrogation agreement requires the subrecipient to notify DEO if additional funds are 

received and to assist DEO in collecting any amounts owed to them from these sources.  All parties shall 

comply with standard anti-fraud measures.  DEO will exercise all normal due diligence in collection of 

amounts owed through contact with awardees and will pursue investigation and collection efforts which 

may include demand letters, small claims court, filing of judgments, and/or other collection activity.  

Collection activity following demand letters will be determined in consultation with DEO and/or the Florida 

Attorney General’s Office. 

 

CDBG-DR COMPLIANCE 

All applicants with proposals approved for CDBG-DR funds under this application must execute a 

subrecipient agreement with DEO which will specify all terms and conditions for successful program 

and/or project and compliance management of a grant. The DEO subrecipient agreement will include, 

but is not limited to, the following topics: 

A. National Objectives 

All activities must meet one of the national objectives set out in the Housing and Community Development 

Act, with at least 70 percent of the dollars going towards projects benefiting LMI persons. In the Rebuild 

Florida Hometown Revitalization Program, the three National Objectives that will be addressed are: 

1) Benefit LMI persons; 

2) Slum and Blight; or 

3) Meet an urgent need. 

B. Cross-Cutting Federal Regulations 

DEO requires projects or programs selected for CDBG-DR funding to meet HUD crosscutting federal 

regulations, such as NEPA environmental review, duplication of benefits, fair housing, Section 3 

346

U.



 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 15 of 19 
 

employment, Davis Bacon wages and others which will be specified in the subrecipient funding 

agreement. For more information please see: 

https://www.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/CDBG-DR-Cross-CuttingTraining-Resources.pdf 

C. Citizen Participation Requirements 

All applicants must submit evidence of a publicly noticed meeting or public comment period to discuss 

the proposed project and application for the HRP. Counties eligible to receive funds must consider the 

needs of all municipalities (and federally recognized tribes) within the incorporated and unincorporated 

area of the county (and reservations contiguous to the county). 

Due to the impacts of COVID-19, DEO is allowing applicants to receive public input on their HRP 

application by the following meeting formats: 

1. Posting information about the project online: An applicant posts the information about the project and 

the program to its public website and allows for 14-day public comment period. Please submit a copy of 

the post and any public comments to DEO as part of the application. In choosing this option for public 

comment, the entity will still need to follow proper public noticing guidelines such as advertising the 

posting in a newspaper of general circulation for five (5) days. 

2. Virtual public meetings: An applicant would need to supply the same documentation that would 

normally be required to demonstrate if a meeting was held, including minutes and a public meeting notice. 

Evidence of public meeting with city and tribal governments must meet the following requirements: 

• Notice of the public meeting must be provided at least five (5) days prior to the meeting. 

• Documentation of the meeting must include sign-in sheets and minutes. 

Prior to applying for CDBG-DR funding, applicants are required to post a public notice in a newspaper of 

general circulation and to their website that states the types of projects to be undertaken, the source and 

amount of funding available for the activities, the date by which comments must be made and a contact 

person for a copy of the proposed application. Applicants must provide for a 10-day comment period, 

which must be published prior to the submission of the application. 

Evidence of the public notice must meet the following requirements: 

• Documentation of newspaper advertisement. 

• Print-out of county webpage showing public notice. 

• Documentation that the needs of non-English speaking citizens have been met where a significant 

number of non-English speaking citizens can be reasonably expected to participate. In this case, 

documentation will need to be translated into Spanish. 

D. Use of CDBG-DR as Match  
 
Funds may be used to meet a matching, share, or contribution requirement for another federal program 
when used to carry out an eligible CDBG-DR activity. This includes programs or activities administered 
by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) or the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). 
By law, the amount of CDBG-DR funds that may be contributed to a USACE project is $250,000 or less. 
Note that the Appropriations Act prohibits supplanting the use of CDBG-DR funds for any activity 
reimbursable by, or for which funds are also made available, by FEMA or USACE.  
 

347

U.

https://www.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/CDBG-DR-Cross-CuttingTraining-Resources.pdf


 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 16 of 19 
 

E. System of Record and Compliance Verifications 

Subrecipients will be required to submit information and reports in the means, format, and frequency 

required by DEO. 

F. Anti-Fraud and Compliance Policies 

HUD requires policies to prevent fraud, waste, and abuse.  DEO is committed to aggressively detecting 

and eradicating fraud, waste, and abuse to ensure that DEO-administered programs provide services 

effectively and efficiently and that taxpayer funds are protected.  Each employee, provider, vendor, 

contractor, consultant, partner, citizen, applicant, and beneficiary has a role and responsibility to ensure 

that every project is in compliance with local, state, and federal laws and policies, and that any incidents 

are reported immediately for investigation and resolution. 

DEO has established procedures for verifying the accuracy of information provided by subrecipients, 

applicants, and participants.  The program will investigate all allegations regarding eligibility, 

disbursement of funds, or any other allegations of fraud or noncompliance.  Where appropriate, the 

program will assist federal, state, and local agencies in investigations. 

Instances of suspected fraud, waste, and abuse should be reported to the DEO Office of Inspector 

General and to the HUD OIG Fraud Hotline at: 

  Office of Inspector General 
 Florida Department of Economic Opportunity 
 107 East Madison Street 
 Caldwell Building, MSC 300 
 Tallahassee, FL 32399-4126 
 (850) 245-7135 
 OIG@deo.myflorida.com 
 Online complaint form:   

http://www.floridajobs.org/office-directory/office-of-the-inspector-general/request-for-
assistance/general-complaint-form 

 
 HUD Inspector General Hotline (GFI) 
 451 7th Street, SW 
 Washington, DC 20410 
 1-800-347-3735 
 hotline@hudoig.gov 
 More information and online complaint form:  www.hudoig.gov/report-fraud 
 
Any complaints or allegations of fraud, waste, abuse, or noncompliance reported to a subrecipient 

involving HRP or funds must be reported by the subrecipient to the DEO Office of the Inspector General. 

G. CDBG-DR Costs Guidance 

Applicants in their budget proposals must include all costs related to the construction and ongoing, 

necessary maintenance, of the project. 

DEO will apply the following standards in the analysis and ongoing compliance review of allowable costs. 

Please see https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/CDBG-DR-Cost-Types-Summary.pdf 

for HUD guidance. 

 

348

U.

mailto:OIG@deo.myflorida.com
http://www.floridajobs.org/office-directory/office-of-the-inspector-general/request-for-assistance/general-complaint-form
http://www.floridajobs.org/office-directory/office-of-the-inspector-general/request-for-assistance/general-complaint-form
mailto:hotline@hudoig.gov
http://www.hudoig.gov/report-fraud
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/CDBG-DR-Cost-Types-Summary.pdf


 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 17 of 19 
 

As outlined in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E, all costs must meet four (4) criteria: 

• Necessary: CDBG-DR funding will fill a necessary gap to address an unmet need that cannot be 

filled by another funding source. This is demonstrated by conducting a duplication of benefits 

analysis and calculation for each activity. 

• Reasonable: Costs do not exceed what a prudent person would incur under similar 

circumstances as demonstrated by the market price for comparable goods and services. 

• Allowable: Costs must be allowable under CDBG-DR rules and regulations and under 2 CFR 

200 Subpart E. Some costs such as lobbying, entertainment, and alcohol are never allowed under 

any circumstances. 

• Allocable: Costs must be clearly allocated, meaning the cost is assigned to a CDBG eligible 

activity with a methodology for determining where to attribute cost. 

Activity Delivery Costs must be tied to the time staff and contractors dedicate to a specific project. 

Applicants must show how the proposed Activity Delivery Costs are or will be cost reasonable through 

procurement of professional services and/or cost of in-house staff to provide program or project related 

services. All Activity Delivery Costs must be included as part of the total project costs in a request for 

CDBG-DR funding. Please include a cost reasonable estimate for all administrative costs associated with 

the proposed project. 

H.  Conflict of Interest 

State officials and employees, DEO employees, subrecipients, contractors, and consultants who exercise 

function with respect to CDBG-DR activities or who are in a position to participate in a decision-making 

process or gain inside information with regard to such activities, are prohibited from receiving any benefit 

from the activity either for themselves or for those with whom they have family or business ties, during 

their tenure. 

For purposes of this section, “family” is defined to include parents (including mother-in-law and father-in-

law), grandparents, siblings (including sister-in-law and brother-in-law) and children of an official covered 

under the conflict of interest regulations at 24 CFR 570.489(h). 

An exception to the conflict of interest provision may be granted should it be determined that all the 

concerns generated by the potential conflict of interest have been adequately and publicly addressed 

and that an exception would serve to further the purposes of Title I of the Housing and Community 

Development Act of 1974 and the effective administration of the program.  No party will enter into a 

conflict of interest until a request for an exception has been granted by DEO. 

I.  Public Records 

Pursuant to Article 1, Section 24, Florida Constitution, and Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, DEO is subject 

to Florida’s public records laws.  Accordingly, unless an exemption exists, all records produced or 

received pursuant to law or in connection with the official business of DEO can be requested and provided 

for inspection.  Subrecipients participating in the HRP are also subject to Florida’s public records laws.  

All public records requests made to DEO will be processed in accordance with DEO Administrative Policy 

1.06, Processing Public Records Request.  Public records held by subrecipients may be requested by 

contacting the relevant subrecipient. 

 

 

349

U.



 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 18 of 19 
 

APPLICATION PROCEDURES 

A. NOTE: The application submission cycle will officially open on November 16, 2020 through 

February 16, 2021. DEO will take questions about HRP throughout the application process. 

Please email any question regarding the application to: 

CDBG-DRMichaelHRP@deo.myflorida.com. 

 

B. All eligible applicants are invited to visit the Hurricane Michael Rebuild Florida Hometown 

Revitalization Program webpage and click on “Online Application” found at the following link: 

http://www.floridajobs.org/community-planning-and-development/assistance-for-governments-

and-organizations/disaster-recovery-initiative/hurricane-michael.  The applicant will then be 

prompted to provide contact information and an email address. Once registered, the applicant will 

receive an individualized application link via the provided email. 

 

C. All eligible applicants will be expected to complete and submit all required attachments to the 

application which are listed below. DEO may request additional supporting documents during the 

application review period and site visit period.  

 

1.  Cover letter detailing the project and the importance to the community that the project will 

serve. 

 

2.  Project budget estimates. Please include all estimates for administration of the grant in the 

budget. If an applicant is attempting to leverage funds from another program or is committing 

additional local funds, please clearly list these funds on the budget worksheet. 

 

3.  Projected project work plan, including which segments of the project are expected to be carried 

out by contractors or applicant staff. 

 

4.  Organization Chart or Schedule of Team Roles, such as staff, contractor, vendor and 

community partners illustrating their roles and responsibilities as it relates to the proposed project. 

 

5.  Public Meeting Notice, which includes meeting agenda, meeting minutes, and any received 

public comments pertaining to the proposed project.  

 

6.  Maps illustrating the following: 

 

1. Total service area; 

2. Proposed project area;  

3. Zoning of proposed project area; and 

4. Most recent flood plain map of the proposed project area. 

7.  Pictures of damage caused by Hurricane Michael and the current condition.  Applicants will 

have the ability to upload up to ten (10) pictures of the damage caused to the project/project area 

and the current conditions of the project/project area. 

8.  Documentation of REDI eligibility. 

9.  List of businesses to be assisted in proposed project. Also, include FEIN for each business. 

350

U.

mailto:CDBG-DRMichaelHRP@deo.myflorida.com
http://www.floridajobs.org/community-planning-and-development/assistance-for-governments-and-organizations/disaster-recovery-initiative/hurricane-michael
http://www.floridajobs.org/community-planning-and-development/assistance-for-governments-and-organizations/disaster-recovery-initiative/hurricane-michael


 

Rebuild Florida Hometown Revitalization Program Guidelines Page 19 of 19 
 

D. DEO will score each proposed project separately based on information provided in the application 

packet.  DEO reserves the option to fund none, a selection of, or all of the project proposed by an 

applicant. 

 

E. DEO will conduct site visits and reserves the opportunity to interview applicants and request 

follow-up clarification information.  

 

F. If an applicant is planning to submit more than one project proposal, please fill out a different 

application packet for each of the proposed projects. 

 

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE FOR THE APPLICATION PROCESS 

DEO will host a live webinar on 12/3/2020 at 2:00 EST  to provide an overview of the application process 

and answer questions.  DEO will also host 20-minute one on one meetings with potential applicants to 

discuss any questions that may arise during the application process beginning after the live webinar.  

Please email any question to CDBG-DRMichaelHRP@deo.myflorida.com. 

351

U.

mailto:CDBG-DRMichaelHRP@deo.myflorida.com


Special Projects Coordinator Report 

December 15, 2020 

 

1- Board action on draft letter to USACOE.  The Corps has requested the Board send the 

letter to further confirm the county’s commitment to paying the non-federal share of costs 

related to dredging Eastpoint and Two Mile Channel.  While Mr. Shuler and I recognize 

the Corps is in control of the costs, the Corps has advised that any changes to the 

proposed language will delay the review and approval of the MOA that is still sitting in 

Atlanta.  In my conversations with Corps personnel I now realize part of the problem in 

getting this MOA out of the Corps is that it is not standard practice for the Corps to 

accept non-federal funds to complete projects.  Our project is about the second MOA the 

Mobile office has done in 10 years, so no one in the Corps is familiar or comfortable with 

what they need.  The concern for the Corps is that they are going to be signing the 

contract with the dredge operator, so they will have the legal requirement to pay the 

contract, not Franklin County. 

 

2- Board action to authorize the disposal of a 1988 Chevy S-10 Blazer and a 1994 GMC 

Jimmy.  In 2019, Mr. Ted Mosteller brought into the County Finance Office vehicle tags 

to two vehicles that had been used at the airport but had been deemed no longer road 

worthy.  He brought the tags in as evidence the vehicles would not be driven off the 

airport property.  He parked the vehicles under the Shade Hanger and left them there.  In 

March/April of 2020, Mr. John Collins, AVCON, was called by the contractor building 

the airport access road and was told there were two abandoned vehicles in the path of the 

road, and what did Mr. Collins want the contractor to do with the vehicles.  The 

contractor said his options were to charge the county for disposal of the vehicles as they 

were in the way, or to give the vehicles away if someone would move them at no cost.  

One of the vehicles was a 1988 Chevy S-10 Blazer and the other vehicle was a 1994 

GMC Jimmy. 

 Mr. Collins called me and asked me what to do.  Acting on the information that 

the vehicles did not have tags I assumed the vehicles had been abandoned and had no 

value.  I did not draw the connection to the vehicles still being owned by the county as 

there were no plates on the vehicles and they had been moved at some point from beneath 

the Shade Hanger.   I told Mr. Collins to get rid of the vehicles at the lowest cost, which 

in this case was for the contractor to give the vehicles away.   

 Now, in December, 2020, someone in Eastpoint has ended up with the 32 year old 

Chevy S-10 Blazer and needs the title.  Board action to acknowledge and authorize the 

disposal as junked surplus equipment both the 1988 Chevy S-10 Blazer and the 1994 

GMC Jimmy during the airport road construction project in 2020.  The sprayer equipment 

that was mounted on the 1988 Chevy Blazer is missing and was not on the vehicle at the 

time it was in the path of the road.  Board action. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

352

V.



Information Items 

 

1- Provide Board with a status report of projects that Commissioner Boldt asked me to 

create. 

 

2- Inform Board that I have consulted with Bay County regarding the language they use 

for bidding out county roads being rebuilt with FEMA funds.  Bay County is in 

agreement with what Franklin County does.  Bay County uses similar language limiting 

qualified bidders to FDOT pre-qualified firms, but they do it by citing the appropriate 

Florida Administrative Code.  Dewberry and I are moving forward with re-advertising 

Alligator Drive. 

353

V.



354

V.



Status Report on a Variety of Projects 

December 15, 2020 

 

1- Alligator Drive.  FEMA has obligated $5.5M to rebuild the road and install vertical 

sheetpile along 1100 feet of the water side of road.  Road will be rebuilt in the current 

right-of-way.  In order to comply with FEMA procurement requirements the project will 

be re-bid.  FEMA has allowed until 2022 for the project to be completed, but construction 

should be completed by July, 2021. 

 

2- Island View.  FEMA has obligated some $1M to rebuild Park.  The next step is to 

convert the FEMA work description into a set of construction plans and bid the project 

out.   FEMA has also allowed until 2022 for the project to be completed, but it could be 

completed in 6 months from when the bids are opened. 

 

3- Dune Restoration on Alligator Point and St. George Island- This is NOT a FEMA 

project.  Dune Restoration is a RESTORE project with the funds for the project being 

held by US Treasury.  Langton Consultants are working with Treasury staff to get this 

project ready for design.  The Treasury staff person handling RESTORE projects for 

Franklin County has been on six week paternity leave and is due back at work in mid-

December.  The county is expecting approval of the projects shortly after the Treasury 

employee returns to work. 

 

4- Additional protection for Alligator Drive beyond what will be accomplished by the 

FEMA project.  The FEMA project will install sheetpile along 1100 feet of roadway but 

Alligator Drive extends for miles east and west of these 1100 feet.  In some areas the road 

is protected by well built structures on private property and in other places the road is not 

as protected.  The erosion forces are so severe on Alligator Point that over a mile of 

Alligator Drive is within the 30 year erosion zone.  This means that without protection 

the state of Florida expects erosion in the next 30 years to move landward and potentially 

damage more of the road.  The state of Florida traditionally funds erosion control through 

a state managed program that builds “engineered” beaches in areas subject to erosion.  

Franklin County is requesting $200,000 from the 2021 Legislature to complete the design 

for an “engineered” beach along 1.1 mile of Alligator Drive that is most exposed.  If the 

Legislature funds this request, the county would then seek $5M of construction funds in 

2022.   

 If the Legislature funds the construction, the county would match the state funds 

with $5M of RESTORE funds because the total construction estimate for the 1.1 mile 

beach is approximately $10M. 

 However, before the Franklin County Commission engages in construction some 

mechanism will have to be put in place to generate a maintenance fund for the beach, as 

engineered beaches are known to erode over time and there must be some way to put the 

sand back.  The Commission has not agreed on a method for creating a maintenance 

fund. 

 

5- Multi-Use Path for Alligator Point- FDOT has funded a 2 mile bike path starting at the 

Marina on the west end of the Point and going east to the Alligator Drive wash-out being 

355

V.



rebuilt with FEMA funds.  The Multi-Use Path has been bid out, but because of potential 

conflicts with water lines owned and maintained by the Alligator Point Water District 

FDOT has agreed to let the county re-design the project to reduce the potential conflict, 

and then re-bid the project.  The date for the re-bid can not be set until the redesign is 

completed. 

 The county has also received another agreement from FDOT for the design of the 

bike path through the washout area and continuing east to Gulf Shore Blvd.  This 

agreement is under discussion because of the problem of trying to rebuild the road and 

build the bike path at the same time.  The design of the bike path in this section is still 

being formulated because the existing right of way has been reduced because of erosion 

so there is not a full width of right of way to separate the multi-use path from vehicular 

traffic. 

356

V.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 1 of 20 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
FLORIDA FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

 
AGREEMENT NO. 20011 

 

CFDA Title(s):  Federal Aid in Sportfish Restoration CFDA No(s).:  15.605 

Name of Federal Agency(s):  U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 

Federal Award No(s):  FL-F-F20AF11284 Federal Award Year(s):  2020-2021 

Federal Award Name(s):  Marine Artificial Reef Planning, Development, Administration, and 
Assessment in Florida 

CSFA Title(s).:  Florida Artificial Reef Program CSFA No(s).:  N/A 

State Award No(s).:  FWC-20011 State Award Year(s):  N/A 

State Award Name(s):  Franklin County Artificial Reef Construction 2020-21 

 
This Agreement is entered into by and between the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 

whose address is 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600, hereafter “Commission,” and 
Franklin County Board of Commissioners, FEID # 59-6000612, whose address is 33 Market Street, Suite 203, 
Apalachicola, FL 32320, hereinafter “Grantee.” 

 
WHEREAS, the Commission and Grantee have partnered together to construct three artificial reef complexes 

by deploying at least 25 concrete prefabricated reef modules within Buddy Ward permitted area; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Grantee has been awarded the grant entitled "Franklin County Artificial Reef Construction 

2020-2021/ FWC-20011; and,  
 
WHEREAS, such benefits are for the ultimate good of the State of Florida, its resources, wildlife, and public 

welfare. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Commission and the Grantee, for the considerations hereafter set forth, agree as 
follows:  

 
1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION. 

 
The Grantee shall provide the services and perform the specific responsibilities and obligations, as set forth 
in the Scope of Work, attached hereto as Attachment A and made a part hereof (hereafter, Scope of Work).  
The Scope of Work specifically identifies project tasks and accompanying deliverables.  These deliverables 
must be submitted and approved by the Commission prior to any payment. The Commission will not accept 
any deliverable that does not comply with the specified required minimum level of service to be performed 
and the criteria for evaluating the successful completion of each deliverable.  If this agreement is the result 
of Grantee responses to the Commission’s request for competitive or other grant proposals, the Grantee’s 
response is hereby incorporated by reference.  

 
 

357

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 2 of 20 

 
2. PERFORMANCE.  

 
The Grantee shall perform the activities described in the Scope of Work in a proper and satisfactory manner.  
Unless otherwise provided for in the Scope of Work, any and all equipment, products or materials necessary 
or appropriate to perform under this Agreement shall be supplied by the Grantee.  Grantee shall obtain all 
necessary local, state, and federal authorizations necessary to complete this project, and the Grantee shall 
be licensed as necessary to perform under this Agreement as may be required by law, rule, or regulation; 
the Grantee shall provide evidence of such compliance to the Commission upon request.  The Grantee shall 
procure all supplies and pay all charges, fees, taxes and incidentals that may be required for the completion 
of this Agreement.  By acceptance of this Agreement, the Grantee warrants that it has the capability in all 
respects to fully perform the requirements and the integrity and reliability that will assure good-faith 
performance as a responsible Grantee.  Grantee shall immediately notify the Commission’s Grant Manager 
in writing if its ability to perform under the Agreement is compromised in any manner during the term of 
the Agreement.  The Commission shall take appropriate action, including potential termination of this 
Agreement pursuant to Paragraph eight (8) below, in the event the Grantee’s ability to perform under this 
Agreement becomes compromised. 

 
3. AGREEMENT PERIOD. 
 

A. Agreement Period and Commission’s Limited Obligation to Pay.  This Agreement is made 
pursuant to a grant award and shall be effective upon execution by the last Party to sign and shall 
remain in effect through 08/31/2021.  However, as authorized by Rule 68-1.003, F.A.C., referenced 
grant programs may execute Agreements with a retroactive start date of no more than sixty (60) 
days, provided that approval is granted from the Executive Director or his/her designee and that it 
is in the best interest of the Commission and State to do so.  For this agreement, the retroactive start 
date was not approved.  The Commission’s Grant Manager shall confirm the specific start date of 
the Agreement by written notice to the Grantee.  The Grantee shall not be eligible for 
reimbursement or compensation for grant activities performed prior to the start date of this 
Agreement nor after the end date of the Agreement.  For this agreement, preaward costs are not 
eligible for reimbursement.  If necessary, by mutual agreement as evidenced in writing and lawfully 
executed by the Parties, an Amendment to this Agreement may be executed to lengthen the 
Agreement period.  

 
4. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS. 

 
A. Compensation.  As consideration for the services rendered by the Grantee under the terms of this 

Agreement, the Commission shall pay the Grantee on a cost reimbursement basis in an amount not 
to exceed $60,000.00. 
 

B. Payments.  The Commission shall pay the Grantee for satisfactory performance of the tasks 
identified in Attachment A, Scope of Work, as evidenced by the completed deliverables, upon 
submission of invoices, accompanied by supporting documentation sufficient to justify invoiced 
expenses or fees, and after acceptance of services and deliverables in writing by the Commission’s 
Grant Manager identified in Paragraph ten (10), below.  Unless otherwise specified in the Scope of 
Work, invoices shall be due monthly, commencing from the start date of this Agreement.  Invoices 
must be legible and must clearly reflect the Deliverables that were provided in accordance with the 
terms of the Agreement for the invoice period.  Unless otherwise specified in the Scope of Work, 
a final invoice shall be submitted to the Commission no later than forty-five (45) days following 
the expiration date of this Agreement to assure the availability of funds for payment.  Further, 
pursuant to Section 215.971(1)(d), F.S., the Commission may only reimburse the Grantee for 

358

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 3 of 20 

allowable costs resulting from obligations incurred during the agreement period specified in 
Paragraph three (3). 

 
C. Invoices.  Each invoice shall include the Commission Agreement Number and the Grantee’s 

Federal Employer Identification (FEID) Number.  Invoices, with supporting documentation, may 
be submitted electronically to the attention of the Commission’s Grant Manager identified in 
Paragraph ten (10), below.  If submitting hard copies, an original and two (2) copies of the invoice, 
plus all supporting documentation, shall be submitted.  All bills for amounts due under this 
Agreement shall be submitted in detail sufficient for a proper pre-audit and post-audit thereof.  
Grantee acknowledges that the Commission’s Grant Manager shall reject invoices lacking 
documentation necessary to justify invoiced expenses.   

 
D. Match.  Pursuant to grant program guidelines, the Grantee is required to contribute non-federal 

match towards this Agreement.  If applicable, details regarding specific match requirements are 
included in Attachment A, Scope of Work. 

 
E. Travel Expenses.  If authorized in Attachment A, Scope of Work, travel expenses shall be 

reimbursed in accordance with Section 112.061, F.S. 
 
F. State Obligation to Pay.  The State of Florida's performance and obligation to pay under this 

Agreement is contingent upon an annual appropriation and authorization to spend by the 
Legislature.  The Parties hereto understand that this Agreement is not a commitment to future 
appropriations but is subject to appropriation and authority to spend provided by the Legislature.  
The Commission shall be the final authority as to the availability of funds for this Agreement, and 
as to what constitutes an “annual appropriation” of funds to complete this Agreement.  If such funds 
are not appropriated or available for the Agreement purpose, such event will not constitute a default 
on behalf of the Commission or the State.  The Commission’s Grant Manager shall notify the 
Grantee in writing at the earliest possible time if funds are not appropriated or available.   

 
G. Non-Competitive Procurement and Rate of Payment.  Section 216.3475, F.S., requires that 

under non-competitive procurements, a Grantee may not receive a rate of payment in excess of the 
competitive prevailing rate for those services unless expressly authorized in the General 
Appropriations Act.  If applicable, Grantee warrants, by execution of this Agreement, that the 
amount of non-competitive compensation provided in this Agreement is in compliance with Section 
216.3475, F.S. 

   
H. Time Limits for Payment of Invoices.  Payments shall be made in accordance with Sections 

215.422 and 287.0585, F.S., which govern time limits for payment of invoices.  Section 215.422, 
F.S. provides that agencies have five (5) working days to inspect and approve Deliverables, unless 
the Scope of Work specifies otherwise.  If payment is not available within forty (40) days, measured 
from the latter of the date the invoice is received or the Deliverables are received, inspected and 
approved, a separate interest penalty set by the Department of Financial Services pursuant to 
Section 55.03(1), F.S., will be due and payable in addition to the invoice amount.  Invoices returned 
to a Grantee due to preparation errors will result in a payment delay.  Invoice payment requirements 
do not start until a properly completed invoice is provided to the agency.  

 
I. Electronic Funds Transfer.  Grantee agrees to enroll in Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT), offered 

by the State’s Chief Financial Officer, within thirty (30) days of the date the last Party has signed 
this Agreement.  Copies of the Authorization form and a sample blank enrollment letter can be 
found on the vendor instruction page at: 

http://www.fldfs.com/aadir/direct_deposit_web/Vendors.htm 

359

X.

http://www.fldfs.com/aadir/direct_deposit_web/Vendors.htm


FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 4 of 20 

Questions should be directed to the State of Florida’s EFT Section at (850) 413-5517.  Once 
enrolled, invoice payments will be made by EFT. 

 
J. Vendor Ombudsman.  A Vendor Ombudsman, whose duties include acting as an advocate for 

vendors who may be experiencing problems in obtaining timely payment(s) from a State agency, 
may be contacted at (850) 413-5516 or by calling the Chief Financial Officer’s Hotline, (800) 342-
2762. 

 
5. RETURN OR RECOUPMENT OF FUNDS. 
   

A. Overpayment to Grantee.  Pursuant to Section 215.971(1)(e) &(f), F.S., the Grantee shall return 
to the Commission any overpayments due to unearned funds or funds disallowed pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement that were disbursed to Grantee by the Commission.  In the event the 
Grantee or its independent auditor discovers that overpayment has been made, the Grantee shall 
repay said overpayment within forty (40) calendar days without prior notification from the 
Commission.  In the event the Commission first discovers an overpayment has been made, the 
Commission will notify the Grantee in writing.  Should repayment not be made in a timely manner, 
the Commission shall be entitled to charge interest at the lawful rate of interest established pursuant 
to Section 55.03(1), F.S., on the outstanding balance beginning forty (40) calendar days after the 
date of notification or discovery.  Refunds should be sent to the Commission’s Grant Manager and 
made payable to the “The Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission”. 

 
B. Additional Costs or Monetary Loss Resulting from Grantee Non-Compliance.  If the Grantee’s 

non-compliance with any provision of the Agreement results in additional cost or monetary loss to 
the Commission or the State of Florida to the extent allowed by Florida Law, the Commission can 
recoup that cost or loss from monies owed to the Grantee under this Agreement or any other 
agreement between Grantee and the Commission.  In the event the discovery of this cost or loss 
arises when no monies are available under this Agreement or any other agreement between the 
Grantee and the Commission, the Grantee will repay such cost or loss in full to the Commission 
within thirty (30) days of the date of notice of the amount owed, unless the Commission agrees, in 
writing, to an alternative timeframe.  If the Grantee is unable to repay any cost or loss to the 
Commission, the Commission shall notify the State of Florida, Department of Financial Services, 
for resolution pursuant to Section 17.0415, F.S. 

 
6. COMMISSION EXEMPT FROM TAXES, PROPERTY EXEMPT FROM LIEN. 

 
A. Commission Exempt from Taxes. The Grantee recognizes that the State of Florida, by virtue of 

its sovereignty, is not required to pay any taxes on the services or goods purchased under the terms 
of this Agreement. Grantee is placed on notice that this exemption generally does not apply to 
nongovernmental entity recipients, subrecipients, contractors, or subcontractors.  Any questions 
regarding this tax exemption should be addressed to the Commission Grant Manager. 

 
B. Property Exempt from Lien. If the Grant involves the improvement of real property titled to the 

State of Florida, then the following paragraph applies:   
 

The Grantee acknowledges that Property being improved is titled to the State of Florida 
and is not subject to lien of any kind for any reason.  The Grantee shall include notice of 
such exemptions in any subcontracts and purchase orders issued hereunder. 

 
 
 

360

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 5 of 20 

 
 
 
7. MONITORING.  

 
The Commission’s Grant Manager shall actively monitor the Grantee’s performance and compliance with 
the terms of this Agreement.  The Commission reserves the right for any Commission staff to make 
scheduled or unscheduled, announced or unannounced monitoring visits.  Specific State and Federal 
monitoring terms and conditions are found in Attachment B, Audit Requirements.  Additionally, monitoring 
terms, conditions, and schedules may be included in Attachment A, Scope of Work.   
 

8. TERMINATION. 
 

A. Commission Termination.  The Commission may unilaterally terminate this Agreement for 
convenience by providing the Grantee with thirty (30) calendar days of written notice of its intent 
to terminate.  The Grantee shall not be entitled to recover any cancellation charges or lost profits.  
The Grantee may request termination of the Agreement for convenience.  

 
B. Termination – Fraud or Willful Misconduct.  This Agreement shall terminate immediately in 

the event of fraud or willful misconduct.  In the event of such termination, the Commission shall 
provide the Grantee with written notice of termination.   

 
C. Termination – Other.  The Commission may terminate this Agreement if the Grantee fails to:  1.)  

comply with all terms and conditions of this Agreement; 2.) produce each deliverable within the 
time specified by the Agreement or extension; 3.) maintain adequate progress, thus endangering 
the performance of the Agreement; or, 4.)  abide by any statutory, regulatory, or licensing 
requirement.  Rule 60A-1.006(3), F.A.C., governs the procedure and consequences for default.  The 
rights and remedies of the Commission in this clause are in addition to any other rights and remedies 
provided by law or under the Agreement.  The Grantee shall not be entitled to recover any 
cancellation charges or lost profits. 

 
D. Termination - Funds Unavailability.  In the event funds to finance this Agreement become 

unavailable or if federal or state funds upon which this Agreement is dependent are withdrawn or 
redirected, the Commission may terminate this Agreement upon no less than twenty-four (24) 
hours’ notice in writing to the Grantee.  Said notice shall be delivered by certified mail, return 
receipt requested or in person with proof of delivery.  The Commission shall be the final authority 
as to the availability of funds and will not reallocate funds appropriated for this Agreement to 
another program thus causing “lack of funds.”  In the event of termination of this Agreement under 
this provision, the Grantee will be compensated for any work satisfactorily completed and any non-
cancellable obligations properly incurred prior to notification of termination. 

 
E. Grantee Discontinuation of Activities upon Termination Notice.  Upon receipt of notice of 

termination, the Grantee shall, unless the notice directs otherwise, immediately discontinue all 
activities authorized hereunder.  Upon termination of this Agreement, the Grantee shall promptly 
render to the Commission all property belonging to the Commission.  For the purposes of this 
section, property belonging to the Commission shall include, but shall not be limited to, all books 
and records kept on behalf of the Commission. 

 
9. REMEDIES.   

 
A. Financial Consequences.  In accordance with Sections 215.971(1)(a) &(b), F.S., Attachment A, 

Scope of Work, contains clearly established tasks in quantifiable units of deliverables that must be 

361

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 6 of 20 

received and accepted in writing by the agency before payment.  Each deliverable specifies the 
required minimum level of service to be performed and the criteria for evaluating the successful 
completion of each deliverable.  If the Grantee fails to produce each deliverable within the time 
frame specified by the Scope of Work, the budget amount allocated for that deliverable will be 
deducted from the Grantee’s payment.  In addition, pursuant to Section 215.971(1)(c), the 
Commission shall apply any additional financial consequences, identified in the Scope of Work. 

 
B. Cumulative Remedies.  The rights and remedies of the Commission in this paragraph are in 

addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under the Agreement.   
 
10. NOTICES AND CORRESPONDENCE.  

 
Any and all notices shall be delivered to the individuals identified below.  In the event that either Party 
designates a different Grant Manager after the execution of this Agreement, the Party will provide written 
notice of the name, address, zip code, telephone and fax numbers, and email address of the newest Grant 
Manager, or an individual authorized to receive notice on behalf of that Party, to all other Parties as soon 
as possible, but not later than five (5) business days after the new Grant Manager has been named.  A 
designation of a new Grant Manager shall not require a formal amendment to the Agreement. 

  
FOR THE COMMISSION: FOR THE GRANTEE: 
Grant Manager 
Christine Kittle 

Grant Manager 
Michael Moron 

Fisheries Biologist IV Administrative Assistant 
Division of Marine Fisheries Managment Franklin County Board of County Commissioners 
1875 Orange Ave. East 33 Market Street, Suite 203 
Tallahassee, Fl 32311 Apalachicola, FL 32320 
(850)617-9628  Phone: (850) 653-9783 ext. 155 
Fax: N/A Fax: N/A 
Christine.kittle@myfwc.com michael@franklincountyflorida.com  

 
11. AMENDMENT.    

 
A. Waiver or Modification.  No waiver or modification of this Agreement or of any covenant, 

condition, or limitation herein contained shall be valid unless in writing and lawfully executed by 
the Parties.  

 
B. Change Orders.  The Commission may, at any time, by written order, make a change to this 

Agreement.  Such changes are subject to the mutual agreement of both Parties as evidenced in 
writing.  Any change which causes an increase or decrease in the Grantee’s cost or time shall require 
an Amendment.  Minor changes, such as those updating a Party’s contact information, may be 
accomplished by a Modification.   

 
C. Renegotiation upon Change in Law or Regulation.  The Parties agree to renegotiate this 

Agreement if federal and/or state revisions of any applicable laws or regulations make changes in 
the Agreement necessary. 

 
12. PROPERTY RIGHTS.  

 
If this Agreement includes Federal funds, the provisions of Sections 200.310-200.316, OMB Uniform 
Guidance (2 CFR 200), and any language addressing Federal rights, apply. 

 
A. Intellectual and Other Intangible Property.  

362

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 7 of 20 

 
i. Grantee’s Preexisting Intellectual Property (Proprietary) Rights.  Unless specifically 

addressed in the Attachment A, Scope of Work, intellectual and other intangible property 
rights to the Grantee’s preexisting property will remain with the Grantee.    

 
ii. Proceeds Related to Intellectual Property Rights.  Proceeds derived from the sale, 

licensing, marketing or other authorization related to any intellectual and other intangible 
property right created or otherwise developed by the Grantee under this Agreement for the 
Commission shall be handled in the manner specified by the applicable Florida State 
Statute and/or Federal program requirements. 

 
iii. Commission Intellectual Property Rights.  Where activities supported by this Agreement 

produce original writing, sound recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings or other 
graphic representations and works of any similar nature, the Commission and the State of 
Florida have the unlimited, royalty-free, nonexclusive, irrevocable right to use, duplicate 
and disclose such materials in whole or in part, in any manner, for any purpose whatsoever 
and to have others acting on behalf of the Commission to do so.  If this Agreement is 
supported by federal funds, the federal awarding agency reserves a royalty-free, 
nonexclusive and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the work for 
federal purposes, and to authorize others to do so. 

 
B. Purchase or Improvement of Real Property 

 
This agreement is not for the purchase or improvement of real property, therefore, the following 
terms and conditions do not apply. 

i. Federal Funds.  Any Federal funds provided for the purchase of or improvements to real 
property are subject to the Property Standards of Sections 200.310 - 200.316, and 200.329, 
OMB Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200), as amended. 
 

ii. Title.  If this agreement is supported by state funds, the Grantee shall comply with Section 
287.05805, F.S.  This section requires the Grantee to grant a security interest in the property 
to the State of Florida, the type and details of which are provided for in Attachment A, 
Scope of Work.  Title to state-owned real property remains vested in the state.  Title to 
federally-owned real property remains vested in the Federal government in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 200.312, OMB Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200), as amended.  
 

iii. Use.  Federally-owned real property will be used for the originally authorized purpose as 
long as needed for that purpose in accordance with Section 200.311, OMB Uniform 
Guidance (2 CFR 200).  State-owned real property will be used as provided in Attachment 
A, Scope of Work. 

C. Non-Expendable Property. The following provisions apply to the extent that the grant allows the 
acquisition of non-expendable property. 

 
i. Non-Expendable Property Defined.  For the requirements of this section of the 

Agreement, “non-expendable property” is the same as “property” as defined in Section 
273.02, F.S. (equipment, fixtures, and other tangible personal property of a non-
consumable and non-expendable nature, with a value or cost of $1,000.00 or more, and a 
normal expected life of one (1) year or more; hardback-covered bound books that are 
circulated to students or the general public, with a value or cost of $25.00 or more; and 
uncirculated hardback-covered bound books, with a value or cost of $250.00 or more).  

363

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 8 of 20 

 
ii. Title to Non-Expendable Property.  Title (ownership) to all non-expendable property 

acquired with funds from this Agreement shall be vested in the Commission and said 
property shall be transferred to the Commission upon completion or termination of the 
Agreement unless otherwise authorized in writing by the Commission or unless otherwise 
specifically provided for in Attachment A, Scope of Work. 

 
D. Equipment and Supplies. The following provisions apply to the extent that the grant allows the 

acquisition of equipment and supplies. 
 

i. Title - Equipment.  Title to equipment acquired under a Federal award will vest upon 
acquisition in the non-Federal entity in accordance with Sections 200.313 and 200.314, 
OMB Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200).  
 

ii. Title – Supplies.  Title to supplies will vest in the non-Federal entity upon acquisition. 
Unused supplies exceeding $5,000.00 in total aggregate value upon termination or 
completion of the project or program are subject to Section 200.314, OMB Uniform 
Guidance. 
 

iii. Use – Equipment.  Equipment must be used by the non-Federal entity in the program or 
project for which it was acquired as long as needed 

 
13.  RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES.    

 
A. Independent Grantee.  The Grantee shall perform as an independent grantee and not as an agent, 

representative, or employee of the Commission.  The Grantee covenants that it presently has no 
interest and shall not acquire any interest that would conflict in any manner or degree with the 
performance of services required.  Each Party hereto covenants that there is no conflict of interest 
or any other prohibited relationship between the Grantee and the Commission. 

 
B. Grantee Training and Qualifications.  Grantee agrees that all Grantee employees, subcontractors, 

or agents performing work under the Agreement shall be properly trained technicians who meet or 
exceed any specified training qualifications.  Upon request, Grantee shall furnish a copy of 
technical certification or other proof of qualification.   

 
C. Commission Security.  All employees, subcontractors, or agents performing work under the 

Agreement must comply with all security and administrative requirements of the Commission.  The 
Commission may conduct, and the Grantee shall cooperate in, a security background check or 
otherwise assess any employee, subcontractor, or agent furnished by the Grantee.  The Commission 
may refuse access to, or require replacement of, any personnel for cause, including, but not limited 
to, technical or training qualifications, quality of work, change in security status, or non-compliance 
with the Commission’s other requirements.  Such refusal shall not relieve Grantee of its obligation 
to perform all work in compliance with the Agreement.  The Commission, in coordination with the 
Grantee, may reject and bar from any facility for cause any of Grantee’s employees, subcontractors, 
or agents. 

 
D. Commission Rights to Assign or Transfer.  The Grantee agrees that the State of Florida shall at 

all times be entitled to assign or transfer its rights, duties, or obligations under this Agreement to 
another governmental agency in the State of Florida, upon giving prior written notice to the 
Grantee.   

 

364

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 9 of 20 

E. Commission Rights to Undertake and Award Supplemental Agreements.  Grantee agrees that 
the Commission may undertake or award supplemental agreements for work related to the 
Agreement.  The Grantee and its subcontractors shall cooperate with such other Grantees and the 
Commission in all such cases. 

 
14.  SUBCONTRACTS.    

 
A. Authority.  Grantee is permitted to subcontract work under this Agreement, therefore, the following 

terms and conditions apply.  The Grantee shall ensure, and provide assurances to the Commission      
upon request, that any subcontractor selected for work under this Agreement has the necessary 
qualifications and abilities to perform in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  
The Grantee must provide the Commission with the names of any subcontractor considered for work 
under this Agreement; the Commission in coordination with the Grantee reserves the right to reject any 
subcontractor.  The Grantee agrees to be responsible for all work performed and all expenses incurred 
with the project.  Any subcontract arrangements must be evidenced by a written document available to 
the Commission upon request.  The Grantee further agrees that the Commission shall not be liable to the 
extent allowed by law, to any subcontractor for any expenses or liabilities incurred under the subcontract 
and the Grantee shall be solely liable to the subcontractor for all expenses and liabilities incurred under 
the subcontract.   

 
B. Grantee Payments to Subcontractor.  If subcontracting is permitted pursuant to Paragraph A, above, 

Grantee agrees to make payments to the subcontractor upon completion of work and submitted invoice 
in accordance with the contract between the Grantee and subcontractor.  Failure to make payment 
pursuant to any subcontract will result in a penalty charged against Grantee and paid to the subcontractor 
in the amount of one-half of one percent (0.50%) of the amount due per day from the expiration of the 
period allowed herein for payment.  Such penalty shall be in addition to actual payments owed and shall 
not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the outstanding balance due. 

  
C. Commission Right to Reject Subcontractor Employees.  The Commission in coordination with 

Grantee shall retain the right to reject any of the Grantee’s or subcontractor’s employees whose 
qualifications or performance, in the Commission’s judgment, are insufficient.   

 
D. Subcontractor as Independent Contractor.  If subcontracting is permitted pursuant to Paragraph A 

above, the Grantee agrees to take such actions as may be necessary to ensure that each subcontractor 
will be deemed to be an independent contractor and will not be considered or permitted to be an agent, 
servant, joint venture, or partner of the State of Florida. 

 
15.  MANDATORY DISCLOSURE.  

 
These disclosures are required by State law, as indicated, and apply when this Agreement includes State 
funding; and by Federal law, as indicated, and apply when the Agreement includes a Federal award. 

 
A. Disclosure of Interested State Employees and Conflict of Interest.  This Agreement is subject 

to Chapter 112, F.S.  Grantee shall provide the name of any officer, director, employee, or other 
agent who is affiliated with this project and an employee of the State of Florida.  If the Agreement 
includes a Federal award, then the Agreement is also subject to Section 200.112, OMB Uniform 
Guidance (2 CFR 200).  Grantee must disclose, in writing, any potential conflict of interest to the 
Commission in accordance with applicable Federal awarding agency policy. 
 

B. Convicted Vendors.  Grantee hereby certifies that neither it, nor any person or affiliate of Grantee, 
has been convicted of a Public Entity Crime as defined in section 287.133, F.S., nor placed on the 
convicted vendor list. Grantee shall have a continuing obligation to disclose, to the Commission, 

365

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 10 of 20 

in writing, if it, its principals, recipient, subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor, are on the 
convicted vendors list maintained by the Florida Department of Management Services pursuant to 
Section 287.133(3)(d), F.S.  

 
i. Convicted Vendor List.  Pursuant to Subsection 287.133(2)(a), F.S., a person or affiliate 

who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity 
crime may not be awarded or perform work as a Grantee, supplier, subcontractor or 
consultant under a contract with any public entity and may not transact business with any 
public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, F.S., for 
Category Two for a period of thirty-six (36) months from the date of being placed on the 
convicted vendor list.  The State of Florida, Department of Management Services, Division 
of State Purchasing provides listings for convicted, suspended, discriminatory and federal 
excluded parties, as well as the vendor complaint list at:  

 
http://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/vendor_information/co
nvicted_suspended_discriminatory_complaints_vendor_lists  

 
ii. Notice of Conviction of Public Entity Crime.  Any person must notify the Department 

of Management Services and the Commission, in writing, within thirty (30) days after 
conviction of a public entity crime applicable to that person or an affiliate of that person as 
defined in Section 287.133, F.S. 

 
C. Vendors on Scrutinized Companies List.  
 

i. Scrutinized Companies.  Grantee certifies that it and any of its affiliates are not 
scrutinized companies as identified in Section 287.135, F.S. In addition, Grantee agrees 
to observe the requirements of Section 287.135, F.S., for applicable sub-agreements 
entered into for the performance of work under this Agreement.  Pursuant to Section 
287.135, F.S., the Commission may immediately terminate this Agreement for cause if 
the Grantee, its affiliates, or its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false 
certification; or if the Grantee, its affiliates, or its subcontractors are placed on any 
applicable scrutinized companies list or engaged in prohibited contracting activity during 
the term of the Agreement.  As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), F.S., if federal law 
ceases to authorize these contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

 
D. Discriminatory Vendors.  Grantee shall disclose to the Commission, in writing, if they, their 

subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor, are on the Discriminatory Vendor List maintained by the 
Florida Department of Management Services pursuant to Section 287.134(3)(d), F.S. “An entity or 
affiliate who has been placed on the discriminatory vendor list may not submit a bid, proposal, or 
reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, 
proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building 
or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public 
entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant 
under a contract with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity.” 
Section 287.134(2)(a), F.S.  Grantee has a continuing duty to disclose to the Commission whether 
they appear on the discriminatory vendor list. 
 

E. Prompt Disclosure of Litigation, Investigations, Arbitration, or Administrative Proceedings.  
Throughout the term of the Agreement, the Grantee has a continuing duty to promptly disclose to 
the Commission’s Grant Manager, in writing, upon occurrence, all civil or criminal litigation, 
investigations, arbitration, or administrative proceedings (Proceedings) relating to or affecting the 
Grantee’s ability to perform under this agreement.  If the existence of such Proceeding causes the 

366

X.

http://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/vendor_information/convicted_suspended_discriminatory_complaints_vendor_lists
http://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/vendor_information/convicted_suspended_discriminatory_complaints_vendor_lists


FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 11 of 20 

Commission concern that the Grantee’s ability or willingness to perform the Agreement is 
jeopardized, the Grantee may be required to provide the Commission with reasonable assurances 
to demonstrate that: a.) the Grantee will be able to perform the Agreement in accordance with its 
terms and conditions; and, b.) Grantee and/or its employees or agents have not and will not engage 
in conduct in performing services for the Commission which is similar in nature to the conduct 
alleged in such Proceeding. 

 
F. Certain Violations of Federal Criminal Law. If this agreement includes a Federal award, then in 

accordance with Section 200.113, OMB Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200), Grantee must disclose, 
in a timely manner, in writing to the Commission all violations of Federal criminal law involving 
fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting the Federal award. 

 
16. INSURANCE. 
 

The Grantee warrants and represents that it is insured, or self-insured for liability insurance, in accordance 
with applicable state law and that such insurance or self-insurance offers protection applicable to the 
Grantee’s officers, employees, servants and agents while acting within the scope of their employment with 
the Grantee. 

 
17. SPONSORSHIP.  

 
As required by Section 286.25, F.S., if any recipient, subrecipient, contractor or subcontractor under this 
grant is a nongovernmental organization which sponsors a program financed wholly or in part by state 
funds, including any funds obtained through this Agreement, it shall, in publicizing, advertising, or 
describing the sponsorship of the program, state: “Sponsored by (Grantee’s name) and the State of Florida, 
Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission.”  If the sponsorship reference is in written material, the words 
“State of Florida, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission” shall appear in the same size letters or type 
as the name of the Grantee’s organization.  Additional sponsorship requirements may be specified in 
Attachment A, Scope of Work.  
 

18. PUBLIC RECORDS.    
 
A. All records in conjunction with this Grant shall be public records and shall be treated in the same 

manner as other public records that are under Chapter 119, F.S. 
 

B. This Agreement may be unilaterally canceled by the Commission for refusal by the Grantee to 
allow public access to all documents, papers, letters, or other material subject to the provisions of 
Chapter 119, F.S., and made or received by the Grantee in conjunction with this Agreement, unless 
exemption for such records is allowable under Florida law. 
 

C. If the Grantee meets the definition of “Contractor” in Section 119.0701(1)(a) F.S., the Grantee shall 
comply with the following:  
 

i. IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING 
THE APPLICATION OF THE CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA 
STATUES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE 
PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, 
CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT: 
850-488-6553, RecordsCustodian@myfwc.com, and 620 South 
Meridian Street, Tallahassee FL 32399 

367

X.

mailto:RecordsCustodian@myfwc.com


FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 12 of 20 

ii. Keep and maintain public records required by the Commission to perform the service. 
iii. Upon request from the Commission’s custodian of public records, provide the 

Commission with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected 
or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in 
Chapter 119, F.S. or as otherwise provided by law. 

iv. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 
records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the 
duration of the contract term and following completion of the contract if the Contractor 
does not transfer the records to the Commission. 

v. Upon completion of the contract transfer, at no cost, to the Commission all public 
records in possession of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records required 
by the Commission to perform the service.  If the Contractor transfers all public records 
to the Commission upon completion of the contract, the Contractor shall destroy any 
duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 
records disclosure requirements.  If the Contractor keeps and maintains public records 
upon completion of the contract, the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements 
for retaining public records.  All records stored electronically must be provided to the 
Commission, upon request from the Commission’s custodian of public records, in a 
format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the Commission. 

 
19. COOPERATION WITH INSPECTOR GENERAL. 

 
Pursuant to subsection 20.055(5), F.S., Grantee, and any subcontractor to the Grantee, understand and will 
comply with their duty to cooperate with the Inspector General in any investigation, audit, inspection, 
review, or hearing. Upon request of the Inspector General or any other authorized State official, the 
Grantee shall provide any type of information the Inspector General deems relevant to the Grantee's 
integrity or responsibility. Such information may include, but shall not be limited to, the Grantee's business 
or financial records, documents, or files of any type or form that refer to or relate to the Agreement. The 
Grantee agrees to reimburse the State for the reasonable costs of investigation incurred by the Inspector 
General or other authorized State official for investigations of the Grantee's compliance with the terms of 
this or any other agreement between the Grantee and the State which results in the suspension or debarment 
of the Grantee. Such costs shall include but shall not be limited to: salaries of investigators, including 
overtime; travel and lodging expenses; and expert witness and documentary fees. 

 
20. SECURITY AND CONFIDENTIALITY.  

 
The Grantee shall not divulge to third parties any clearly marked confidential information obtained by the 
Grantee or its agents, distributors, resellers, subcontractors, officers or employees in the course of 
performing Grant work.  To ensure confidentiality, the Grantee shall take appropriate steps regarding its 
personnel, agents, and subcontractors.  The warranties of this paragraph shall survive the Grant. 

 
21. RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENTS.   

 
A. Grantee Responsibilities.  The Grantee shall maintain accurate books, records, documents and other 

evidence that sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended in 
the performance of this Agreement, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.   

 
B. State Access to Grantee Books, Documents, Papers, and Records.  The Grantee shall allow the 

Commission, the Chief Financial Officer of the State of Florida, the Auditor General of the State of 
Florida, the Florida Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government Accountability or authorized 
representatives of the state or federal government to  have access to any of the Grantee’s books, 
documents, papers, and records, including electronic storage media, as they may relate to this 

368

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 13 of 20 

Agreement, for the purposes of conducting audits or examinations or making excerpts or 
transcriptions.   

 
C. Grantee Records Retention.  Unless otherwise specified in the Scope of Work, these records shall 

be maintained for five (5) fiscal years following the close of this Agreement, or the period required 
for this particular type of project by the General Records Schedules maintained by the Florida 
Department of State (available at: http://dos.myflorida.com/library-archives/records-
management/general-records-schedules/), whichever is longer.  Grantee shall cooperate with the 
Commission to facilitate the duplication and transfer of such records upon the Commission’s request. 

 
D. Grantee Responsibility to Include Records Requirements – Subcontractors.  In the event any work 

is subcontracted under this Agreement, the Grantee shall include the aforementioned audit and record 
keeping requirements in all subsequent contracts.   

 
E. Compliance with Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency.  Any federal funds awarded 

under this Agreement must comply with the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act 
(FFATA) of 2006.  The intent of the FFATA is to empower every American with the ability to hold the 
government accountable for each spending decision.  The result is to reduce wasteful spending in the 
government.  The FFATA legislation requires that information on federal awards (federal financial 
assistance and expenditures) be made available to the public via a single, searchable website: 
http://www.USASpending.gov.    Grant recipients awarded a new Federal grant greater than or equal 
to $25,000.00 awarded on or after October 1, 2010 are subject to the FFATA.  The Grantee agrees to 
provide the information necessary, over the life of this Agreement, for the Commission to comply with 
this requirement. 

 
22. FEDERAL AND FLORIDA SINGLE AUDIT ACT REQUIREMENTS.  

 
Pursuant to the FSAA (or Federal) Vendor / Recipient Determination Checklist, the Grantee has been 
determined to be a recipient of state financial assistance and/or a subrecipient of a federal award.  Therefore, 
pursuant to Section 215.97, F.S. and/or OMB Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200), the Grantee may be subject 
to the audit requirements of the Florida and/or Federal Single Audit Acts.  If applicable, the Grantee shall 
comply with the audit requirements outlined in Attachment B, “Requirements of the Federal and Florida 
Single Audit Acts,” attached hereto and made a part of the Agreement, as applicable. 

 
23.       FEDERAL COMPLIANCE.  

As applicable, Grantee shall comply with all federal laws, rules, and regulations, including but not limited 
to: 

i. Clean Air Act and Water Pollution Control Act.  All applicable standards, orders, or 
requirements issued under the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q), and the Water 
Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387, as amended).  

ii. Lacey Act, 16 U.S.C 3371-3378.  This Act prohibits trade in wildlife, fish and plants that 
have been illegally taken, possessed, transported or sold.  

iii. Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act, 16 U.S.C. 1801-1884.  
This Act governs marine fisheries in Federal waters. 

iv. Migratory Bird Treaty Act, 16 U.S.C. 703-712.  The Act prohibits anyone, unless 
permitted, to pursue, hunt, take, capture, kill, attempt to take, capture or kill, possess, offer 
for sale, sell, offer to purchase, deliver for shipment, ship, cause to be shipped, deliver for 
transportation, transport, cause to be transported, carry or cause to be carried by any means 

369

X.

http://www.usaspending.gov/


FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 14 of 20 

whatsoever, receive for shipment, transport of carriage, or export, at any time, or in any 
manner, any migratory bird, or any part, nest, or egg of such bird. 

v. Endangered Species Act, 16 U.S.C. 1531, et seq.  The Act provides a program for the 
conservation of threatened and endangered plants and animals and the habitat in which they 
are found.  The Act also prohibits any action that cause a “taking” of any listed species of 
endangered fish or wildlife. Also, generally prohibited are the import, export, interstate, and 
foreign commerce of listed species. 

 
24.        FEDERAL FUNDS. This Agreement relies on federal funds, therefore, the following terms and 

conditions apply:   
 

A. Prior Approval to Expend Federal Funds to Federal Agency or Employee.  It is understood and 
agreed that the Grantee is not authorized to expend any federal funds under this Contract to a federal 
agency or employee without the prior written approval of the awarding federal agency.   

  
B. Equal Employment Opportunity.  Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled “Equal 

Employment Opportunity,” as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, and as 
supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR Chapter 60). Applicable, except as 
otherwise provide under 41 CFR Part 60, to any grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee involving 
Federal assisted construction. 

 
C. Davis-Bacon Act.  The Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. 3141-3148, as supplemented by Department of 

Labor regulations at 29 CFR Part 5. Applicable to contractors and subcontractors performing on 
federally funded or assisted contracts in excess of $2,000.00 for the construction, alteration, or repair 
(including painting and decorating) of public buildings or public works.  Under this Act, contractors 
and subcontractors must pay their laborers and mechanics employed under the contract no less than 
the locally prevailing wages and fringe benefits for corresponding work on similar projects in the area. 

 
D. Copeland “Anti-Kickback Act.  The Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act, 40 U.S.C. 3141-3148, and 

3146-3148, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Applicable to 
contracts awarded by a non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000.00 that involve employment of 
mechanics or labors. Under this Act, contractors and subrecipients are prohibited from inducing, by 
any mean, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up 
any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled.  

 
E. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.  Sections 103 and 107 of the Agreement Work 

Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327–330) as supplemented by Department of Labor 
regulations (29 CFR part 5). Applicable to construction contracts awarded by Contractors and 
subcontractors in excess of $2,000.00, and in excess of $2,500.00 for other contracts which involve 
the employment of mechanics or laborers. Under this Act, contractors and subcontractors must 
compute wages of mechanics and laborers (workers) on the basis of a standard forty (40) hour work 
week; provide workers no less than time and a half for hours worked in excess of the forty (40) hour 
work week; and not require workers to work in surroundings or work conditions that are unsanitary, 
hazardous, or dangerous. 

 
F. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement.  37 CFR Part 401. If the Federal award 

meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR 401.2(a) and the recipient or Subrecipient 
wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the 
substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work 
under the “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 
CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms 

370

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 15 of 20 

Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing 
regulations issued by the awarding agency.  

 
G.  Energy Efficiency.  Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are 

contained in the State energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and 
Conservation Act (Pub. L. 94–163, 89 Stat. 871).  

 
H. Debarment and Suspension Contractor Federal Certification.  In accordance with Federal 

Executive Order 12549 and 2 CFR Part 1400 regarding Debarment and Suspension, the Grantee 
certifies that neither it, nor its principals, is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal 
department or agency; and, that the Grantee shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier contract, or 
other covered transaction, with a person who is similarly debarred or suspended from participating in 
this covered transaction. 

 
I. Prohibition against Lobbying. 

 
i. Grantee Certification – Payments to Influence.  The Grantee certifies that no Federal 

appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, on or after December 22, 1989, by or on 
behalf of the Grantee, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress, in connection with the awarding, renewal, amending 
or modifying of any Federal contract, grant, or cooperative agreement. The Grantee also 
certifies that they have not engaged any registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 
1995 who has made lobbying contacts on behalf of the Grantee with respect to this Contract 
and its related federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement; or, if the Grantee has 
engaged any registrant with respect to this Contract and its related Federal contract, grant, 
loan, or cooperative agreement, the Grantee shall, prior to or upon execution of this 
Contract, provide the Commission Contract Manager a signed declaration listing the name 
of any said registrant. During the term of this Contract, and at the end of each Calendar 
quarter in which any event occurs that materially affects the accuracy of this certification 
or declaration, the Grantee shall file an updated declaration with the Commission’s 
Contract Manager. If any non-federal funds are used for lobbying activities as described 
above in connection with this Contract, the Grantee shall submit Standard Form-LLL, 
“Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying”, and shall file quarterly updates of any material 
changes. The Grantee shall require the language of this certification to be included in all 
subcontracts, and all subcontractors shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

 
ii. Grantee – Refrain from Subcontracting with Certain Organizations.  Pursuant to the 

Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, the Grantee agrees to refrain from entering into any 
subcontracts under this Contract with any organization described in Section 501(c)(4) of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, unless such organization warrants that it does not, and 
will not, engage in lobbying activities prohibited by the Act as a special condition of the 
subcontract. 

 
J. Compliance with Office of Management and Budget Circulars.  As applicable, Grantee shall 

comply with the following Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 
200). 
 

K. Drug Free Workplace. Pursuant to the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, the Grantee attests and 
certifies that the Grantee will provide a drug-free workplace compliant with 41 U.S.C. 81. 

371

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 16 of 20 

 
 
 
25. CONTRACT-RELATED PROCUREMENT.  

 
A. PRIDE.  In accordance with Section 946.515(6), F.S., if a product or service required for the 

performance of this Contract is certified by or is available from Prison Rehabilitative Industries 
and Diversified Enterprises, Inc. (PRIDE) and has been approved in accordance with Subsection 
946.515(2), F.S., the following statement applies: 

 
It is expressly understood and agreed that any articles which are the subject 
of, or required to carry out, this contract shall be purchased from [PRIDE] 
in the same manner and under the same procedures set forth in Subsections 
946.515(2) and (4), F.S.; and for purposes of this contract the person, firm 
or other business entity carrying out the provisions of this contract shall 
be deemed to be substituted for this agency insofar as dealings with such 
corporation are concerned.   

 
The above clause is not applicable to subcontractors unless otherwise required by law. Additional 
information about PRIDE and the products it offers is available at http://www.pride-enterprises.org. 

 
B. Respect of Florida.  In accordance with Subsection 413.036(3), F.S., if a product or service 

required for the performance of this Contract is on the procurement list established pursuant to 
Subsection 413.035(2), F.S., the following statement applies:   

 
It is expressly understood and agreed that any articles that are the subject 
of, or required to carry out, this contract shall be purchased from a 
nonprofit agency for the blind or for the severely handicapped that is 
qualified pursuant to Chapter 413, F.S., in the same manner and under the 
same procedures set forth in Subsections 413.036(1) and (2), F.S.; and for 
purposes of this contract, the person, firm or other business entity carrying 
out the provisions of this contract shall be deemed to be substituted for the 
state agency insofar as dealings with such qualified nonprofit agency are 
concerned.  

 
Additional information about the designated nonprofit agency and the products it offers is available 
at http://www.respectofflorida.org. 

 
C. Procurement of Recycled Products or Materials.  Grantee agrees to procure any recycled 

products or materials which are the subject of or are required to carry out this Contract in 
accordance with Section 403.7065, F.S. 

 
26. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.   

 
A. Architectural, Engineering, Landscape Architectural, or Survey and Mapping.  If this 

Agreement is for the acquisition of professional architectural, engineering, landscape architectural, 
or registered surveying and mapping services, and is therefore subject to Section 287.055, F.S., the 
following provision applies: 

 
The architect (or registered surveyor and mapper or professional engineer, as 
applicable) warrants that he or she has not employed or retained any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the architect (or 

372

X.

http://www.pride-enterprises.org/
http://www.respectofflorida.org/


FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 17 of 20 

registered surveyor and mapper, or professional engineer, as applicable) to solicit 
or secure this Agreement and that he or she has not paid or agreed to pay any 
person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for the architect (or registered surveyor and mapper or professional 
engineer, as applicable) any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or other 
consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 
contract. 

 
B. Termination for Breach.  For the breach or violation of this provision, the Commission shall have 

the right to terminate the Agreement without liability and, at its discretion, to deduct from the 
Agreement price, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift, 
or consideration. 

 
27. INDEMNIFICATION.  

 
If Grantee is a state agency or subdivision, as defined in Subsection 768.28(2), F.S., pursuant to Subsection 
768.28(19), F.S., neither Party indemnifies nor insures the other Party for the other Party’s negligence.  If 
Grantee is not a state agency or subdivision as defined above, Grantee shall be fully liable for the actions 
of its agents, employees, partners, or subcontractors and shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
the State and the Commission, and their officers, agents, and employees, from suits, actions, damages, and 
costs of every name and description, including attorneys’ fees, arising from or relating to personal injury 
and damage to real or personal tangible property alleged to be caused in whole or in part by Grantee, its 
agents, employees, partners, or subcontractors, provided, however, that Grantee shall not indemnify for that 
portion of any loss or damages proximately caused by the negligent act or omission of the State or the 
Commission.  If this is a Professional Services Agreement as defined in Subsection 725.08 F.S., then 
notwithstanding the provisions of Subsection 725.06 F.S., the design professional shall only be liable for, 
and fully indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State, the Commission, and their officers, agents, and 
employees, for actions caused in whole or in part, by the negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful 
conduct of the design professional and other persons employed or utilized by the design professional in the 
performance of the Agreement.    
 

28. NON-DISCRIMINATION.   
 
No person, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, age, sex, or disability, shall be excluded 
from participation in, be denied the proceeds or benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in 
performance of this Agreement. 

 
29. SEVERABILITY, CHOICE OF LAW, AND CHOICE OF VENUE.  

 
This Agreement has been delivered in the State of Florida and shall be construed in accordance with the 
laws of Florida.  Wherever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such manner 
as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Agreement shall be prohibited 
or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or 
invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remaining provisions of this 
Agreement.  Any action in connection herewith, in law or equity, shall be brought in Leon County, Florida, 
to the exclusion of all other lawful venues. 

 
30. NO THIRD-PARTY RIGHTS.  

 
The Parties hereto do not intend, nor shall this Agreement be construed to grant any rights, privileges or 
interest to any person not a party to this Agreement.   

 

373

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 18 of 20 

 
 
 
31. JURY TRIAL WAIVER.  

 
As part of the consideration for this Agreement, the Parties hereby waive trial by jury in any action or 
proceeding brought by any party against any other party pertaining to any matter whatsoever arising out of 
or in any way connected with this Agreement, or with the products or services provided under this 
Agreement, including but not limited to any claim by the Grantee of quantum meruit. 

 
32. PROHIBITION OF UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS.  

 
In accordance with Federal Executive Order 96-236, the Commission shall consider the employment by the 
Grantee of unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 274A(e) of the Immigration and Nationalization 
Act.  Such violation shall be cause for unilateral cancellation of this Agreement if the Grantee knowingly 
employs unauthorized aliens. 

 
33. EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION (E-VERIFY). 

 
A. Requirement to Use E-Verify.  Executive Order 11-116, signed May 27, 2011, by the Governor 

of Florida, requires Commission contracts in excess of nominal value to expressly require the 
Grantee to:  1.)  utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the 
employment eligibility of all new employees hired by Grantee during the Agreement term; and, 2.) 
include in all subcontracts under this Agreement, the requirement that subcontractors performing 
work or providing services pursuant to this Agreement utilize the E-Verify system to verify the 
employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the subcontractor during the term of the 
subcontract. 

 
B. E-Verify Online.  E-Verify is an Internet-based system that allows an employer, using information 

reported on an employee’s Form I-9, Employment Eligibility Verification, to determine the 
eligibility of all new employees hired to work in the United States after the effective date of the 
required Memorandum of Understanding (MOU); the responsibilities and elections of federal 
contractors, however, may vary, as stated in Article II.D.1.c. of the MOU.  There is no charge to 
employers to use E-Verify.  The Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system can be found 
online at http://www.dhs.gov/files/programs/gc_1185221678150.shtm 

 
C. Enrollment in E-Verify.  If Grantee does not have an E-Verify MOU in effect, the Grantee must 

enroll in the E-Verify system prior to hiring any new employee after the effective date of this 
Agreement. 

 
D. E-Verify Recordkeeping.  The Grantee further agrees to maintain records of its participation and 

compliance with the provisions of the E-Verify program, including participation by its 
subcontractors as provided above, and to make such records available to the Commission or other 
authorized state entity consistent with the terms of the Grantee’s enrollment in the program.  This 
includes maintaining a copy of proof of the Grantee’s and subcontractors’ enrollment in the E-
Verify Program (which can be accessed from the “Edit Company Profile” link on the left navigation 
menu of the E-Verify employer’s homepage). 

 
E. Employment Eligibility Verification.  Compliance with the terms of the Employment Eligibility 

Verification provision is made an express condition of this Agreement and the Commission may 
treat a failure to comply as a material breach of the Agreement. 

 

374

X.

http://www.dhs.gov/files/programs/gc_1185221678150.shtm


FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY  June 2019                                     Page 19 of 20 

 
 
 
34. FORCE MAJEURE AND NOTICE OF DELAY FROM FORCE MAJEURE.  

 
Neither Party shall be liable to the other for any delay or failure to perform under this Agreement if such 
delay or failure is neither the fault nor the negligence of the Party or its employees or agents and the delay 
is due directly to acts of God, wars, acts of public enemies, strikes, fires, floods, or other similar cause 
wholly beyond the Party’s control, or for any of the foregoing that affects subcontractors or suppliers if no 
alternate source of supply is available.  However, in the event of delay from the foregoing causes, the Party 
shall take all reasonable measures to mitigate any and all resulting delay or disruption in the Party’s 
performance obligation under this Agreement. If the delay is excusable under this paragraph, the delay will 
not result in any additional charge or cost under the Agreement to either Party.  In the case of any delay the 
Grantee believes is excusable under this paragraph, Grantee shall notify the Commission’s Grant Manager 
in writing of the delay or potential delay and describe the cause of the delay either:  (1) within ten (10) 
calendar days after the cause that creates or will create the delay first arose, if Grantee could reasonably 
foresee that a delay could occur as a result; or (2) within five (5) calendar days after the date Grantee first 
had reason to believe that a delay could result, if the delay is not reasonably foreseeable.  THE 
FOREGOING SHALL CONSTITUTE GRANTEE’S SOLE REMEDY OR EXCUSE WITH 
RESPECT TO DELAY.  Providing notice in strict accordance with this paragraph is a condition precedent 
to such remedy.  The Commission, in its sole discretion, will determine if the delay is excusable under this 
paragraph and will notify Grantee of its decision in writing.  No claim for damages, other than for an 
extension of time, shall be asserted against the Commission.  Grantee shall not be entitled to an increase in 
the Agreement price or payment of any kind from the Commission for direct, indirect, consequential, 
impact, or other costs, expenses or damages, including but not limited to costs of acceleration or inefficiency 
arising because of delay, disruption, interference, or hindrance from any cause whatsoever.  If performance 
is suspended or delayed, in whole or in part, due to any of the causes described in this paragraph, after the 
causes have ceased to exist, Grantee shall perform at no increased cost, unless the Commission determines, 
in its sole discretion, that the delay will significantly impair the value of the Agreement to the Commission 
or the State, in which case, the Commission may do any or all of the following:  (1) accept allocated 
performance or deliveries from Grantee, provided that Grantee grants preferential treatment to the 
Commission with respect to products or services  subjected to allocation; (2) purchase from other sources 
(without recourse to and by Grantee for the related costs and expenses) to replace all or part of the products 
or services that are the subject of the delay, which purchases may be deducted from the Agreement quantity; 
or (3) terminate the Agreement in whole or in part. 
 

35. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE.  
 
Time is of the essence regarding the performance obligations set forth in this Agreement. Any additional 
deadlines for performance for Grantee’s obligation to timely provide deliverables under this Agreement 
including but not limited to timely submittal of reports, are contained in the Scope of Work, Attachment A.  

 
36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  

 
This Agreement with all incorporated attachments and exhibits represents the entire Agreement of the 
Parties.  Any alterations, variations, changes, modifications or waivers of provisions of this Agreement 
shall only be valid when they have been reduced to writing, and duly signed by each of the Parties hereto, 
unless otherwise provided herein.  In the event of conflict, the following order of precedence shall prevail; 
this Agreement and its attachments, the terms of the solicitation and the Grantee’s response to the 
solicitation.  
 
 

375

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 

GRANT - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY June 2019          Page 20 of 20 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed through their 
duly authorized signatories on the day and year last written below. 

Franklin County Board of Commissioners 

______________________________________ 
Signature 

Name: ________________________________ 

Title: _________________________________ 

Date: _________________________________ 

Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation 
Commission 

______________________________________ 
Executive Director (or designee) 

Name: ________________________________ 

Title: _________________________________ 

Date: _________________________________ 

Approved as to form and legality: 

__________________________________________ 
FWC Attorney Signature 

Attachments in this Agreement include the following: 

Attachment A Scope of Work  
Attachment B Requirements of the Federal and Florida Single Audit Acts 
Attachment C Federal Aid Compliance Requirements 
Attachment D Cost Reimbursement Contract Payment Requirements 
Attachment E Certification Regarding Debarment/Suspension for Subcontracts 
Attachment     F Certification of Completion 

/s/ Quilla Miralia

376

X.



Attachment A – SCOPE OF WORK 

Project Name: Franklin County 
Artificial Reef Construction 2020-21 

FWC Agreement No.  20011 

 

Version 1.0 – June 2013  Attachment A, Page 1 of 12 
 

1. DESCRIPTION OF GOODS / SERVICES PROCURED, OR PROJECT WORKPLAN 
 

A. DESCRIPTION OF GOODS / SERVICES 
 
The objective of this activity is to construct a marine artificial reef complex by deploying at 
least 25 pre-fabricated concrete modules at least four feet tall creating three patch reef within 
the Buddy Ward permitted area. Each module will be placed at designated locations within the 
boundaries of the permitted area at a depth of 42 feet. 

The artificial reef construction activity to be funded consists of the following elements: 

MATERIALS 

1. Artificial reef materials must consist of a total of at least 25 pre-fabricated concrete 
artificial reef modules, or other concrete structures acceptable to the COMMISSION. 
All modules must be at least four (4) feet tall with a base diameter of at least six (6) 
feet and weigh at least two (2) tons.  
 

2. Pre-fabricated modules must be composed of marine grade concrete with a minimum 
strength of 4,000 pounds per square inch (psi). Pre-fabricated modules shall consist of 
concrete with no exposed metal framework. Pre-fabricated modules will be designed 
with multiple openings of various sizes all the way through the outer surface to allow 
for water circulation and access by fish. 
 

3. Open-bottom pre-fabricated reef modules may not be used unless the module has a top 
opening sufficiently large to allow for turtle escapement. Approved open-bottom 
modules include: 
a. Three-sided modules where each side of the top opening is at least 36-in in length 

along its edge. 
b. Four or more sided modules where each side of the top opening is at least 40-in 

in length along its edge. 
c. Modules with a round opening with a diameter of at least 40-in (oval openings 

are not allowed unless a 40-in diameter circle space can fit within the oval). 
d. Modules that are approved by the COMMISSION as being turtle friendly. 
 

4. No open-bottom modules are allowed that include additional modules, discs, or other 
materials stacked, placed on or immediately adjacent to the top opening, as they may 
prevent turtles from easily escaping. 
 

5. All artificial reef materials shall be clean and free from dirt, asphalt, creosote, 
petroleum, or other hydrocarbons and toxic residues, loose free floating material or 
other deleterious substances. 

 
6. The GRANTEE shall evaluate the structural integrity of each pre-fabricated module 

proposed for use, and shall eliminate from artificial reef material consideration all 
badly damaged modules that would be prone to break apart during the transport and/or 
deployment process.  

 

377

X.



Attachment A – SCOPE OF WORK 

Project Name: Franklin County 
Artificial Reef Construction 2020-21 

FWC Agreement No.  20011 

 

Version 1.0 – June 2013  Attachment A, Page 2 of 12 
 

7. For each barge load of artificial reef materials, the GRANTEE shall inventory all of 
the artificial reef materials, calculate the tonnage (either using before and after barge 
draft calculations, trucking receipts, or the known weights of individual pieces or reef 
modules), and take a representative photograph of the artificial reef material on the 
barge or other deployment vessel immediately prior to deployment. 
 

8. The GRANTEE must develop for the purpose of tracking each module placement a 
system of unique module identifiers.  For example, one such system could consist of 
unique alpha numeric lettering spray painted or otherwise obviously displayed on each 
unit. The purpose of this system is to allow for visual identification of these units 
underwater during initial post deployment module condition and orientation visual 
assessments. 

 
9. Units must be capable of being deployed in an upright position on the seafloor. Any 

lifting lines or straps used during deployment must be temporary and removed by the 
GRANTEE prior to reimbursement. 
 

10. Reimbursement for loading, transporting and deploying the materials will be based on 
cost per unit basis. Materials that are placed within the boundaries of the permitted 
area, completely intact and in an upright position will be reimbursed at the full unit 
cost. Materials that are damaged during loading, transport or deployment operations 
will be reimbursed based on the liquidated damage schedule (if applicable) listed in 
the bid specifications provided by the GRANTEE and approved by the 
COMMISSION. 

 
11. The GRANTEE agrees to allow the COMMISSION to conduct on-site inspections 

of the artificial reef materials before, during, and after the deployment.  
 

LOADING AND TRANSPORTATION  

12. Artificial reef materials will be loaded using a suitable means of conveyance for 
transportation to a staging area site and loading onto a barge or other suitable vessel 
for offshore transportation to the designated artificial reef site. Offshore transportation 
shall be provided by a sufficiently powered transport or towing vessel, and shall 
include the necessary personnel and equipment to safely transport and deploy the reef 
material. Reef material loaded on to the transporting vessel must be properly secured 
in compliance with Coast Guard standards to allow for its safe transport to the reef 
construction site.  
 

13. The GRANTEE's Project Manager shall complete the FWC Artificial Reef Cargo 
Manifest form to be maintained onboard the vessel at all times during transport of 
materials, pursuant to Chapter 379.249, F.S. The form is available on the 
COMMISSION’s website: http://www.myfwc.com/artificialreefs. 

 
DEPLOYMENT AND MATERIALS PLACEMENT 

14. During the deployment of the artificial reef material, the transport vessel must be 
securely in place with minimal movement (<50 feet) to ensure accurate placement of 

378

X.

http://www.myfwc.com/conservation/saltwater/artificial-reefs/


Attachment A – SCOPE OF WORK 

Project Name: Franklin County 
Artificial Reef Construction 2020-21 

FWC Agreement No.  20011 

 

Version 1.0 – June 2013  Attachment A, Page 3 of 12 
 

each concrete module on the bottom. Material must be arranged to provide habitat 
complexity as well as provide sand bottom forage area opportunities.  
 

15. Any machinery used to move and deploy the reef materials should be sufficiently 
powered/maneuverable and capably operated to ensure timely, effective and safe off-
loading of materials. The tug or transport vessel shall meet all U.S. Coast Guard 
certification and safety requirements, be equipped with a working, accurate Global 
Positioning System (GPS) unit and other marine electronics including a working VHF 
radio. Effective and reliable communications shall exist at all times between the 
transport vessel, and the designated GRANTEE observer on site.                                                                        
 

16. Deployment operations will only be initiated when sea height in the operations area is 
no greater than two to four feet as forecast by the nearest NOAA weather office. Either 
the COMMISSION’S observer, the GRANTEE's observer or the subcontractor’s 
vessel captain reserves the right to suspend off-loading operations if positioning and 
other deployment objectives, including safety of personnel and equipment, are not 
being met.  
 

17. At least 25 pre-fabricated reef modules under this Agreement will strategically placed 
to create three patch reefs within the Buddy Ward permitted area at the coordinates 
listed in Table 1. Pre-fabricated reef modules will be carefully spaced at least ten feet 
apart and no more than 50 feet apart to avoid potential damage while still providing 
one cohesive patch reef. 

 
Table 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18. The minimum vertical clearance of 25 feet shall be maintained above the highest point 
of the reef material in the Buddy Ward permitted site (in accordance with the special 
conditions of the US Army Corps of Engineers permit number SAJ-2018-02268.  
 

19. The GRANTEE shall provide a bottom survey for COMMISSION review and 
approval at least 14 days prior to deployment. The bottom survey must be a visual site 
survey completed by certified SCUBA divers. The entire extent of the proposed patch 
reef area(s) must be surveyed during the dive(s). The GRANTEE will submit a 
narrative of the survey methods, results and photo documentation of the bottom.  
 

20. The GRANTEE's Contract Manager or GRANTEE's designated official observer 
shall oversee the temporary marking of the reef deployment location in advance of reef 
materials deployment in order to assist the subcontractor in the proper placement of 
the artificial reef materials. The marker(s) shall be buoys of sufficient size and color to 
be clearly visible to the tug captain, and sufficiently anchored and with sufficient scope 

Patch Reef # Latitude Longitude  
1 29˚ 29.144’N 84˚ 56.031’W 
2 29˚ 29.144’N 84˚ 55.763’W 
3 29˚ 29.144’N 84˚ 55.494’W 

379

X.



Attachment A – SCOPE OF WORK 

Project Name: Franklin County 
Artificial Reef Construction 2020-21 

FWC Agreement No.  20011 

 

Version 1.0 – June 2013  Attachment A, Page 4 of 12 
 

so that they will not drift off the designated deployment site prior to deployment. The 
COMMISSION will not pay for materials placed outside the permit area as described 
above. Precise GPS placement of marker buoys that do not shift position with time are 
important to ensure the reef is constructed within the permitted area. 
 

21. The GRANTEE's Project Manager or GRANTEE's designated official observer shall 
remain on site during the entire deployment phase of the operation and confirm the 
GPS coordinates of the individual placements as well as the maximum vertical relief 
of the constructed reefs using a fathometer after the reef construction has been 
completed. 
 

22. Both the GRANTEE and its subcontractor shall have on site current nautical charts of 
the deployment area, with the permitted site indicated on the chart. The proposed patch 
reef coordinates and the corner coordinates of the reef site will also be in possession of 
the GRANTEE's observer and the subcontractor when on site. The GRANTEE's 
observer shall also be in possession of a copy of the Army Corps permit for the area 
where the deployments are taking place. The GRANTEE shall be responsible for 
ensuring that all permit condition terms are complied with. 
 

23. Both the GRANTEE and its subcontractor shall be prepared to remove any floating 
debris that might occur during deployment. Having boat hooks, dip nets, and other 
equipment on board to enable efficient collection of unanticipated floating debris is 
strongly encouraged. The GRANTEE shall be responsible for ensuring that any 
floating debris discovered during deployment operations (e.g., wood, floating line, 
aluminum cans, plastic bottles, or other floating materials) shall be collected and 
transported back to land for proper disposal.  
 

ALLOWABLE EXPENDITURES ASSOCIATED WITH THE REEF PROJECT 

24. Funds from this Agreement may be expended on the activities listed pursuant to 
Chapter 68E-9.004(1)(a), F.A.C. No more than $5,000 or 10% (whichever is less) of 
project funds granted under the program may be expended for ‘engineering services’. 
Any funds required in excess of this amount must be provided by the applicant. See 
Chapter 68E-9.004(1)(a), F.A.C. for the definition of ‘engineering services’ and 
complete list of eligible materials and activities. 
 

25. If the GRANTEE chooses to conduct a post-deployment SCUBA assessment at the 
deployment location(s) (post-deployment assessment is not required, but is an eligible 
activity for reimbursement under Chapter 68E-9.004(1)(a), F.A.C.), in order to be 
eligible for reimbursement, work must be completed within the current grant period 
and the following items, at a minimum, must be included: 
a. Methods: name and type of vessel, anchored or live boated, type of GPS unit(s), 

divers, survey methods; 
b. Conditions: cloud cover, wind speed and direction, sea conditions, visibility, water 

temperature, currents; 
c. Chronology: dive plan, start and end of each dive, dive profile, maximum depth, 

dive time, distance and bearing searched; 
d. Coordinates: Describe the GPS unit(s) used to navigate to the site (model number). 

Describe whether differential or WAAS coordinates were recorded. Compare the 

380

X.



Attachment A – SCOPE OF WORK 

Project Name: Franklin County 
Artificial Reef Construction 2020-21 

FWC Agreement No.  20011 

 

Version 1.0 – June 2013  Attachment A, Page 5 of 12 
 

dive locations to deployment location numbers. How well do they match the 
published numbers? 

e. Physical observations: Describe the number and size of material observed. What 
is the proximity of concrete pieces or modules to each other? What percent material 
was damaged or partially damaged? What is the maximum and minimum relief of 
the site? How do these observations compare to the Material Placement Report 
Form information submittal? 

f. Footprint area: Measure the approximate total area covered by each patch reef 
through standard in situ survey practices. 

g. Biological observations: Describe any fish observed, or other general biological 
observations. 

h. Video and photographs: Provide representative still and/or video footage of each 
deployment location (digital format preferred when available). 

 

LIABILITY AND RESPONSIBILITY FOR REEF MATERIALS 

26. Upon initiation of the handling and movement of these artificial reef materials by the 
GRANTEE's subcontractor, all liability, risk of loss and responsibility for the safe 
handling, storage, transportation and deployment of the materials shall be borne by the 
subcontractor. This liability, assumption of risk and responsibility shall remain with 
the subcontractor until the materials are deployed at the permitted reef site in 
accordance with the specifications in this Agreement. 

 
B. BACKGROUND  

 
Chapter 379.249 F.S. creates the Florida Artificial Reef Program to enhance saltwater 
opportunities and to promote proper management of fisheries resources associated with 
artificial reefs for the public interest. Under the program, the COMMISSION may provide 
grants and financial and technical assistance to coastal local governments, state universities, 
and nonprofit corporations qualified under s. 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code for the 
siting and development of artificial reefs as well as for monitoring and evaluating such reefs 
and their recreational, economic, and biological effectiveness. Chapter 68E-9 F.A.C defines 
the procedures for submitting an application for financial assistance and criteria for allocating 
available funds. The purpose of this rule is to govern the development of state and federally 
funded artificial reefs, the review and ranking of project applications eligible for funding, and 
the administration of funds from the Florida Artificial Reef Program.  

 
This artificial reef construction project was selected for funding by the COMMISSION based 
upon ranking of competitive applications submitted to the Artificial Reef Program pursuant to 
the criteria for allocating funds described in Chapter 68E-9, F.A.C.  
 

C. SUPPORT OF COMMISSION MISSION 
 
Construction of this artificial reef will augment marine hard bottom habitat with well-planned 
stable and durable artificial reefs for purposes of providing near shore reef fish habitat, offshore 
recreational fishing and diving opportunities, reduced pressure on natural reef and hard bottom 
sites, and reduced user conflicts by providing additional recreational fishing and diving site 

381

X.



Attachment A – SCOPE OF WORK 

Project Name: Franklin County 
Artificial Reef Construction 2020-21 

FWC Agreement No.  20011 

 

Version 1.0 – June 2013  Attachment A, Page 6 of 12 
 

locations off of Florida’s coastal waters. The proposed artificial reefs will make fisheries 
resources available for the long term benefit of local Florida residents and visitors. 
 

D. DEFINITIONS 
 
The terms and abbreviations used herein shall have the meanings as defined below. 

 
i. “Artificial reef” means one or more manufactured or natural objects intentionally 

placed on the bottom in predominantly marine waters to provide conditions believed 
to be favorable in sustaining, or enhancing the spawning, breeding, feeding, or growth 
to maturity of Florida’s managed reef associated fish species as well as to increase the 
productivity of other reef community resources which support fisheries. Included in 
this definition are artificial reefs developed with one or more of the following 
additional objectives: enhancement of fishing and diving opportunities, fisheries 
research, and fisheries conservation/preservation purposes. 
 

ii. “Permitted area” means an area with discrete boundaries inside of which one or more 
artificial reefs may be located and for which all required permits and authorizations 
have been obtained. These permits and authorizations include: artificial reef permits 
issued by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection and/or the Army Corps 
of Engineers and other permits, licenses, or authorizations required by any governing 
body. 
 

iii. “Staging area” means a land-based holding area for artificial reef material where such 
material is stored and prepared for transportation to an approved artificial reef site. 

 
iv. “Prefabricated modules” means structures specifically designed and built for use as 

artificial reefs and which meet the environmental safety, durability, and stability 
requirements of this rule, as well as providing complexity and texture which are 
suitable as habitat for fishes and for colonization by encrusting marine organisms. 
 

v. “Base diameter” means the longest distance formed with a straight line between two 
edges or corners through the center of the module, when viewed from above. 
 

2. DELIVERABLES 
 

A. Deliverable #1 (Artificial Reef Construction) 
 

Construction of a marine artificial reef by deploying at least 25 pre-fabricated concrete reef 
modules within the Buddy Ward permitted area. Pre-fabricated modules will be placed in close 
proximity to each other to create three patch reef within the boundaries of the permitted area.  
 

i. Minimum Level of Performance 
 
The artificial reef must be deployed within the boundaries of the permitted area and in 
compliance with all the applicable permits and authorizations associated with the 
permitted area. At a minimum, a total of at least 25 pre-fabricated concrete reef 
modules must be deployed in accordance with the specifications in this Agreement. 

382

X.



Attachment A – SCOPE OF WORK 

Project Name: Franklin County 
Artificial Reef Construction 2020-21 

FWC Agreement No.  20011 

 

Version 1.0 – June 2013  Attachment A, Page 7 of 12 
 

 
ii. Documentation / Criteria Used as Evidence of Performance 

 
1. A Materials Placement Report shall be submitted to the COMMISSION's 

Project Manager within 30 days of field operations completion. The Materials 
Placement Report form is available on the COMMISSION’s website at 
http://www.myfwc.com/artificialreefs. The Materials Placement Report must 
have a certification signature and reflect an accurate material tonnage for the 
reef deployed as well as a detailed description of the type, number, dimensions 
and individual weights of the various sizes of reef materials deployed. This 
information may be submitted on the materials placement report in lieu of 
taking loaded and unloaded barge measurements. If accurate individual 
weights of concrete units cannot be obtained or are not known, barge 
displacement measurements are required. The GRANTEE's Project Manager 
or GRANTEE’s designee shall then record the waterline length, width and 
draft (to the nearest inch) of the loaded barge at all four (4) corners to calculate 
the average displacement of water due to the weight of the artificial reef 
materials. The same barge measurements must be taken by either the 
GRANTEE's Project Manager or GRANTEE’s designee when the barge 
returns to shore after the deployment has been completed. These 
measurements may not be taken while the barge is offshore at the deployment 
site. The barge measurements are to be included in the Materials Placement 
Report.  
 

2. A table providing coordinates for each deployed module is required and is to 
be attached to the Material Placement Report. Coordinates can be reported by 
the contracted vendor during deployment or by the GRANTEE during post-
deployment monitoring. 
 

3. A final written field assessment providing the designated observer's narrative, 
for each day of the reef deployment operations, is required prior to 
reimbursement.  The field report shall include a written chronology and 
narrative describing the deployment, and a performance evaluation of the 
marine subcontractors who performed the work. The final field assessment 
should include photos of the material and loaded barge prior to each 
deployment and, if available, underwater photographs and video footage 
(surface and/or underwater). 
 

iii. Timeline for Completion 
 
All artificial reef construction must be completed by August 1, 2021. A one-time short 
term time extension of up to thirty (30) days (through the Agreement end date of 
August 31, 2021) may be authorized in writing by the COMMISSION’s Contract 
Manager under the following conditions: a) documented hazardous weather and sea 
conditions do not allow for the safe deployment of reef materials offshore or, b) 
unanticipated documented equipment malfunction on the transport vessel or 
accompanying tug or at the shore-side loading area results in an unexpected short term 
delay. The COMMISSION reserves the right to deny any time extension request if 

383

X.

http://www.myfwc.com/artificialreefs


Attachment A – SCOPE OF WORK 

Project Name: Franklin County 
Artificial Reef Construction 2020-21 

FWC Agreement No.  20011 

 

Version 1.0 – June 2013  Attachment A, Page 8 of 12 
 

sufficient progress has not been accomplished. Advance planning that avoids 
dependence on a favorable weather window during the final days of the project is 
strongly encouraged. All request for bid packages from the GRANTEE to 
subcontractors must include language that specifies a completion date that ensures all 
materials will be in the water by August 1, 2021. Subcontracts with completion dates 
even earlier than August 1, 2021 to provide an additional buffer are strongly 
encouraged. 

 
3. FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES 

 
A. If the GRANTEE fails to complete construction in compliance with the permit conditions or 

in accordance with the time frame and minimum level of performance specified by the Scope 
of Work. The percentage deducted from the total reimbursement will be the proportion of 
incomplete units (number of units not completed divided by the total number of proposed 
units).  
 

B. The GRANTEE will not be eligible for reimbursement until all reports have been provided to 
the satisfaction of the COMMISSION documenting that all work has been completed in 
accordance with the Scope of Work, and in compliance with all permit conditions. 

 
4. PERFORMANCE  

 
A. The GRANTEE shall submit to the COMMISSION, at no less than 60 day intervals beginning 

from the date of execution of this agreement, written or electronically transmitted progress 
reports outlining the progress of the project. The progress report shall identify any problems 
that may have arisen and actions taken to correct such problems, and include construction 
activities that have occurred since the last report and construction activities planned until the 
next report.   

 
B. The GRANTEE agrees to provide the COMMISSION with a minimum of five (5) days’ 

notice and continuous notification as each deployment date approaches for any artificial reef 
construction that occurs as a result of this Agreement. 
 

C. The GRANTEE agrees to follow all provisions of Section 379.249, F.S. and Chapter 68E-9, 
F.A.C. during the term of this Agreement. 
 

D. The GRANTEE agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, rules 
and regulations in providing goods or services to the COMMISSION under the terms of this 
Agreement; including the general and special conditions specified in any permits issued by the 
Department of the Army, Corps of Engineers and/or the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection. The GRANTEE further agrees to include this as a separate provision in all 
subcontracts issued as a result of this Agreement. 

 
E. If prehistoric or historic artifacts, such as pottery or ceramics, projectile points, dugout canoes, 

metal implements, historic building material, or any other physical remains that could be 
associated with Native American, early European, or American settlement are encountered at 
any time within the project site area, the permitted project shall cease all activities involving 

384

X.



Attachment A – SCOPE OF WORK 

Project Name: Franklin County 
Artificial Reef Construction 2020-21 

FWC Agreement No.  20011 

 

Version 1.0 – June 2013  Attachment A, Page 9 of 12 
 

subsurface disturbance in the immediate vicinity of the discovery. The applicant shall contact 
the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources, Compliance Review Section 
at (850)245-6333. Project activities shall not resume without verbal and/or written 
authorization. In the event that unmarked human remains are encountered during the permitted 
activities, all work shall stop immediately and the proper authorities notified in accordance 
with Section 872.05, F.S. 
 

F. Funds from this Agreement may not be expended on salaries, training, or parts replacement or 
repairs to rented or contractor owned equipment. Documentation of expenses and survey 
reports must be submitted with the closeout package in order for reimbursement to be made. 

 
G. The GRANTEE agrees to acknowledge the role of the Federal Aid in Sport Fish Restoration 

Program funding in any publicity related to this Agreement. 
 

5. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT 
 

A. COST REIMBURSEMENT 
 
The GRANTEE shall be compensated for a maximum of $60,000.00 on a cost reimbursement 
basis in accordance with the Cost Reimbursement Contract Payment Requirements as shown 
in the Department of Financial Services, “Reference Guide for State Expenditures” publication. 
The cost reimbursement requirements section of the Reference Guide is attached hereto and 
made a part hereof as Attachment D. The GRANTEE shall provide a minimum matching 
contribution as specified in Attachment B, Exhibit 1 and item 14(c) Federal Funds.  
 

B. INVOICE SCHEDULE 
 
A single final invoice may be submitted after completion of the deliverable and must be 
received by the COMMISSION no later than October 15, 2021 to assure availability of funds 
for payment. A timely reimbursement request following completion of actual field operations 
is strongly encouraged.  
 

C. TRAVEL EXPENSES 
 
No travel expenses are authorized under the terms of this Agreement. 
 

D. FORMS AND DOCUMENTATION 
 
1. The GRANTEE shall submit a completed Materials Placement Report form along with 

the invoice and request for payment. The Materials Placement Report form is available 
on the COMMISSION’s website at: http://www.myfwc.com/artificialreefs. 
 

6. MONITORING SCHEDULE 
 

A. The GRANTEE agrees to allow the COMMISSION to conduct on-site inspections of the 
artificial reef materials, staging area and construction site before, during, and after the 
deployment. 

 

385

X.

http://www.myfwc.com/artificialreefs


Attachment A – SCOPE OF WORK 

Project Name: Franklin County 
Artificial Reef Construction 2020-21 

FWC Agreement No.  20011 

 

Version 1.0 – June 2013  Attachment A, Page 10 of 12 
 

B. The COMMISSION will monitor the GRANTEE’s service delivery to determine if the 
GRANTEE has achieved the required level of performance. If the COMMISSION in its sole 
discretion determines that the GRANTEE failed to meet any of the terms or conditions of the 
Agreement, the GRANTEE will be sent a formal written notice. The GRANTEE shall correct 
all identified deficiencies within forty-five (45) days of notice.  Failure to achieve 100% 
compliance with all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement or failure to correct the 
deficiencies identified in a notice identifying deficiencies within the time frame specified may 
result in delays in payment, financial consequences, or termination of this Agreement in 
accordance with the terms of the Agreement. 

 
C. No additional monitoring activities have been identified at this time; however, additional tasks 

may be identified during the pendency of this agreement. 
 

7. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS 

See Agreement for applicable terms and conditions related to the intellectual property rights. 

8. SUBCONTRACTS 
 
See Agreement for applicable terms and conditions related to subcontracts. 
 

9. INSURANCE 
 
See Agreement for applicable terms and conditions related to insurance. 
 

10. SECURITY AND CONFIDENTIALITY 
 
See Agreement for applicable terms and conditions related to security and confidentiality. 

 
11. RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENTS 

 
See Agreement for applicable terms and conditions related to record keeping requirements. 

 
12. NON-EXPENDABLE PROPERTY 

 
The GRANTEE is not authorized to use funds provided herein for the purchase of any non-expendable 
equipment or personal property valued at $1,000 or more for performance under this Agreement. 
 

13. PURCHASE OR IMPROVEMENT OF REAL PROPERTY 
 
This Section is not applicable and intentionally left blank. 
 

14. SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR CONSTRUCTON CONTRACTS 
 

A. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE  
 
Pursuant to Section 440.102(15), F.S., any construction contractor regulated under Parts I and 
II of Chapter 489, F.S., who contracts to perform construction work under a state contract shall 
implement a drug-free workplace. 

386

X.



Attachment A – SCOPE OF WORK 

Project Name: Franklin County 
Artificial Reef Construction 2020-21 

FWC Agreement No.  20011 

 

Version 1.0 – June 2013  Attachment A, Page 11 of 12 
 

 
 

B. CONTRACTOR ELIGIBILITY 
 

1. The use of a Marine Specialty licensed contractor (Section 489.105, F.S) is not a 
requirement for professional services pertaining to artificial reef deployment activities 
during this Agreement.  A Marine Specialty Contractor license (Chapter 61G4-15.033 
Florida Administrative Code) does not include artificial reefs, and therefore is not a 
licensing requirement for artificial reef deployment. 
 

2. The Consultants Competitive Negotiation Act (Section 287.055, F.S.) is not applicable for 
professional services pertaining to artificial reef planning, procurement, deployment or  
survey activities during this Agreement. Signed and sealed drawings are not required. 

 
3. In accordance with Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, the GRANTEE 

shall agree and certify that neither it, nor its principals, is presently debarred, suspended, 
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in 
this transaction by any Federal department or agency; and, that the GRANTEE shall not 
knowingly enter into any lower tier agreement, or other covered transaction, with a person 
who is similarly debarred or suspended from participating in this covered transaction, 
unless authorized in writing to the COMMISSION by the federal agency issuing the grant 
award.  Upon execution of subcontracts funded by this Agreement, the GRANTEE shall 
require subcontractors to complete, sign and return a copy of the form entitled 
"Certification Regarding Debarments, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 
Exclusion - Lower Tier Federally Funded Transactions", attached hereto and made a part 
hereof as Attachment E.  As required by sentences 1 and 2 above, the GRANTEE shall 
include the language of this section, and Attachment E in all subcontracts or lower tier 
agreements executed to support the GRANTEE's work under this Agreement. 

 
C. FEDERAL FUNDS 

 
1. This Agreement is funded in whole or in part by a grant from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 

Service, Federal Aid in Sport Fish Restoration Program, CFDA No. 15.605. Therefore, the 
GRANTEE shall be responsible for complying with all federal grant requirements as 
provided in the grant, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof as 
Attachment C.  It is understood and agreed that the GRANTEE is not authorized to expend 
any federal funds under this Agreement to a federal agency or employee without the prior 
written approval of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 

 
2. The Davis-Bacon Act is not applicable to subcontracts executed under this Agreement. 

This project is funded by the Dingell-Johnson Sport Fish Restoration Act which does not 
require implementation of the provision of the Davis-Bacon Act as the initial federal award 
to the COMMISSION was exempt from the Davis-Bacon Act conditions. 
 

3. The GRANTEE agrees to follow all requirements of CFR 200, Code of Federal 
Regulations, for the procurement of commodities or contractual services under this 
Agreement.  

 

387

X.



Attachment A – SCOPE OF WORK 

Project Name: Franklin County 
Artificial Reef Construction 2020-21 

FWC Agreement No.  20011 

 

Version 1.0 – June 2013  Attachment A, Page 12 of 12 
 

4. The GRANTEE shall be required to provide a minimum matching contribution of 
$10,000.00 of the total project costs in support of the COMMISSION’s grant from the 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 
 

5. The COMMISSION shall make payment to the GRANTEE for an amount of the total 
project eligible cost less the $10,000.00 match, not to exceed $60,000.00 of approved 
invoiced costs. The $10,000.00 of invoice costs not reimbursed by the COMMISSION 
shall represent the GRANTEE’s matching contribution as required by the 
COMMISSION’s grant from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.  
 

D. PAYMENT BOND 
 
Pursuant to Chapter 287, F.S., no payment or surety bond is required for this project.   
 

E. PERFORMANCE BOND 

Pursuant to Chapter 287, F.S., no performance bond is required for this project. 

F. CERTIFICATE OF CONTRACT COMPLETION 

The Grantee will be required to complete a Certificate of Completion form (Attachment F) 
when all work has been completed and accepted. This form must be submitted to the 
COMMISSION’s Contract Manager with the GRANTEE’s invoice for payment to be 
authorized. The COMMISSION’s Contract Manager shall submit the executed form with the 
invoice to Accounting Services. 

G. CERTIFICATE OF PARTIAL PAYMENT 

This Section is not applicable and intentionally left blank. 

H. GRANTEE PAYMENTS TO SUBCONTRACTOR 

Grant Agreement No. 20019, Section 15, B, “Grantee Payments to Subcontractor” is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

If subcontracting is permitted pursuant to Section 15, Paragraph A, the GRANTEE agrees to 
make payments to the subcontractor upon completion of work and submitted invoice in 
accordance with the contract between the GRANTEE and subcontractor. Failure to make 
payment pursuant to any subcontract within thirty (30) working days will result in a penalty 
charged against GRANTEE and paid to the subcontractor in the amount of one-half of one 
percent (0.50%) of the amount due per day from the expiration of the thirty (30) working day 
period allowed herein for payment. Such penalty shall be in addition to actual payments owed 
and shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the outstanding balance due. 

 
The remainder of this page intentionally left blank. 

 

388

X.



Department of Financial Services 
Division of Accounting and Auditing – Bureau of Auditing 

ATTACHMENT B 
AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR AWARDS OF 

STATE AND FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

DFS-A2-CL Attachment B, Page -1- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

 
Note:  Rule Chapter 69I-5, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), State Financial Assistance, incorporates this form as well 
as the regulations cited therein by reference in Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C.  Rule 69I-5.001, F.A.C., incorporates 2 CFR Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, including Subpart F - 
Audit Requirements, 2018 Edition, and its related Appendix XI, Compliance Supplement, April 2017 and April 2018.  The 
form and regulations can be accessed via the Department of Financial Services’ website at https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/. 

 
The administration of resources awarded by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission to the 
grantee may be subject to audits and/or monitoring by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation 
Commission, as described in this section.  

MONITORING 

In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements, 
and section 215.97, Florida Statutes (F.S.), as revised (see AUDITS below), monitoring procedures may 
include, but not be limited to, on-site visits by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 
staff, limited scope audits as defined by 2 CFR §200.425, or other procedures.  By entering into this 
agreement, the grantee agrees to comply and cooperate with any monitoring procedures or processes 
deemed appropriate by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission.  In the event the Florida 
Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission determines that a limited scope audit of the grantee is 
appropriate, the grantee agrees to comply with any additional instructions provided by the Florida Fish and 
Wildlife Conservation Commission staff to the grantee regarding such audit.  The grantee further agrees to 
comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations, or audits deemed necessary by the 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) or Auditor General. 

AUDITS 

Part I:  Federally Funded 

This part is applicable if the grantee is a state or local government or a nonprofit organization as defined in 
2 CFR §200.90, §200.64, and §200.70. 

1. A grantee that expends $750,000 or more in federal awards in its fiscal year must have a single or 
program-specific audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit 
Requirements.  EXHIBIT 1 to this form lists the federal resources awarded through the Florida Fish 
and Wildlife Conservation Commission by this agreement. In determining the federal awards 
expended in its fiscal year, the grantee shall consider all sources of federal awards, including federal 
resources received from the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission.  The determination 
of amounts of federal awards expended should be in accordance with the guidelines established in 2 
CFR §§200.502-503.  An audit of the grantee conducted by the Auditor General in accordance with 
the provisions of 2 CFR §200.514 will meet the requirements of this Part. 

2. For the audit requirements addressed in Part I, paragraph 1, the grantee shall fulfill the requirements 
relative to auditee responsibilities as provided in 2 CFR §§200.508-512. 

3. A grantee that expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year is not required to have 
an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements.  
If the grantee expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year and elects to have an 
audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements, 

389

X.



AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR AWARDS OF 
STATE AND FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

DFS-A2-CL Attachment B, Page -2- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

the cost of the audit must be paid from non-federal resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be 
paid from grantee resources obtained from other than federal entities). 

Part II:  State Funded 

Note:  This part is applicable if the grantee is a nonstate entity as defined by section 215.97(2), F.S. 

1. In the event that the grantee expends a total amount of state financial assistance equal to or in excess 
of $750,000 in any fiscal year of such grantee (for fiscal years ending June 30, 2017, and thereafter), 
the grantee must have a state single or project-specific audit for such fiscal year in accordance with 
section 215.97, F.S.; Rule Chapter 69I-5, F.A.C., State Financial Assistance; and Chapters 10.550 
(local governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the 
Auditor General.  EXHIBIT 1 to this form lists the state financial assistance awarded through the 
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission by this agreement.  In determining the state 
financial assistance expended in its fiscal year, the grantee shall consider all sources of state financial 
assistance, including state financial assistance received from the Florida Fish and Wildlife 
Conservation Commission, other state agencies, and other nonstate entities.  State financial 
assistance does not include federal direct or pass-through awards and resources received by a 
nonstate entity for federal program matching requirements. 

2. For the audit requirements addressed in Part II, paragraph 1, the grantee shall ensure that the audit 
complies with the requirements of section 215.97(8), F.S.  This includes submission of a financial 
reporting package as defined by section 215.97(2), F.S., and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental 
entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. 

3. If the grantee expends less than $750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year (for fiscal 
years ending June 30, 2017, and thereafter), an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 
section 215.97, F.S., is not required.  If the grantee expends less than $750,000 in state financial 
assistance in its fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions 
of section 215.97, F.S., the cost of the audit must be paid from the nonstate entity’s resources (i.e., the 
cost of such an audit must be paid from the grantee’s resources obtained from other than state 
entities). 

Part III:  Other Audit Requirements 

Note:  This Part should be used to specify any additional audit requirements imposed by the state awarding entity that 
are solely a matter of that state awarding entity’s policy (i.e., the audit is not required by federal or state laws and is 
not in conflict with other federal or state audit requirements).  Pursuant to section 215.97(8), F.S., state agencies may 
conduct or arrange for audits of state financial assistance that are in addition to audits conducted in accordance with 
section 215.97, F.S.  In such an event, the state awarding agency must arrange for funding the full cost of such 
additional audits. 

Part IV:  Report Submission 

1. Copies of reporting packages for audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit 
Requirements, and required by Part I of this form shall be submitted, when required by 2 CFR 
§200.512, by or on behalf of the grantee directly to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) as 
provided in 2 CFR §200.36 and §200.512. 

  The FAC’s website provides a data entry system and required forms for submitting the single audit 
reporting package.  Updates to the location of the FAC and data entry system may be found at the 
OMB website. 

2. Copies of financial reporting packages required by Part II of this form shall be submitted by or on 
behalf of the grantee directly to each of the following: 

390

X.



AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR AWARDS OF 
STATE AND FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

DFS-A2-CL Attachment B, Page -3- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

a. The Commission at each of the following addresses: 

Office of Inspector General 
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 
Bryant Building 
620 S. Meridian St. 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600 
 

b. The Auditor General’s Office at the following address: 

  Auditor General 
  Local Government Audits/342 
  Claude Pepper Building, Room 401 
  111 West Madison Street 
  Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450 

  The Auditor General’s website (https://flauditor.gov/) provides instructions for filing an 
electronic copy of a financial reporting package. 

3. Copies of reports or the management letter required by Part III of this form shall be submitted by or 
on behalf of the grantee directly to: 

  The Commission at each of the following addresses: 

Office of Inspector General 
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 
Bryant Building 
620 S. Meridian St. 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600 

 
4. Any reports, management letters, or other information required to be submitted to the Florida Fish 

and Wildlife Conservation Commission pursuant to this agreement shall be submitted timely in 
accordance with 2 CFR §200.512, section 215.97, F.S., and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental 
entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, as 
applicable. 

5. Grantees, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Florida Fish and Wildlife 
Conservation Commission for audits done in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit 
Requirements, or Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit 
organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, should indicate the date that the reporting package was 
delivered to the grantee in correspondence accompanying the reporting package. 

Part V:  Record Retention 

The grantee shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of the award(s) and 
this agreement for a period of at least five years from the date the audit report is issued, and shall allow the 
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, or its designee, the CFO, or Auditor General access 
to such records upon request.  The grantee shall ensure that audit working papers are made available to the 
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, or its designee, the CFO, or Auditor General upon 
request for a period of at least three years from the date the audit report is issued, unless extended in writing 
by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission. 

391

X.



AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR AWARDS OF 
STATE AND FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

DFS-A2-CL Attachment B, Page -4- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

Note:  Records need to be retained for at least five years to comply with record retention requirements related to 
original vouchers as prescribed by the Department of State, Division of Library and Information Services, Bureau of 
Archives and Records Management. 

  

392

X.



AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR AWARDS OF 
STATE AND FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

DFS-A2-CL Attachment B, Page -5- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

EXHIBIT 1 

Federal Resources Awarded to the Grantee 
  Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following: 

Note:  If the resources awarded to the grantee represent more than one federal program, provide the same information 
shown below for each federal program and show total federal resources awarded. 

1. Federal Program A: 

  Federal Aid in Sport Fish Restoration Program, 15.605, $32,000.00 

2. Federal Program B: 

  not applicable 

Compliance Requirements Applicable to the Federal Resources 
  Awarded Pursuant to this Agreement are as Follows: 

Note:  If the resources awarded to the grantee represent more than one federal program, list applicable compliance 
requirements for each federal program in the same manner as shown below. 

1. Federal Program A: 

A. Only the goods and/or services described within the attached Agreement and Attachment A Scope 
of Work are eligible expenditures for the funds awarded.  

B. All provisions of Section 379.249, Florida Statutes and Rule 68E-9, Florida Administrative Code 
must be complied with in order to receive funding under this Agreement.  

C. The Grantee must comply with the requirements of all applicable laws, rules or regulations relating 
to this artificial reef project. 

D. The Grantee shall be required to provide a matching contribution of the total project costs (a 
minimum of $10,000) in support of the Commission’s grant from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service. 

2. Federal Program B: 

  not applicable 

Note:  Instead of listing the specific compliance requirements as shown above, the state awarding agency may elect 
to use language that requires the grantee to comply with the requirements of applicable provisions of specific laws, 
rules, regulations, etc.  For example, for Federal Program A, the language may state that the grantee must comply 
with specific laws, rules, regulations, etc., that pertains to how the awarded resources must be used or how eligibility 
determinations are to be made.  The state awarding agency, if practical, may want to attach a copy of the specific 
laws, rules, regulations, etc., referred to. 

393

X.



AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR AWARDS OF 
STATE AND FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

DFS-A2-CL Attachment B, Page -6- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

State Resources Awarded to the Grantee 
  Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following: 

Matching Resources for Federal Programs: 

Note:  If the resources awarded to the grantee for matching represent more than one federal program, provide the 
same information shown below for each federal program and show total state resources awarded for matching. 

1. Federal Program A: 

  Federal Aid in Sport Fish Restoration Program, 15.605, $28,000.00 

2. Federal Program B: 

  not applicable 

Subject to Section 215.97, F.S.: 

Note:  If the resources awarded to the grantee represent more than one state project, provide the same information 
shown below for each state project and show total state financial assistance awarded that is subject to 
section 215.97, F.S. 

1. State Project A: 

  not applicable 

2. State Project B: 

  not applicable 

Compliance Requirements Applicable to State Resources Awarded 
  Pursuant to this Agreement Are as Follows: 

Note:  List applicable compliance requirements in the same manner as illustrated above for federal resources.  For 
matching resources provided by the Department of ABC for federal programs, the requirements might be similar to 
the requirements for the applicable federal programs.  Also, to the extent that different requirements pertain to 
different amounts of the non-federal resources, there may be more than one grouping (i.e., 1, 2, 3, etc.) listed under 
this category. 

1. State Project A: 

  not applicable 

2. State Project B: 

  not applicable 

Note:  2 CFR §200.513 and section 215.97(5), F.S., require that the information about federal programs and state 
projects included in EXHIBIT 1 be provided to the grantee. 

 

For questions regarding Form DFS-A2-CL, contact your FSAA state agency liaison or the Department of Financial 
Services, Bureau of Auditing, at FSAA@MyFloridaCFO.com or (850) 413-3060. 

 

 

394

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 
Attachment C 

 

 

Attachment C, Page 1 of 9 
 

State Grant Programs Part 523 Federal Aid Compliance Requirements 
 

Chapter 1 Summary 523 FW 1.1 
 

1.1 Purpose. The purpose of this chapter is to summarize guidance on those requirements 
generally applicable to grant programs. 

 
1.2 Applicability and Scope. In accepting Federal funds, States and other grantees must 
comply with all applicable Federal laws, regulations, and policies. This chapter is not 
all-inclusive. Exclusion of any specific requirement does not relieve grantees of their 
responsibility for compliance. Copies of reference materials can be obtained from the Regional 
Offices. Guidance on the following requirements is contained in this chapter. 
A. Nondiscrimination Requirements. 

- Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
- Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
- Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
- Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 

 
B. Environmental Requirements. 

- Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 
- Executive Order 11987, Exotic Organisms 
- Endangered Species Act of 1973 
- National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 
- Floodplains and Wetlands Protection 
- Animal Welfare Act of 1985 
- Coastal Barriers Resources Act of 1982 

 
C. Historic and Cultural Preservation Requirements. 

- National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 
 

D. Administrative Requirements. 
- Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 
- Debarment and Suspension 
- Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 
- Restrictions on Lobbying (P.L. 101-121) 

 
1.3 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000(d)). 
A. Summary. Prohibits discrimination based on race, color, or national origin in any "program 
or activity receiving Federal financial assistance." 

 
B. References. 
(1) Regulations of the Department of the Interior (43 CFR Part 17) 
(2) U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Guidelines for Compliance with Federal Nondiscrimination 
Requirements 
(3) U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Federally Assisted Program Implementation Plan 

 
C. Requirements. 
(1) Grantees may not, on the basis of race, color, or national origin, select, locate, or operate 
project facilities which will serve to exclude or limit opportunity for use or benefits. 

395

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 
Attachment C 

 

 

Attachment C, Page 2 of 9 
 

(2) Grantees shall make reasonable efforts to inform the public of opportunities provided by 
Federal Aid projects and shall inform the public that the projects are subject to Title VI 
compliance. 
(3) Though employment practices are not in themselves subject to Title VI, Title VI does apply 
to employment which may affect the delivery of services to beneficiaries of a federally assisted 
program. For the purpose of Title VI, volunteers or other unpaid persons who provide services 
to the public are included. 

 
1.4 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 795) 
A. Summary. Ensures that no qualified handicapped person shall, on the basis of handicap, be 
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under 
any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 

 
B. References. 
(1) Regulations of the Department of the Interior (43 CFR Part 17) 
(2) U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Guidelines for Compliance with Federal Nondiscrimination 
Requirements 
(3) U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Federally Assisted Program Implementation Plan 

 
C. Requirements. 
(1) Grantees may not deny a qualified handicapped person the opportunity to participate in or 
benefit from Federal Aid project facilities or services afforded to others. 
(2) Grantees may not deny a qualified handicapped person the opportunity to participate as a 
member of a planning or advisory board. 
(3) The location of facilities shall not have the effect of excluding handicapped persons from, 
deny them the benefits of, or otherwise subject them to discrimination under any Federal Aid 
project. 

 
1.5 Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101) 
A. Summary. Prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in programs or activities receiving 
Federal financial assistance. 

 
B. References. 
(1) Regulations of the Department of the Interior (43 CFR Part 17) 
(2) U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Guidelines for Compliance with Federal Nondiscrimination 
Requirements 
(3) U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Federally Assisted Program Implementation Plan 

 
C. Requirements. No person in the United States shall, on the basis of age, be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program 
or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. However, a grantee is permitted to take an 
action otherwise prohibited if the action reasonably takes into account age as a factor 
necessary to the normal operation or achievement of any statutory objective of a program or 
activity. 

 
1.6 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. 1681, et.seq.) 
A. Summary. Prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in any education program receiving 
Federal financial assistance. 

396

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 
Attachment C 

 

 

Attachment C, Page 3 of 9 
 

B. References. 
(1) Regulations of the Department of the Interior (43 CFR Part 17) 
(2) U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Guidelines for Compliance with Federal Nondiscrimination 
Requirements 

 
C. Requirements. No person in the United States shall, on the basis of sex, be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any education 
program receiving Federal financial assistance. For the purpose of Title IX, hunter education 
and aquatic education project activities are considered education programs. 

 
1.7 Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. 1451 et. seq.) 
A. Summary. The Act is intended to, "preserve, protect, develop, and where possible, to 
restore or enhance, the resources of the Nation's coastal zone..." 

 
B. References. Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15 CFR 930). 

 
C. Requirements. Federal Aid projects, which would "significantly affect the coastal zone" must 
be consistent with the approved State management programs developed under the Act. Prior to 
submitting a Grant Proposal for a project in the coastal zone of a State with an approved 
Coastal Zone Management Program, the proposed project must be reviewed for consistency 
with the management plan. Grantees may be required to submit a statement attesting to 
conformance with the Coastal Zone Management Plan. 

 
1.8 Exotic Organisms Executive Order 11987 
A. Summary. Federal agencies shall discourage the States from introducing exotic species into 
natural ecosystems of the United States. In addition, Federal agencies will restrict the use of 
Federal funds for the purpose of introducing exotic species into ecosystems outside of the 
United States. 

 
B. References. Executive Order 11987, Exotic Organisms, 42 FR 26949 (May 25, 1977) 

 
C. Requirements. 
(1) Any proposal for the introduction of an exotic species into a natural ecosystem by a State 
fish and wildlife agency must include a biological opinion from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
supporting the proposed introduction. 
(2) To obtain a biological opinion, the State agency shall provide the Regional Director with a 
written request for the opinion together with any available information including, but not limited 
to, NEPA documents, biological data, and project plans. 
(3) After receiving a biological opinion, it will be the responsibility of the State agency to adhere 
to the recommendations outlined in that opinion. 

 
1.9 Endangered Species Act of 1973 (16 U.S.C. 1531-1534). 
A. Summary. Actions funded under the Federal Aid programs must not jeopardize the 
continued existence of any endangered or threatened species, or result in the destruction or 
adverse modification of the habitat of the species. 

 
B. Reference. Section 7 Consultation Requirements, 43 FR 870 (Jan. 4, 1978). 

 
C. Requirements. The Regional Director must ensure that Federal Aid projects are not likely to 
jeopardize the continued existence of endangered or threatened species or result in the 

397

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 
Attachment C 

 

 

Attachment C, Page 4 of 9 
 

destruction or adverse modification of critical habitat. For projects which may affect an 
endangered or threatened species, either beneficially or adversely, a formal Section 7 
consultation is necessary. The State is required to name the listed species and/or critical habitat 
included; list the name, description, and location of the area; list objectives of the actions; and 
provide an explanation of the impacts of the actions on a listed species or its critical habitat. 

 
1.10 National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. 4321-4347). 
A. Summary. Requires that every proposed Federal action be examined to determine the 
effects (beneficial or adverse) it will have on the human environment and that the findings be 
considered in decisions regarding its implementation. 

 
B. References. 
(1) Regulations of the Council on Environmental Quality implementing the procedural provisions 
of NEPA, (40 CFR 1500-1508). 
(2) Departmental Manual, Environmental Quality, Part 516. 
(3) Fish and Wildlife Service Manual, National Environmental Policy Act, Part 550. 
(4) National Environmental Policy Act Handbook for Federal Aid Projects. The Assistant 
Director-Fish and Wildlife Enhancement is authorized to promulgate the National Environmental 
Policy Act Handbook for Federal Aid Projects. 

 
C. Requirements. Each action proposed for Federal funding must include an Environmental 
Assessment (EA), Environmental Impact Statement (EIS), or show that the proposed activity is 
covered by one or more categorical exclusions. For specific requirements and procedures, see 
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Handbook for Federal Aid Projects. 

 
1.11 Floodplains and Wetlands Protection. 
A. Summary. Federal Aid funds may not be used for projects affecting floodplains or wetlands 
unless there is no practical alternative outside the floodplain or wetland and only if actions are 
taken to minimize the adverse effects. 

 
B. References. 
(1) Executive Order 11988, Floodplain Management, 42 FR 26951 (May 25, 1977). 
(2) Executive Order 11990, Protection of Wetlands, 42 FR 26961 (May 25, 1977). 
(3) Department of Interior Procedures for Implementation, 520 DM 1. 
(4) Natural Resources Protection, 613 FW. 

 
C. Requirements. The Executive orders on floodplains and wetlands require Federal agencies 
to review proposed actions to ensure that there are no practical alternatives outside the 
floodplain or wetland, and to ensure that potential harm is minimized. If there are no practical 
alternatives to proposed projects in floodplains or wetlands, actions to minimize the adverse 
effects should be incorporated into the project plans. 

 
1.12 Animal Welfare Act of 1985 7 U.S.C. 2131, et seq. 
A. Summary. Requires the humane treatment of animals (exclusive of fish) used in research, 
experimentation, testing, and teaching. 

 
B. References. Regulations of the Department of Agriculture, Animal and Plant Health 
Inspection Service (APHIS), 9 CFR Parts 1, 2 and 3 (54 FR 36112 (Aug. 31, 1989). 

398

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 
Attachment C 

 

 

Attachment C, Page 5 of 9 
 

C. Requirements. Grantees who use Federal Aid funds to conduct covered management or 
research or who engage in interstate shipment of animals should contact the local Animal and 
Plant Health Inspection Service (APHIS) office for instructions. A list of the APHIS offices may 
be obtained from the Regional Offices. 

 
1.13 Coastal Barriers Resources Act of 1982 (16 U.S.C. 3501), as amended by the 
Coastal Barrier Improvement Act of 1990 (P.L. 101-591) 
A. Summary. The purpose of the Acts are "...to minimize the loss of human life, wasteful 
expenditure of Federal revenues and damage to fish and wildlife, and other natural resources 
associated with coastal barriers..." 

 
B. References. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Advisory Guidelines, 48 FR 45664 (Oct. 6, 
1983). 

 
C. Requirements. Activities conducted within a unit of the Coastal Barrier Resources System 
must meet the requirements of section 6 of the Act. Section 6 requires consultation with the 
Service, via the appropriate Regional Office. 

 
1.14 National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 16 U.S.C. 470. 
A. Summary. Federal agencies may not approve any grant unless the project is in accordance 
with national policies relating to the preservation of historical and cultural properties and 
resources. 

 
B. References. 
(1) National Register of Historic Places (36 CFR 60). 
(2) The Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974, 16 U.S.C. 469a. 
(3) Procedures for the Protection of Historic and Cultural Properties (36 CFR 800). 
(4) Determinations of Eligibility for Inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places (36 CFR 
63). 
(5) Criteria for Comprehensive Statewide Historic Surveys and Plans (36 CFR 61). 
(6) Cultural Resources Protection, 614 FW. 

 
C. Requirements. 
(1) States must consult with the State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO) for those activities 
or projects that are defined as undertakings under the National Historic Preservation Act. An 
undertaking is defined as a project, activity, or program that can result in changes in the 
character or use of properties that are listed on or potentially eligible for listing on the National 
Register of Historic Places (National Register) and located within the project's area of potential 
effect. Undertakings include new and continuing projects, activities, or programs and any of 
their elements not previously considered under Section 106 of the National Historic 
Preservation Act. 
(2) In cases where a Federal Aid project has been determined to be an undertaking, the State 
must notify the appropriate Service Regional Director for guidance on how to proceed with 
Section 106 compliance. Based on the results of the consultation between the State and SHPO, 
the Service will determine the need and level of inventory to identify historic properties that may 
be affected by the undertaking and to gather sufficient information to evaluate whether these 
properties are listed or are eligible for listing in the National Register. 
(3) Where completed inventories indicate that identified historic properties may be affected by 
the undertaking, the State shall be responsible for submitting the necessary documentation to 
the appropriate Regional Director for review. As necessary, the Service shall seek 

399

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 
Attachment C 

 

 

Attachment C, Page 6 of 9 
 

determinations of eligibility for those properties that are to be affected by the proposed activity. 
(4) If a State is advised by the SHPO that an undertaking will adversely affect a property that is 
eligible for or listed on the National Register, the State shall ask the appropriate Regional 
Director to determine measures for mitigating or avoiding impacts. This may require the 
development of a memorandum of agreement among the Service, State, and State Historic 
Preservation Officer to address specific measures that will be employed to avoid or minimize 
adverse effects to historic properties located within the area of potential effect. Adverse effects 
that may diminish the character and integrity of historic properties include 

(a) Physical destruction, damage, or alteration of all or part of the property; 
(b) Isolation of the property from or alteration of the character of the property's setting when 
that character contributes to the property's qualification for the National Register of Historic 
Places; 
(c) Introduction of visual, audible, or atmospheric elements that are out of character with the 
property or alter its setting; 
(d) Neglect of a property resulting in its deterioration or destruction; and 
(e) Transfer, lease, or sale of the historic property. 

(5) If a previously unknown property that is eligible for listing on the National Register is 
discovered at any time during the implementation period of a Federal Aid project, the Regional 
Director must be notified and all actions which may adversely effect it must be suspended. The 
Service shall provide the State with instructions on how to proceed. 

 
1.15 Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 
1970, as amended (42 U.S.C. 4601) 
A. Summary. Federal agencies may not approve any grant unless the grantee provides 
Assurances that it will comply with the Act. Prices to be paid for lands or interests in lands must 
be fair and reasonable (except when the price is fixed by law, or when the lands are to be 
acquired at public auction or by condemnation and the value determined by the court). Persons 
displaced from their homes, businesses, and farms must receive relocation services, 
compensation, and fair equitable treatment. 

 
B. References. 
(1) Department of Interior Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
Regulations (41 CFR 114-50). 
(2) Department of Transportation Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
for Federal and Federally Assisted Programs (49 CFR Part 24). 

 
C. Appraisal Requirements. 
(1) A real property owner or his designated representative must be contacted prior to making an 
appraisal and given an opportunity to accompany the appraiser during inspection of the 
property. The fact that it occurred must be documented in project files and in the appraisal 
report. 
(2) Real property must be appraised, the appraisal report reviewed, and the fair market value 
established prior to initiation of negotiations with the owner. 
(3) If the acquisition of only part of a property will leave the owner with an uneconomic remnant, 
the State or other grantee must offer to buy the whole property. The term "uneconomic 
remnant" applies only to Title III of the Act and the necessity of the acquiring agency to offer to 
purchase such a remainder or the entire property. It is not to be construed with the term 
"uneconomic unit" as it applies to the in-lieu payment of farm operations under Title II of the Act. 

400

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 
Attachment C 

 

 

Attachment C, Page 7 of 9 
 

D. Negotiation Requirements. 
(1) An owner or his designated representative must be provided, in person or by certified 
mail, a written statement of just compensation as determined in the appraisal process. Offers 
of compensation cannot be less than the approved appraisal of fair market value of such 
property. If only a portion of the owner's property is being taken and the owner is left with an 
uneconomic remnant, the agency must offer to buy the whole property. 
(2) Reimbursement to a real property owner for costs to convey a title must include 

(a) Recording fees, transfer taxes, and similar costs; 
(b) Penalty cost for prepayment of pre-existing recorded mortgage; and 
(c) Pro-rata portion of real property taxes allocable to a period subsequent to the date 
of vesting title. 

(3) All displaced persons (owners and tenants) must be provided information on their 
relocation benefits. 

 
E. Relocation Assistance to Displaced People. 
(1) A relocation plan must be prepared for displaced persons so that problems associated 
with displacement of individuals, families, businesses, farms and nonprofit organizations 
are known at an early stage in a project's development (see 49 CFR 24.205). Planning may 
involve the following 

(a) Who and what will be displaced. 
(b) The estimated number of dwellings, businesses, farms, and nonprofit 
organizations displaced, including rentals. This estimate should contain 

(i) Currently available replacement housing, businesses, farm, and organization sites; 
(ii) Approximate number of employees affected; 
(iii) Types of buildings, number, and size of rooms; 
(iv) The needs of those displaced (i.e. lifestyle); and 
(v) Type of neighborhood, distance to community facilities, church, etc. 

(c) List of comparable replacement dwellings, including rentals, available on the market 
within a 50-mile radius (specialized units may require expanding radius). When an 
adequate supply of comparable housing is not expected to be available, consideration of 
Housing of the Last Resort actions should be instituted. 
(d) Estimate of cost of replacement housing by purchase and/or rental per 
displaced person, and consideration of special needs like the elderly or 
handicapped. 
(e) Estimate of cost for moving. 

(2) Advisory Services for Displaced People. Advisory services must be provided for all 
persons occupying property to be acquired and for all persons who use such real property for 
a business or farm operation. Eligibility requirements and corresponding benefits must be 
explained to all displaced persons. Assistance must be provided to persons completing claim 
forms, obtaining moving services, and obtaining proper housing. 
(3) Payment for Relocation of Displaced Persons. Relocation expenses must be paid to a 
displaced person who purchases and occupies a replacement dwelling. Moving and 
related expenses will be provided to displaced persons residing on real property including 
those persons owning a business or a farm. All payments must comply with the 
requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies 
Act of 1970. 

 
 
 

401

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 
Attachment C 

 

 

Attachment C, Page 8 of 9 
 

1.16 Debarment and Suspension 
A. Summary. Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, directs that persons 
debarred or suspended by one Federal agency from receiving grants may not receive 
grants from any Federal agency. 

 
B. References. 
(1) Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, Feb. 18, 1986. 
(2) Department of Interior Rules, Governmentwide Debarment and 
Suspension (Nonprocurement), 43 CFR 12.100 - 12.510 

 
C. Requirements. 
(1) States and other grantees must submit the certification for Primary Covered 
Transactions (DI-1953). States certify as to their "principals", not the State agency. State 
principals are commissioners, directors, project leaders, or other persons with primary 
management or supervisory responsibilities, or a person who has a critical influence on or 
substantial control over Federal Aid projects. States may provide the certification annually. 
Other grantees must provide the certification with each Application for Federal Assistance. 
(2) States and other grantees must obtain from their subgrantees and contractors a 
certification for Lower Tier Covered Transactions (DI-1954). A certification is not required for  
small purchase procurements, currently defined as less than $25,000. These certifications 
are normally provided with an application or proposal from a subgrantee or contractor. 
(3) States and other grantees must not make any award, either by subgrant or contract, to 
any party which is debarred or suspended or is otherwise ineligible under provisions of 
Executive Order 12549. The U.S. General Services Administration maintains a list of parties 
debarred, suspended, ineligible or excluded from participation in Federal grants under the 
provision of the Executive order. A copy of this list is available, upon request, from the 
Regional Director. 

 
1.17 Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988. 
A. Summary. The Drug-Free Workplace Act requires that all grantees certify that they 
will maintain a drug-free workplace. 

 
B. References. Department of Interior Rules, Drug-Free Workplace Requirements, 43 
CFR 12.600-635. 

 
C. Requirements. Grantee organizations must 
(1) Establish (and publish) a policy that informs employees that the manufacture, 
distribution, possession, or use of a controlled substance in the workplace is prohibited; 
(2) Establish an awareness program to inform employees of the dangers of drug abuse in 
the workplace; and 

Provide a drug-free workplace certification to the Department of Interior or U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service. The forms for providing the certification are available from the Regional Director. State 
agencies may certify annually. If the State agency is covered by a consolidated certification for 
all State agencies, a copy of the consolidated certification should be submitted to the Regional 
Director. (The original is retained by the State.) Grantees other than State agencies must submit 
the certification with each Grant Agreement. 
 
 
 

402

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 
Attachment C 

 

 

Attachment C, Page 9 of 9 
 

 
 

1.18 Restrictions on Lobbying (P.L. 101-121) 
A. Summary. Prohibits the use of Federal appropriated funds for lobbying either the executive 
or legislative branches of the Federal Government in connection with a specific contract, grant, 
loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 
B. References. Department of the Interior Rules, 43 CFR Part 18, New Restrictions 
on Lobbying. 

 
C. Requirements. 

 
(1) Recipients of Federal grants are prohibited from using Federal appropriated funds, 
e.g. grants, to pay any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any Federal agency, a member of Congress, or an employee of a member 
of Congress in connection with a specific contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 
(2) Proposals for grants in excess of $100,000 must contain a certification that no part of 
the funds requested will be used for lobbying. Copies of the certification form, Form DI-
1963, can be obtained from the Regional Offices. 
(3) Recipients of grants in excess of $100,000 must file a disclosure form on lobbying 
activities conducted with other than Federal appropriated funds. Form SF-LLL and SF-LLL-
A, Continuation Sheet, shall be used for this purpose. Copies of the forms can be obtained 
from the Regional Office. 

 

403

X.



FWC Contract No. 20011 
 

Cost Reimbursement Contract Payment Requirements     April 2018 Page 1 of 1 
 

Attachment D  
 

COST REIMBURSEMENT CONTRACT PAYMENT REQUIREMENTS 
 

Pursuant to the February, 2011 Reference Guide for State Expenditures published by the Department of Financial 
Services, invoices submitted for cost reimbursement must be itemized by expenditure category as outlined in the 
apporoved contract budget. Additionally, the invoice must evidence the completion of all tasks required to be 
performed for the deliverable and must show that the provider met the minimum performance standards 
established in the contract. 
 
FWC is required to maintain the detailed supporting documentation in support of each request for cost 
reimbursement and to make it available for audit purposes. Documentation for each amount for which 
reimbursement is being claimed must indicate that the item has been paid. Check numbers may be provided in 
lieu of copies of actual checks. Each piece of documentation should clearly reflect the dates of service. Only 
expenditures for the categories in the approved contract budget may be reimbursed. These expenditures must be 
allowable (pursuant to law) and directly related to the services being provided. FWC may require more detailed 
documentation as deemed appropriate to satisfy that the terms of the contract have been met. 
 
Listed below are types and examples of supporting documentation: 
 
(1)  Salaries: A payroll register or similar documentation should be submitted.  The payroll register 

should show gross salary charges, fringe benefits, other deductions and net pay. If an 
individual for whom reimbursement is being claimed is paid by the hour, a document 
reflecting the hours worked times the rate of pay will be acceptable. 

 
(2)  Fringe Benefits: Fringe Benefits should be supported by invoices showing the amount paid on behalf of 

the employee (e.g., insurance premiums paid). If the contract specifically states that 
fringe benefits will be based on a specified percentage rather than the actual cost of fringe 
benefits, then the calculation for the fringe benefits amount must be shown. 

   
  Exception: Governmental entities are not required to provide check numbers or copies 

of checks for fringe benefits. 
 
(3)  Travel: Reimbursement for travel must be in accordance with Section 112.061, Florida Statutes, 

which includes submission of the claim on the approved State travel voucher. 
 
(4)  Other direct costs: Reimbursement will be made based on paid invoices/receipts. 
 
(5)  In-house charges: Charges which may be of an internal nature (e.g., postage, copies, etc.) may be 

reimbursed on a usage log which shows the units times the rate being charged.  The rates 
must be reasonable. 

 
(6)  Indirect costs: If the contract specifies that indirect costs will be paid based on a specified rate, then the 

calculation should be shown. 
 
For cost reimbursement contracts with another State agency (including State universities): 
 
In lieu of the detailed documentation described above, alternative documentation may be submitted to substantiate 
the costs requested to be reimbursed. This alternative documentation may be in the form of FLAIR reports or other 
reports containing sufficient detail. 

404

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 
 

Ver. December 2013                                                                                                                   Attachment E, Page 1 of 2  

Attachment E 
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENTS, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND 
VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION-LOWER TIER FEDERALLY FUNDED TRANSACTIONS 

 
      Required for all contractors and subcontractors on procurement (vendor) contracts of $100,000 or more, and for all 

contracts and grants with sub-recipients regardless of amount, when funded by a federal grant. 
 
1. The undersigned hereby certifies that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed 

for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any 
Federal department or agency. 

     
2. The undersigned also certifies that it and its principals: 
 
         (a) Have not within a three-year period preceding this response been convicted of or had a criminal offense 

in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) 
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State anti-trust statutes or 
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making 
false statements, or receiving stolen property. 

 
         (b) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 

(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 2.(a) of this 
Certification; and  

 
         (c) Have not within a three-year period preceding this certification had one or more public transactions 

(Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 
 
3. Where the undersigned is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, an explanation shall 

be attached to this certification. 
 
Dated this                 day of                              , 20___. 

 
 

By: ______________________________________           
Authorized Signature/Contractor 
 
 
Typed Name/Title 
 
                                                                                    
Grantee Name/Contractor Name 
 
                                                                                     
Street Address 
 
 
Building, Suite Number 
 
                                                                                     
City/State/Zip Code 
 

                                                                                     
Area Code/Telephone Number 

debar.226/rev.12/00 

405

X.



FWC Agreement No. 20011 
 

Ver. December 2013                                                                                                                   Attachment E, Page 2 of 2  

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, 

SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION- 
LOWER TIER FEDERALLY FUNDED TRANSACTIONS 

 
1. By signing and submitting this form, the certifying party is providing the certification set out below. 
 
2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 

transaction was entered into.  If it is later determined that the certifying party knowingly rendered an erroneous 
certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the Florida Fish and Wildlife 
Conservation Commission (FWC) or agencies with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, 
including suspension and/or debarment. 

 
3. The certifying party shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this contract is submitted if at any 

time the certifying party learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by 
reason of changed circumstances. 

 
4. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, participant, person, 

primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meanings 
set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549.  You may contact the 
person to which this contract is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. 

 
5. The certifying party agrees by submitting this contract that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, 

it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier contract, or other covered transaction with a person who is debarred, 
suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless 
authorized by the FWC or agency with which this transaction originated. 

 
6. The certifying party further agrees by executing this contract that it will include this clause titled "Certification 

Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without 
modification, in all contracts or lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered 
transactions. 

 
7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier 

covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered 
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous.  A participant may decide the method and frequency 
by which it determines the eligibility of its principals.  Each participant may, but is not required to, check the 
Nonprocurement List (Telephone No. (202) 501-4740 or (202) 501-4873.) 

 
8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to 

render in good faith the certification required by this clause.  The knowledge and information of a participant is not 
required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

 
9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction 

knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal 
Government, the FWC or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including 
suspension and/or debarment. 

 
 
 

 
debar.226/rev.12/00    

406

X.



 
 

Attachment F 
 

Attachment F, Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
I, _____________________________________________________________________________ 
     (Printed Name and Title) 
 
representing ___________________________________________________________________ 
                             (Name of Grantee) 
 
do hereby certify that the artificial reef project funded by Grant Number FWC - 
_________________ has been completed in compliance with all terms and conditions of said 
Grant Agreement. 
 
 
______________________________________________   ___________________ 
   (Signature)           (Date) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rev.   12/2013 

FL FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION 
DIVISION OF MARINE FISHERIES MANAGEMENT 

ARTIFICIAL REEF PROGRAM 
CERTIFICATION OF COMPLETION 

 

407

X.


	Top
	A.	Public Notice 121520
	B.	Zoom 121520
	C.	Meeting Minutes for Approval
	Minutes-December 1, 2020

	D.	Road Department BOCC Report 12.15.20
	December 15, 2020 BCC Report

	E.	Solid Waste Directors BOCC Report 12.15.20
	Solid Waste Director Agenda 121620

	F.	Emergency Management BOCC Report 12.15.20
	Emergency Management BOCC Report 121520

	G.	Extension Office BOCC Report 12.15.20
	December 15 2020 Mtg Report

	H.	TDC Report 121520
	TDC 2020 Occupancy Percentage
	TDC 2020 Length of Stay
	TDC September 2020 CollectionReport

	I.	PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT- NOTICE TO RESCHEDULE
	J.	Jamey & Beverly Sapp- Land Use Change Request- 2514 Highway 67
	OSCAR SANDERS OBJECTION LETTER20200827_15035631
	ROYCE JOHNS OBJECTION LETTER20200827_15025052
	Sapp LU Map 2514 HWY 67
	SAPP PROPERTIES OBJECTION LETTERS

	K.	Jamey and Beverly Sapp- Re-Zoning Request of 6.08 Acres 2514 Highway 67
	ZONING EXHIBIT B 2514
	OSCAR SANDERS OBJECTION LETTER20200827_15035631
	ROYCE JOHNS OBJECTION LETTER20200827_15025052
	SAPP PROPERTIES OBJECTION LETTERS

	L.	Jamey & Beverly Sapp- Land Use Change Request of 10 Acres- 2536 Highway 67
	Sapp LU Map 2536 HWY 67
	OSCAR SANDERS OBJECTION LETTER20200827_15035631
	SAPP PROPERTIES OBJECTION LETTERS
	ROYCE JOHNS OBJECTION LETTER20200827_15025052

	M.	Jamey & Beverly Sapp- Re-Zoning Public Hearing- 2536 Highway 67
	ZONING EXHIBIT B 2536
	OSCAR SANDERS OBJECTION LETTER20200827_15035631
	ROYCE JOHNS OBJECTION LETTER20200827_15025052
	SAPP PROPERTIES OBJECTION LETTERS

	N.	CLAY PALM
	CLAY PALM FILE
	PALM DEP PERMIT

	O.	Craig Shearer Dock Application
	Shearer Location Map
	Shearer Dock File

	P.	Jared Orciani Dock Permit Application
	ORCIANI REV DWG

	Q.	Dan Guild- Dock Application
	GUILD P&amp;Z APP PKG

	R.	The Bluffs on North Bayshore
	Durham Location Map
	The Bluffs of North Bayshore

	S.	Thomas M. Shuler, as Trustee of the Alfred O. Shuler Sr. Trust- Re-Zoning Application
	Shuler ReZoning File20201123_11260450

	T.	BB&G Resorts, LLC- Large Scale Land Use Change Request
	West Land Use ReZoning Application
	20-634[8478] Survey
	lay out plan 2 5 20[8487]
	Opposition- Letter to Commissioners (2)
	Opposition- Spot Zoning
	McIntyre Road Ordinance 92-3

	U.	CDBG 121520
	CDBG Eligible Activities COVID
	CDBG-DR Hurricane Michael St. George Island Dune RestorationSummary
	CDBG rebuild-florida-hometown-revitalization-program-guidelines-nov_16_2020

	V.	Special Projects Coordinator BOCC Report 12.15.20
	Special Projects Coordinator Report 12-15-2020
	USACOE Ltr 12-15-2020
	Status Report on a Variety of Projects

	W.	CC Report 121520
	X.	Buddy Ward Reef 121520
	FWC-20011_GrantAgreement_ForCountyReview

	Bottom

